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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Capl.ease’s rapidly growing portiolio totaled approximately $1.6 billion at the end of 2006, and

consisted of approximately 71% owned properties, and 29% loans and other debt investments.

OUR CORE BUSINESS STRATEGIES:

s Investing in High Credit Quality Cash Flows.
We invest primarily in owned real properties
and real estate loans whese the underlying
tenant is a high credit quality large public
company or its significant operating
subsidiary or a governmental or quasi-govern-
mental entity.

® Flexible Investment Approach.
We invest at all levels of the single tenant
property capital structure—equity, debt,
mezzanine—but remain flexible within that
structure, investing where we see the greatest
market opportunity to earn attractive returns.

REVENUES

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

= Long-Term Assets Held for Investment.

We hold our assets for the long-term, captur-
ing the stable cash flows that will be produced
from the underlying high credit quality tenants.

Stringent Underwriting Process.

We maintain a comprehensive underwriting
and due diligence process that is overseen by
our six-member investment committee that
reviews and approves each transaction prior
to funding.

Finance with Long-Term Fixed Rate Debt.
We borrow against, or leverage, our assets on
the balance sheet with long-term fixed rate
debt, effectively locking in the spread we
expect to generate on our assets,

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS!Y

{in millions} (in billians)

$125

205 2006

5 1 '6 (per share)

$0.93

2 200

EN 2006

(1) We use the NAREIT definition for FFO, which for us means net income allocable to common stockholders (i accordance with GAAP) plus depreciotion and
amortization ard mincrity interest in gur operating partrership. For @ reconciliotion of 2006 FFQ to net incomn, see the attached Farm 10-K i the section
entitied. "Management’s Discussicn and Anafysts of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”




OVERVIEW

Building sustainable
returns through high
quality investments.

Caplease is a diversified real estate investment trust, or REIT,
that invests primarily in single tenant commercial real estate

assets subject to long-term leases to high credit quality tenants.
We focus primarily on properties that are subject to a net lease,
or a lease that requires the tenant to pay all or substantially all
expenses normally associated with the ownership of the property

(such as utilities, taxes, insurance and routine maintenance)
during the lease term,

anne®

Founded in 1994, Hationwide Originated and Completed $222MM Completed $61MM follow- Total ponfotio as of
Caplease pioneered origination franchise underwritten more IPQin March 2004, on common stock offering. Dec. 31, 2006 of
securitization of built aver 11 years, than $4.0 biltion Completed $35MM Series A $1.6 billion. Market
credit tenant net of transactions preferred stock and $30MM Cap $395MM.

lease [cans. since 1996. trust preferred debt offering.

OUR GOAL IS TO MAKE EACH YEAR A BUILDING BLOCK FOR FUTURE GROWTH,
WHILE PROVIDING STRONG CURRENT RETURNS TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS,
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Dear Stockholder:

I am pleased to report that 2006 was another year of significant

growth for CapLease. We produced strong revenue, portfolio and

funds from operations growth. Our total return inclusive of

dividends was a strong 17.8% and outpaced several of the REITs in

our immediate peer group. We are confident that as we continue

to execute on our strategy, our stock price will reflect the growing

foundation of sustainable quality earnings and the high quality

real estate portfolio we have built and to which we continue to add.

The success of our enterprise will ultimately be deter-
mined by our total stockholder return. When we went
public, that “value” was based on our growth projec-
tions. In 2006, we continued to turn our plans into
reality. For us as managers, and all of us as owners,

we know that consistent earnings coupled with predict-

able cash flows and a growing portfolio of very high
quality real estate assets will increase stockholder value
over time,

We continue to follow a disciplined investment
strategy and, as illustrated in the chart to the right, we
have built a tremendous foundation for future growth.
The intrinsic value of CapLease is captured in these
three important principles. First, our business model
yields consistent growth. Second, we own great real
estate that is geographically diverse and located in
the top markets in the country. Third, our cash flows
from the high quality assets we add to our portfolio
are defined and will continue through the remaining
term of the leases underlying these assets.

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

FUNDAMENTALS OF OUR BUSINESS

Secure investments in
diversified, high quality
real estate.

Predictable cash flow from
high credit quality tenants.



BUILDING MOMENTUM IN QUR PORTFOLIO AND EARNINGS.
Let’s focus, for a moment, on how we did last year in
our pursuit of that critical task. As our annual report
title, “Building Momentum” aptly states, we have been
in growth mode from the start.

We grew our investment portfolio of high credit
quality assets by approximately 33% from $1.2 billion
at the end of 2005 to $1.6 billion at the end of 2006,
Since going public in March 2004, our portfolio growth
on a constant average annual basis has been a pretty
impressive 64% in what everyone agrees was a com-
petitive environment.

While portfolio growth is great, revenue and earn-
ings growth are better. There, we also did very well.

¢1.6

PORTFOLIO MAKEUP

§1.2

2004

2005

{in billions) 2004 2005 2006
Il Owned Properties $.19 $.76 1.15
I Debt Products $.30 $.44 $.46
Total Investments $.49 $1.2 $1.6

LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Revenues increased a healthy 71% from $73.1 million
in 2005 to $124.8 million in 2006. Over the same time
period, our per share funds from operations (“FFO”)
increased 63% from $0.57 per share to $0.93 per share
while the share count grew from about 28 million
shares to over 34 million. Since the assets we are add-
ing to our portfolio are subject to long-term leases
with high credit quality tenants, the revenues and
earnings we have put in place in 2006 wilt continue to
generate predictable and sustainable returns for many
years to come.

PROPERTY HIGHLIGHTS

AMVESCAP

Lowe’s
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

SOLID GROWTH IN A DIFFICULT MARKET.

We ask our managers to find investments that meet our
near-term return requirements, but that we will also

be happy to own for the long term. All investments we
make must have the credit quality and solid, predict-
able cash flow that are the hallmarks of our portfolio.
Your investment in CapLease should be based on the
same long-term outlook,

Volatile interest rates, tight cap rates and strong
overall demand made 2006 a particularly challenging
year for investing in long-term real estate assets. Real
estate has become the latest “hot” asset class and prices
have steadily appreciated in what can certainly be
characterized as a seller’s market. We felt the effects
and after a strong first quarter—where we completed
a complex $98 million refinancing of the Hercules
headquarters building in Wilmington, DE; acquired
a $90 million, 1,000,000 square-foot state-of-the-art
warehouse leased to TJX Companies, Inc. and acquired
two office buildings aggregating 264,000 square feet
in Denver, CO and leased to AMVESCAP PLC for
$69 million—the market turned too expensive and
we slowed portfolio growth in response. The primary
reason was a rapid rise in long-term Treasury rates
(against which all of our assets and debt are priced)
from 4.4% at the beginning of the year to approxi-
mately 5.25% in the second and early third quarters.

While the cost of financing rose in concert with inter-

CAPLEASE INVESTMENTS ARE GEOGRAPHICALLY DIVERSE
WITH FOCUS IN MAJOR MARKETS ON THE EAST AND
WEST COASTS,

est rates, asset prices did not respond until late in the
third quarter. There is a natural lag between sustained
movements in financing costs and the upward move-
ment in asset cap rates and, when this occurs, spreads
and investment returns decline. Faced with the choice
between adding assets at returns that were below our
targets or maintaining our investment discipline and
letting transactions go, we chose to let them go and

wait for conditions to improve.

DISCIPLINED INVESTMENT REWARDED.
I want to stop here for a moment and elaborate on this
point as it really reflects how your company operates
in concert with our philosophy and business model.
Our management team is competitive. We fight hard
to win every deal and we see plenty of transactions.
But sometimes markets will move away from us and
not offer us reasonably priced long-term assets. When
they do, we will resist the powerful siren song of chas-
ing lower quality transactions for the sake of quarterly
origination targets at the expense of long-term results.
Risk management is front and center in our investment
decision matrix and our investment track record both
as a public company and in our predecessor company
are second to none.

Our investment discipline was rewarded in the
fourth quarter of 2006 when interest rates fell at the
same time that cap rates rose slightly. We capitatized

OWNED PROPERTIES TYPES
2%

8% Retail
9% Warehouse
74% Office

> QWNED PROPERTIES

() LONG-TERM LOANS

2% Medical Office
7% Office/Warehouse
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immediately and originated $176 million of high qual-
ity assets which met our return objectives. During the
fourth quarter, we acquired six separate properties
totaling close to 750,000 square feet. The single tenant
properties we acquired included a 123,000 square-foot
office building located in Fresno, California leased

to Aetna Life Insurance Company for $24 million; a
307,000 square-foot industrial facility in Largo, Florida
leased to Johnson Controls, Inc. for $27 million; and

a 155,000 square-foot office building in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin leased to Time Warner Entertainment
Company LP for $29 million.

BUILDING QUALITY RETURNS.

Our success in 2006 demonstrates our ability to origi-
nate high quality real estate assets that are accretive to
earnings under very competitive market conditions.
Our portfolio makeup at the end of 2006 was 71%
owned properties with a carry value of §1.1 billion.
Our owned property portfolio is 99.8% occupied and
consists of approximately six million square feet of
rentable space, covering 36 properties leased to 26
different tenants—94% of which are rated investment
grade or implied investment grade. The weighted
average tenant credit rating for our owned property
portfolio was “A” from Standard & Poor’s. The weighted
average remaining lease term of the properties we own
was approximately 12 years.

.

OWNED PROPERTIES (creoIT auaLity

W
=
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The remaining 29% of our portfolio at the end
of 2006 consisted primarily of real estate loans and
commercial net lease backed securities. The weighted
average underlying tenant credit rating for our loan
portfolio was “BBB+" and the weighted average
remaining lease term on the underlying leases was
approximately 19 years.

While investment grade sounds good, I think the
names of our top ten tenants at year end say it best.
They are, in order: US Government, TJX Companies
Inc., Lowe’s Companies Inc., Aen Corporation, Konin-
klijke Ahold N.V, Tiffany & Co., AMVESCAP PLC,
CVS Corporation, ITT Industries Inc, and Allstate
Insurance Company. These are great real estate assets
located in some of the best markets across the country.

The quality and long-term nature of our assets
generate a sustainable, very high credit quality cash
flow, which will continue to grow as we make new
investments. CapLease’s disciplined approach to grow-
ing its portfolio continues to produce strong returns.
The weighted average cap rate (on a straight-line rent
basis) for our owned properties is 7.77% and the
long-term mortgage loan portfolio has an average
spread to origination treasuries of 206 basis points.
These returns represent expected yields and are based
on the underwritten cash flows on our investments
at the date of acquisition.

DEBT PRODUCTS (CREDIT QUALTIY)

19% AAA

B% AA

11% A+

9% A

12% A-

27% BBB+

9% BBB

6% Not-Envestment Grade

7] — 1
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2% AAA

5% AA

4% AA-

16% A+

25°% BBB+

6% BBB

9% BBB-

33% Not-Investment Grade
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Our ability to acquire high quality assets that are
accretive to FFO is the result of the competitive
advantages and flexibility inherent in our business
model, the strength of our national origination
network, our expertise in underwriting and closing
complex transactions and our ability to efficiently
raise equity or debt capital and finance our portfolio
with attractive long-term, fixed-rate debt.

LEVERAGING A PROVEN BUSINESS MODEL.

Qur business model is unique in our sector of the REIT
universe in that it enables us to opportunistically leve-
rage our expertise and invest at all levels of the capital
structure of net leased or other single tenant properties
-—equity, debt or mezzanine—and to deploy capital
wherever we see strong, risk-adjusted returns. Our
investment criteria are simple: we look for well located,
quality commercial real estate properties that are leased
to a single, high credit quality tenant. During 2006, as
in 2005, we found our best investment opportunities
and highest returns by acquiring properties—rather
than in making mortgage loans and investing in other
debt investments. We expect this trend to continue in
2007 and that owned properties will make up approxi-
mately 80% of our portfolio by year end 2007,

As a REIT, our priority is to return to our stock-
holders the net cash flows from our assets in the form
of dividends. In 2006 our dividend return was north of
7% supported by our investment grade portfolio. We
are acutely aware that our future growth is dependent
upon us continuing to earn the confidence of the mar-
kets so they will provide us with the fresh investment
capital we need to add new assets to the portfolio.

To date we have been successful and believe that
our ability to access the capital markets to efficiently
finance our investments and lock in attractive returns
over the long term gives us a significant competitive
advantage. In 2006, we successfully completed our first
follow-on common stock offering, We raised approxi-
mately $57.3 million net of underwriting discounts and
estimated expenses by issuing approximately 5.75 mil-
lion shares of additional common stock. The follow-on
offering was well received in the market and we ap-
preciate the participation in the offering by many of
our current stockholders as well as the addition of

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

several new and large institutional investors and a large
number of new, individual retail investors. The offering
demonstrates our strategy of raising capital when we
need it and in amounts which we can invest, thereby
minimizing any near-term drag on earnings.

The name of the game in maximizing returns on
long-term fixed-rate real estate assets has been, and
always will be, a relentless pursuit of the lowest cost of
long-term debt capital. As the pioneer in financing
the single tenant asset class as a lender, we are uniquely
positioned to utilize our strong capital markets
expertise and debt structuring capabilities to lock in
long-term returns on the assets we acquire by financ-
ing them with low-cost fixed-rate debt. Given the very
high guality of our assets and tenants, we are able to
utilize somewhat higher leverage—without, we believe,
an attendant increase in risk—than many of our REIT
competitors who focus on lower quality assets. In 2006,
we added approximately $246 million of long-term
fixed-rate mortgage debt on the properties we acquired
at a weighted average coupon of 5.66%. At the same
time, we further enhanced our proprietary financing
techniques for owned properties which will enable
us to finance a greater percentage of these properties
within our collateralized debt obligations (“CDO”).

PREDICTABLE CASH FLOWS (in mittions;

Conservative Assumption: Ne portfolio growth, ne fegse renewol

2014 2015 201¢

8 OWNED PROPERTIES
W LONG-TERM MORTGAGE LOANS

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

84.9 B85.9 84.3 82,5 83.4 83.7 813 79.4 7715 703
23.0 18.6 18.7 18.9 19.0 19.1 191 19.2 195 19.9




The enhancements we developed in 2006 will further
lower our financing cost and enhance our competitive-
ness while enabling us to aggregate assets for our CDO
issuances more quickly.

A COMMITTED TEAM OF EXPERTS.

While the portfolio we have built over the last two years
provides bedrock support to our dividend and opera-
tions, the ultimate success of the business depends on
the firm ethical foundation, expertise and effectiveness
of the people who make up Caplease. In 2006, we had
the opportunity to add two highly experienced and
seasoned members to the CaplLease team. Mike
Naughton joined us in September as Senior Vice Presi-
dent of Investments from Cushman and Wakefield Net
Lease Trust, where he was Director of Acquisitions.
Prior to that, Mike was an Executive Vice President of
Pitney Bowes Real Estate Finance Corporation. John
Warch joined us as Chief Accounting Officer in No-
vember. Prior to joining CapLease, John was Director
of Finance at Capital Trust. But while we respect strong
individual performers, the only route to long-term suc-
cess is to function as a team. As [ noted last year, most
of us have been together for many years and we form a
highly experienced and cohesive group. Even with our

THE ULTIMATE SUCCESS OF THE BUSINESS
DEPENDS ON THE FIRM ETHICAL FOUNDATION,
EXPERTISE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE
PEOPLE WHO MAKE UP CAPLEASE.

LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

recent staff additions, we remain a lean organization

of 21 people. We will continue to drive our overhead
expenses as a percentage of revenue ever downward as
we grow our portfolio at a rate that outpaces overhead
growth. Indeed, our general and administrative ex-
penses, exclusive of stock-based compensation, were
slightly lower in 2006 than they were in 2005 and at the
same time we grew revenues by 71%.

MILESTONES IN 2006

Bl ORIGINATED APPROXIMATELY $540 MILLION OF
NEW INVESTMENTS

71% INCREASE IN REVENUE

|

Il 63% INCREASE IN PER SHARE FFO

B $61 MILLION FOLLOW-ON COMMON STOCK OFFERING
||

ADDED TO MSCI US REIT INDEX
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

BUILDING MOMENTUM TO DRIVE FUTURE GROWTH.
Our success in 2006, despite a very tough investment
climate, bodes well for our growth plans for 2007.

Our goal is to make each year a building block for
future growth, while at the same time providing strong
current returns to our stockhelders.

The success we had in 2004 and 2005 led to our be-
ing able to continue to significantly grow CapLease in
2006. We have begun 2007 with a developing pipeline
of potential transactions and a stable portfolio of very
high quality assets which support our current expense
structure and current dividend.

We know that you as our owners have a vast array
of investment choices, many of which on any given
day will almost certainly look a lot “sexier” than your
investment in CapLease. But we also all know that
storms in the financial markets and the economy can
arise seemingly out of nowhere and have long-lasting
effects. We have built the CapLease portfolio and busi-
ness model to not only weather these inevitable storms,
but to flourish. We believe our growing high credit
quality portfolio will serve to protect your investment
with stable, long-term returns rain or shine.

Which brings me back to our stock price. As 1
mentioned earlier, our total return for 2006 inclusive
of dividends was a strong 17.8%. That return outpaced
several of the REITS in our immediate peer group,
though we lagged in the REIT market overall. This is to
be expected in the current environment of rising real
estate prices as our portfolio largely produces stable
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returns over the long term. However, when we measure
the assets we buy, we think not in terms of months, but
years. We are consistently building momentum in the
market, but it is over time. An investment in CapLease
should also have a long-term outlook. While we are
occasionally frustrated that our stock has traded within
a range over the past couple of years, we remain
convinced that our execution on our business plan

will drive our share price upward.

After being public for less than three years, we
remain a young company. But in that time, we have
produced a very enviable portfolio that has aliowed
us to show increasing real returns over each of the last
two full years. We will continue to drive the efficiency
of our organization and grow our asset, revenue and
earnings bases in 2007. We have built a strong company
with a sound business plan and have executed on that
plan. As we continue to do so, we believe our valuation
will reflect those fundamentals.

On behalf of our management team and Board
of Directors, ] want to thank our employees for their
loyalty and hard work and our stockholders and clients
for their continued support.

Paul McDowell
Chief Executive Officer
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BUSINESS

Part I.

Item 1. Business

Explanatory Note for Purposes of the “Safe Harbor
Provisions” of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which involve certain risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results or outcomes may differ
materially from those projected. Important factors that we believe
might cause such differences are discussed in Item 1A (Risk
Factors) of this Form 10-K or otherwise accompany the forward-
looking statements contained in this Form 10-K. In assessing all
forward-looking statements, readers are urged to read carefully
all cautionary statements contained in this Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

We are a diversified real estate investment trust, or REIT, that
invests primarily in single tenant commercial real estate assets
subject to long-term leases to high credit quality tenants. We -
focus on properties that are subject to a net lease, or a lease
that requires the tenant to pay all or substantially all expenses
normally associated with the ownership of the property (such as
utilities, taxes, insurance and routine maintenance)} during the
lease term. We also continue to be opportunistic and have made
and expect to continue to make investments in single tenant

properties where the owner has exposure to property expenses
when we determine we can sufficiently underwrite that exposure
and isolate a predictable cash flow.

Our primary business objective is to generate stable, long-
term and attractive returns based on the spread between the
yields generated by our assets and the cost of financing our
portfolio. We invest at all levels of the capital structure of net
lease or other single tenant properties, including equity invest-
ments in real estate (owned real properties), debt investments
{mortgage loans and net lease mortgage backed securities) and
mezzanine investments secured by net leased or other single
tenant real estate collateral.

Our current portfolio preduces stable, high quality cash flows
generated by long-term leases to primarly investment grade
tenants. Tenants underlying our investments are primarily large
public companies or their significant operating subsidiaries and
governmental and quasi-governmental entities with investment
grade credit ratings, defined as a published senior unsecured
credit rating of BBB-/Baa3 or above from one or both of Stan-
dard & Poor’s Corporation (“S&P") and Moody's Investors Service
{“Moody's”). We also imply an investment grade credit rating for
tenants that are not publicly rated by S&P or Moody's but (i) are
100% owned by an investment grade parent, (ii} for which we
have obtained a private investment grade rating from either S&f
or Moody’s, and (iii} are governmental entity branches or units of
another investment grade rated governmental entity.

As of December 31, 2006, our investment portfolio had a
carry value of approximately $1.6 billion, and included the
following assets by type:

(in thousands)

CARRY VALUE PERCENTAGE
Owned Properties $2,115,001 70.8%
Debt Investments
Loans
Long-term mortgage loans 231,094 14.7%
Corporate credit notes 33,480 2.1%
Mezzanine and other investments 9,511 0.6%
Commercial mortgage-backed and other real estate securities 183,066 11.6%
Other 3,253 0.2%
Total $1,575,405 100.0%

We conduct our business through two operating segments: oper-
ating real estate (including our investments in owned real prop-
erties), and lending investments (including our loan investments
as well as our investments in secunities). See "Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” below, for financial data by segment.

We have been in the net lease business since 1994. We
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completed our initial public offering in March 2004 and, during
2006, we completed our first follow-on common stock offering.
Prior to our initial public offering, we were primarily a lender
focused on originating net lease mortgage loan transactions
and selling substantially all of the loans we originated, either
through whole-loan or small pool sales or through gain-on-sale
commercial mortgage-backed securitizations.



INVESTMENT STRATEGY

We focus on the following core business strategies:

Investing in High Quality Cash Flows. We invest primarily
in owned real properties and real estate loans where the
underlying tenant is of high credit quality. As of December 31,
2006, our top ten credit exposures had a weighted average
credit rating of A. As of December 31, 2006, our portfolic
had the following credit characteristics:

(in thousands)

Credit Rating ‘¥ TOTAL  PERCENTAGE
Investment grade rating of A- or A3 and above $607,373 38.6%
Investment grade rating of below A- or A3 512,038 32.5%
Implied investment grade rating 231,982 14.7%
Non-investment grade rating 214,502 13.6%
Unrated @ 9,511 0.6%

$1,575,405  100.00%

(1} Four of our owned real properties with an aggregate cany volue of $253,655 are

(2}

leased to more than one tenant and, for purposes of determining the underdying
tenant’s credit rating on these properties, we have considered the credit rating of
only our primary tenant.

Includes our mezzanine and other investments as described under “Qur Portfo-
lio—Loan Investments.”™ While the tenants on the underlying properties generally
muay be rated by S&P and/or Moody’s, we classify these investments as unrated
because of the subordinated nature of our investment.

Long-Term Assets Held for Investment. We invest in com-
mercial real estate assets subject to long-term leases. The
weighted average remaining lease term on the leases on our
owned properties is approximately 12 years and on the leases
underlying our loan investments is approximately 19 years.
We intend to hold our assets for the long-term, capturing the
stable cash flows that will be produced from the underlying
high credit quality tenants, On a limited and oppoertunistic
basis, we also continue to acquire and promptly resell assets
through our taxable REIT subsidiary.

Flexible Investment Approach. We invest at all levels of the
capital structure of net lease or other single tenant proper-
ties but remain flexible within that structure, investing where
we see the greatest market opportunity to earn attractive
returns. During 2005 and 2006, we saw the greatest op-
portunity on the equity side of the business (owned real
properties). As of December 31, 2006, owned reak properties
comprised approximately 71% of our portfolio, and we expect
this percentage to continue to increase in 2007.

Stringent Underwriting Process. We maintain a comprehen-
sive underwriting and due diligence process that is overseen
by our investment committee, which consists of six of our key
employees, including the chief executive officer, president,
chief financial officer and chief investment officer. Qur invest-

BUSINESS

ment committee formally reviews and approves each transac-
tion prior to funding. We also have an investment oversight
committee of the Board of Directors that approves invest-
ments in excess of $50 million,

Finance with Long-Term Fixed Rate Debt. We seek to bor-
row against, or leverage, our assets with long-term fixed rate
debt, effectively locking in the spread we expect to generate
on our assets, Our financing strategy allows us to invest in a
greater number of assets and enhance our asset returns. We
expect our leverage to average 70% to 85% of our assets in
portfolio. We believe this leverage level is conservative given
the high credit quality of the underlying tenants and the
length and quality of the related leases.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

® Established Origination and Investment Capabilities. We

have an experienced in-house team of investment criginators
and underwriters that originate, structure, underwrite and
close our transactions. In addition, we have developed an
extensive national network of property owners, investment
sale brokers, tenants, horrowers, mortgage brokers, lenders,
institutional investors and other market participants that
helps us to identify and originate a variety of net lease or
other single tenant financing and investment opportunities.
During 2006, we originated approximately $538.6 million of
new investments (including approximately $78.0 million of
investments sold in the ordinary course of business).
Experienced Senior Management Team. Qur senior man-
agement team has worked together for more than 10 years.
During this period, we built a nationwide origination network
and underwriting platform, initially focused on net lease
mortgage lending. Since our initial public offering in 2004,
we have expanded our strategy to inctude the ownership of
net lease or other single tenant properties by drawing on our
extensive experience in evaluating tenant credit quality, lease
structures and commercial real properties. Since that time, we
have purchased more than $1.1 hillion of net lease or other
single tenant properties. Since 1996, we have originated and
underwritten more than $4.0 biltion in net lease or other
single tenant transactions, involving more than 500 proper-
ties with more than 75 underlying tenants. During this 10-
year period, we have experienced only one loan default and
foreclosure on the loans and properties we have originated
and underwritten.

Financing Expertise. We have substantial experience in
financing and securitizing net lease assets. During 2005, we
compteted what we believe was the first ever 100% fixed
rate real estate primarily whole loan CDO. We financed an
approximately $300 million pool of net lease mortgage loans
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and securities, with 85% of the obligations rated AAA/Aaa
by S&P/Moody’s, and 95% of the obligations rated invest-
ment grade by 5&P/Moody’s. We expect our next CDO issuance
to occur in the second quarter of 2007. Prior to our initial
public offering in 2004, we structured four “gain-on-sale”
securitizations aggregating $1.5 billion.

®  Market Expertise. We have recognized expertise in the net
lease marketplace. In February 2005, we received a U.S. pat-
ent for our 10-year credit tenant loan product. In addition to
serving as cne of our loan products, we use this product to
create additional leverage on many of our owned property in-
vestments. We have worked extensively with S&P and Moody's
to develop ratings criteria for net lease financing, and
continue to provide ongoing advice and assistance to these
rating agencies on net lease financing issues, We also devel-
oped the specialized lease enhancement mechanisms that are
now market standard for net lease lending transactions.

OUR PORTFOLIO

Owned Properties
All of our equity investments in real estate have been made
since the closing of our initiat public offering. We invest in all
commercial property types (e.g., office, retail or industrial), and
our investment underwriting includes an analysis of the credit
quality of the underlying tenant and the strength of the related
lease, We also analyze the property’s real estate fundamentals,
including location and type of the property, vacancy rates and
trends in vacancy rates in the property’s market, rental rates
within the property’s market, recent sales prices and demograph-
ics in the property’s market. For more detail on our underwriting
process, please see “Underwriting Process” below. We target
properties that have one or more of the following characteristics:
® included in primary metropolitan markets such as New York/
New Jersey, Chicago and Washington D.C./Northern Virginia;
" fungible asset type that will facilitate a re-let of the property
if the tenant does not renew;
% barriers to entry in the property’s market, such as zoning
restrictions or limited land for future development; and
" core facility of the tenant.

As of December 31, 2006, our owned property partfolio had a

carry value of $1.1 billion. We believe the strength of our portfo-

lio is exhibited by the following:

" approximately 6.0 million rentable square feet with 99.8%
occupancy;

® 36 properties in 21 states leased to 26 different tenants;

® 94% investment grade or implied investment grade tenants;
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. 12% A-

B weighted average tenant credit rating of A;

® weighted average remaining lease term of approximately 12
years; and well diversified portfolio by property type, geogra-
phy and credit rating.

The following pie chart depicts the credit quality® of our owned
property portfolio as of December 31, 2006.

CREDIT QUALITY - OWNED PROPERTIES

Non-Investment Grade

19% AAA
B% AA
11% A+
% A

27% BBY+
9% BBB
6% Non-Investment Grade

{1} Reflects tenant’s or lease guarantor’s actual or implied S&P rating or equivalent
S&P rating if rated onty by Moody's.

Our owned property portfolio is expected to generate the follow-
ing annual cash flows™ through the year 2016.

{in mikiions) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

..
by
o

Iine
o

B ARG TR T |

(1) Reflects scheduled rent payments under ofl of our (eases with olf of our tenants.
Does not reflect straight-line rent odjustments required under Stotement of
Financiol Accounting Standards (*SFAS™) Ne. 13. Alse does not include expense
recaveries or obove or below market rent amortization odjustments required by
SFAS No. 141. Assumes no odditions to the portfolio and no lease renewals at
expiration of the primary lease term. Actual results may differ materially from
those projected. Please see “Risk Factors™ section.



The following is a tabular presentation of our owned property

portfolio as of December 31, 2006:

(in thousands)

BUSINESS

2007 ESTIMATED PURCHASE CARRY
TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE SOUARE FEET PURCHASE DATE LEASE MATURITY  ANNUAL RENT® PRICE VALUE®

Abbott Laboratories Office 111,776 11/2004 10/2016 $893 $12,025 $11,347
6480 Busch Blvd, Columbus, OH
Abbott Laboratories Office 131,341 8/2005 §/2017 1,338 20,325 19,543
1850 Norman Drive North, Waukegan, IL
Aetna Life Insurance Company Office 122,605 10/2006 11/2016 1,622 24,255 24,721
1333 - 1385 Eost Shaw Avenue, Fresno, CA
Allstate Insurance Company Office 191,681 12/2005 12/2015 1,916 27,172 26,293
401 McCullough Drive, Charlotte, NC
Allstate Insurance Campany Office 165,808 12/2005 12/2015 2,039 28,928 27,905
1819 Efectric Road (oka State hwy. 419), Roanoke, VA
AmeriCredit Corp. Office 246,060 12/2006 8/2017 2,965 43,000 43,359
4001 Embarcadero Drive, Arlington, TX
AMVESCAP PLC Office 263,770 3/2006 10,/2016 4,934 69,300 67,838
4340, 4346 & 4350 South Monaco 5t., Denver, €0
Aon Corporation @ Office 412,409 8/2004 472017 6,517 85,750 81,401
1000 Milwaukee Ave, Glemview, IL
Baxter International, Inc. Warehouse 125,500 10/2004 9/2016 790 10,500 10,196
555 North Daniels Way, Bloomington, IN
Cadbury Schweppes Holdings (US) Office 149,475 1/2005 3/2021 3,400 48,000 48,356
945 Route 10, Whippany, NI
Capital One Financial Corporation Office 159,000 6/2005 2/2015 1,823 27,900 29,565
3905 N. Daltas Parkway, Plano, TX
Choice Hotels International, Inc. @ Office 223,912 11/2004 5/2013 4,908 43,500 42,914
10720, 10750 & 10770 Columbia Pike, Sitver Spring, MO
Cott Corporation Mfg/Dist 120,000 7/2006 6/2017 362 5,350 5,397
1090 and 1081 Spring Street, Reading, PA
Crozer-Keystone Health System © Medical 22,708 8/2004 472019 404 4,477 5,553
8§ Morton Avenue, Ridley, PA Office
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 88,420 9/2004 1/2014 744 10,450 13,661
100 Mazzeo Drive, Randalph, MA
Farmers New World Life Insurance Company Office 155,200 12/2005 12/2020 2,392 39,550 38,974
3003 77th Avenue Southeast, Mercer Island, WA
ITT Industries, Inc. Office 167,285 5/2005 3/2019 4,888 46,081 64,871
12975 Worldgate Drive, Herndon, VA
Johnson Controls, Inc. Office 307,275 12/2006 8/2016 1,862 27,000 27.21%
6750 Bryan Dairy Road, Largo, FL ’
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. Retail 70,020 6/2006 4/2026 1,439 18,575 20,851
4001 New Falls Road, Levittown, PA
Lowes Companies, Inc. ® Retail 181,160 5/2005 8/2024 3,450 52,860 51,534
26501 Aliso Creek Rd., Aliso Viejo, CA
Omnicom Group, Inc. Office 101,120 6/2005 5/2013 1,278 18,100 16,984
1660 North Westridge Circle, Irving, TX
Pearson Plc. Office 194,665 4/2006 4/2021 1,351 20,750 20,389
3833 Greenway and 2201 Noria Rood, Lawrence, KS
T-Mobite USA, Inc, Office 69,287 11/2006 1/2017 1,298 16,195 16,187
695 Grossmere Park, Nashvilte, TN
Tiffany & Co. Office/ 367,740 9/2005 9/2025 4,613 75,000 75,179
15 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, NI Warehouse
Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. Office 154,849 11/2006 12/2016 1,865 28,530 29,074
1320 N. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Dr,, Milwaukee, WI

Continued >
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(in thousands)

2007 ESTIMATED PURCHASE CARRY
TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE SQUARE FEET PURCHASE DATE LEASE MATURITY  ANNUAL RENT® PRICE VALUE®
TIX Companies, Inc. Warehouse 1,015,500 3/2006 6/2021 $5,915 $90,125 $91,025
2760 Red Lion Road, Philadelphia, PA
United States Government (DEA) Office 35,616 8/2005 12/2020 1,229 14,100 13,754
1003 17th Street North, Birmingham, AL
United States Government (EPA) Office 71,97% 8/2005 3/2023 2,452 29,250 32,012
300 Minnesote Avenue, Kansas City, KS
United States Government (FBI) Office 74,300 10/2006 9/2018 1,312 16,350 16,964
200 McCarty Avenue, Albany, NY
United States Government (FBI) Office 86,199 8/2005 472020 2,202 23,500 23,323
1100 18th Street, North, Birmingham, AL
United States Government (NIH) @ Office 207,055 9/2005 5/2012 8,151 81,500 77,806
6116 Executive Bvd, N. Bethesda, MD
United States Government (0SHA) Office 75,000 8/2005 1/2024 1,883 23,750 23,969
8660 South Sandy Parkway, Sandy, UT
United States Government (SSA) Office 23,311 8/2005 12/2015 710 6,500 6,756
102¢ Camino La Costa, Austin, TX
United States Government (VA) Medical 56,500 11/2004 2/2015 1,300 13,600 12,853
Lot 37, Suntiage (e los Caballeros Avenue, Ponce, PR Office
Walgreen Co. Retail 18,500 11/2004 10/2016 297 3,089 3,081
4601 Westffeld Avenue, Pennsauken, NJ Brug
Walgreen Co. Retail 13,905 11/2004 7/2018 357 4,165 4,147
700 Frederick Blvd, Portsmouth, VA Drug
TOTAL 5,980,931 $84,899 51,109,902 $1,115,001

(1) Reflects scheduled rent due for 2007 under our iease with the tenant or tenants, Does not reflect straight-line rent adjustments required under SFAS No. 13. Also does not
include expense recoveries or abave or below market rent emortizotion adjustments reguired by SFAS No. 141.

(2) Includes carry value of any related intongible assets under SFAS No. 141.

(3) As of December 31, 2008, approximotely 2% of the property was leased to one other tenant.

(4) As of December 31, 2006, approximately 28% of the property was leased to six other tenants.

(5) We own o leasehold interest in the land, or a ground lease, where on affiliate of our tenant owns the underlying land and improvements and hos leased them to us through
2032 with ar option to extend through 2046. Our ground rent is prepaid through 2032. At the end of the ground lease, unless extended, the land and improvements revert to

the landowner.

(6) As of December 31, 2006, approximately 18% of the property was leased to two other tenants.
(7) As of December 31, 2006, appraximately 11% of the property was leased to five ather tenants.

Loan Investments

Our loan products are targeted primarily to owners of real
properties net leased on a long-term basis to high credit quality
tenants. Most of the loans we hold in portfolio are fully amortiz-
ing over the primary lease term of the underlying tenant, thus
reducing our risk over time and eliminating the refinance risk
associated with a balloon payment at maturity. We target loans
on real properties with strong real estate fundamentals and with
a strong long-term lease in place.

Our existing loan investments include long-term mortgage
loans, corporate credit notes and a small number of mezzanine
and other investments. The following describes each of these
investments.

" Long-Term Mortgage Loans. We offer long-term fully or
nearly fully amortizing or insured balloon loans secured by
first mortgages on properties subject to long-term net leases
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(typically at least 15 years). This product enables a borrower
to receive the highest proceeds that a property’s rent pay-
ments will support. As of December 31, 2006, our portfolio
included $231.1 million of long-term mortgage loans.
Corporate Credit Notes. We also offer a 10-year non-fully
amortizing loan product for borrowers w ho prefer a shorter
loan term and for net lease properties that do not meet the
criteria for our long-term mortgage loan product, for example,
because of a shorter lease term or a lower rated tenant.

We have received a United States patent for this product.

We typically split these loans inte two notes, a non-fully
amortizing real estate note which we generally setl promptly
following origination, and a fully amortizing corporate credit
note, which we retain in our portfolio. The corporate credit
note will generally range from 10% to 20% of the loan
amount, and has a junior claim on the real estate collateral,




but a senior claim on the rents in the event of a tenant bank-
ruptcy. As of December 31, 2006, our partfolio included $33.5
million of corporate credit notes.

® Mezzanine and Other Investments. Our largest mezzanine
investment as of December 31, 2006 was loans aggregating
$5.7 million made pursuant to a revolving credit agreement
we entered into with a third party borrower in June 2006. We
agreed to fund loans from time to time of up to $12 million
to support the borrower's capital contributions to a joint
venture that makes franchise loans to franchisees of YUM!
Brands, Inc. restaurant concepts such as Taco Bell, Kentucky
Fried Chicken and Pizza Hut. We also offer and expect that
our mezzanine investments will include from time to time a
variety of other loan and loan type products to owners of net
leased or other single tenant properties, including mezzanine
loans, bridge loans, development loans and preferred equity
financings. These investments are typically shorter term in
nature and are often subordinate to other financing on the
property. We typically make these investments in connection
with the development of a property or an expected recapital-
ization of the property, giving us an advantage in providing
the long-term financing on or purchasing the property. As of
December 31, 2006, we had $9.5 million of mezzanine and
other investments.

As of December 31, 2006, our loan portfolio had a carry value of

$274.1 million. We believe the strength of our loan portfolio is

exhibited by the following:

" weighted average remaining lease term on the underlying
leases of approximately 19 years;

% 78% investment grade or implied investment grade underly-
ing tenants;

B [oan investments on 65 properties in 26 states with 24 differ-
ent underlying tenant obligors; and

% weighted average underlying tenant credit rating of BBB+.,

BUSINESS

The following pie chart depicts the credit guality!” of the
long-term mortgage loans in our loan portfelio as of December
31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, long-term mortgage loans
comprised approximately 84% of our loan portfolio.

CREDIT QUALTTY — LONG-TERM MORTGAGE LDANS

Ah-

Non-Investment Grade

BBR-

<1% AAA

10% AA

3% AA-

31% A+

32% BBB+

10% HEB

1% 388-

13% Non-Investment Grade

(1) Reflects underlying tenant’s or lease quarantor's actual or implied S&7 rating or
equivalent S&P rating if roted only by Moody's.

The long-term mortgage loans in our loan portfolio are expected
to generate the fotlowing annual cash flows'™ through the
year 2016,

{in mithions} 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

{1) Reflects scheduled poyments of interest and principal on our long-term mortgage
toans. Actue! results may differ matenally from those profected. Please see “Risk
Factors” section.
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The following is a tabular presentation of our loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2006:

(in thousonds}

ORIGINAL LOAN T0
TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LEASE LOAN  PRINCIPAL  PRINCIFAL CARRY  REALTY
LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE  SQUARE FEET  COUPON  EXPIRATION MATURTTY BALANCE BALANCE VALUE  VALUE
Long-Term Mortgage Loans
Autozone, Inc. Retail 13,383 6.50% 4/2024 1172022 $2,108 $1,971 $1,971 73%
Douglas and Veldesta, GA
Bank of America, N.A. Bank Branch 4,500 6.42% 12/2026 12/2026 3,469 3,469 3,469 78%
Mt Airy, MD
Best Buy Co., Inc. Retail 45,720 6.40% 3/2025 3/2025 18,522 18,038 18,038 93%
Chicago, IL
City of Jasper, Texas Office 12,750 7.00% 1272024  11/2024 1,736 1,673 1,624  84%
Jasper, TX
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,880 6.53% 1/2026 1/2026 2,360 2,255 2,317 88%
Ashevilte, NC
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 13,013 6.46% 1/2025 1/2025 1,502 1,423 1,424 15%
Athol, MA
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 13,013 6.28% 1/2026 1/2026 2,521 2,353 2.312 84%
Bangor, PA
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 8.00% 1/2021 1/2021 1,439 1,284 1,402 76%
Bluefield, WY
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 11,970 6.52% 1/2030 1/2030 1,395 1,355 1,355 80%
Greensboro, GA
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,880 6.99% 1/2025 8/2024 3,243 3,097 3,097 80%
Oak Ridge, NC
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 11,970 5.98% 1/2031 1/2031 2,540 2,521 2,521 88%
Shethy Twp., MI
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 8.26% 1/2020 1/2020 1,768 1,703 1,899 83%
Southington, (T
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 8.26% 1/2020 1/2020 2,407 2.301 2,565 81%
Stow, OH
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 7.50% 1/2021 1/2021 1,829 1,603 1,564 76%
Sunbury, PA
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 7.920 B.10% 1/2023 1/2023 2,781 2,434 2,600 74%
Washington, DC
CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 8.26% 1/2023 1/2023 2,028 1,961 2,194 80%
Willimantic, €T
Harris Bankcorp, Inc. Bank Branch 4,750 6.81% 8/2025 8/2025 4,467 4,388 4,388 72%
Chicago, It
Home Depot USA, Inc, Retail 117,034 5.36% 1/2036 1/2031 8,501 8,384 8,384 91%
Chelseo, MA
Home Depot USA, Inc. Retail 116,016 6.62% 1/2033 1/2033 8,447 8,419 8,419 98%
Tullytown, PA
Kohls Corporation Retail 133,000 6.69% 5/2030 5/2030 48,270 47,517 47,517 92%
Chicago, IL
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. Retail 67,000 7.24% 5/2020 5/2020 3,153 3,005 3,063 22%
Bensalem, PA
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. Retail 126,772 7.50% 1172025 1172025 6,794 6,549 6,529 72%
North Kingstown, RI
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. Retail 58,450 7.50% 1/2027 1/2027 6,625 6,444 6,439 73%
Tewksbury, MA
(ontinued >
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(in thousands)

ORIGINAL LOAN TO

TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LEASE LOAN  PRINCIPAL  PRINCIPAL CARRY  REALTY
LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE  SQUARE FEET  COUPON  EXPIRATION MATURITY BALANCE BALANCE VALUE  VALUE®
Long-Term Mortgage Loans (Cont.)

Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. Retail 54,800 7.29% 4/2024 4/2024 $6,867 $6,503 $6,215 89%

Upper Darby Township, PA

Lowes Compantes, Inc. Retail 156,543 5.87% 10/2031 9/2031 27,864 27,829 27,829  85%

Framingham, MA

Lowes Companies, Inc. Retail 162,070 6.61% 5/2030 5/2030 7,208 7.119 7,119 95%

Matamoras, PA

National City Bank Bank Branch 5,274 5.89%  12/2024  12/2024 3,114 3,005 3,086  76%

Chicage, IL

Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America UOffice 201,189 5.97% 5/2008 6/2007 15,244 4,202 4,202 17%

Lombard, IL

Neiman Marcus Group, Inc. Retait 167.000 6.06% 11/2022 11/2021 8,267 6,830 7,426 72%

Las Vegas, NV

United States Postal Service Post Office 2,080 1.05% 10/2021  10/2021 1,015 921 %0 7%

Scammon Bey, AK

University of Connecticut Health Center Medical Office 100,000 6.34% 11/2029  11/2024 22,800 21,537 22,333 86%
Farmington, (T

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 14,550 6.46% 12/2029  12/2029 3.534 3,419 3,419  80%
Dalias, ™X

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 14,414 6.10% 3/2030 2/2030 4,680 4,548 4,548 67%
Mantebello, CA

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 14,820 6.80% 9/2030 9/2030 3,649 3,629 3,629 71%
Nocogdoches, TX

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 12,004 6.26% 1272029 12/2029 5,333 5,259 5,259 74%
Rosemend, (A

247,480 228,948 231,094

Corporate Credit Notes

Albertsons, LLC Retail Drug 16,475 6.50% 7/2028 9/2013 437 327 297 82%
Los Angeles, (A

Albertsons, LLC Retail Drug 14,696 6.33% 1172028  12/2013 470 359 355 4%
Norwalk, CA

Best Buy Co., Inc. Retail 48,744 5.40% 1/2018 6/2013 1,779 1,323 1,270 80%
Olothe, KS

Best Buy Co., Inc. Retail 30,038 6.15% 172017 11/2012 743 509 485 76%
Wichita Falls, T .

CVS Corporation Retail Drug 10,880 5.54% 1/2022 1/2015 285 242 232 63%
Ltemmons, NC

€VS Corporation Retail Drug 10,880 5.85% 472025 5/2013 501 374 361 84%
Commerce, MI

CVS Corporation Retail Drug 11,970 6.12% 6/2025 8/2013 879 644 627 83%
Garwood, NJ

CVS Corporation Retail Drug 12,150 6.40% 1/2025  10/2012 857 566 547 85%
Kennett Square, PA

€VS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 7.60% 1/2024  12/2011 322 192 191 1%
Knox, IN

VS Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 6.12% 1/2025 10/2013 435 325 318 77%

Rockinghom, NC

Continued >
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(in thousands)

ORIGINAL LOAN 10

TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LEASE LOAN  PRINCIPAL  PRINCIPAL CARRY  REALTY
LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE  SQUARE FEET  COUPON  EXPIRATION MATURITY BALANCE BALANCE VALUE  VALUEW
Corporate Credit Notes (Cont.)

CV5 Corporation Retail Drug 10,125 6.12% 1/2025  10/2013 $346 $274 $268 78%

Rutherford College, NC

Federal Express Corporation Warehouse 30,313 5.78%  10/2018 3/2015 362 317 310 71%

Bellingham, WA

FedEx Ground Package System, Inc. Warehouse 159,699 5.89% 1/2019 2/2015 2,737 2,350 2.323 82%

McCook, IL

FedEx Ground Package System, Inc. Warehouse 106,396 5.90% 9/2018  10/2014 1,374 1,143 1,132 7%

Reno, NV

Hercules Incorporated Office 518,409 9.32% 5/2013 5/2013 20,000 19,964 19,964 82%

Wilmington, DE

Lowes Companies, Inc. Retail 138,134 5.28% 172026 9/2015 1,140 1,070 1,048 85%

N. Windhom, ME

PerkinEtmer, Inc. Office/ 65,862 7.35% 1172021  12/2011 707 419 416 80%

Beltsville, MD Industrial

PerkinElmer, Inc. Office/ 34,196 7.35% 1172021 12/2011 321 190 188 76%

Daytona Beach, FL Industrial

PerkinElmer, Inc. Office/ 32,700 7.35% 1172021 1272011 299 177 174 83%

Phelps, NY Industrial

PerkinElmer, Inc. Industrial 95,720 7.68%  12/2021 1/2012 939 567 555 B81%

Warwick, RI

Staples, Inc. Retait 23,942 6.41% 6/2015 8/2012 408 275 262 T7%

Odessa, TX

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 15,120 6.20% 1/2021 1/2013 595 405 403 74%

Deiray Beach, FL

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 14,266 5.49% 372030 5/2015 786 689 689 89%

Jefferson City, TN

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 12,804 6.10% 10/2028 12/2013 571 435 426 74%

Riverside, (A

Walgreen Co. Retail Drug 14,490  5.50%  1/2023  6/2013 953 676 639 81%

Waterford, MI

38,246 33,812 33,480

Mezzanine and Other Investments

84th Avenue Development, LLC Retail Drug N/A  10.00% N/A 3/2007 498 498 498 N/A
Tinley Pork, IL
Eden Hylan Seaview LLC Retail Drug N/A - 10.00% N/A 7/2007 650 650 650 N/A
Staten Island, NY
Wemo Franchise Funding LLC Other N/A  10.00% N/A 2/2007 6,648 2,648 2,648 N/A
Various
West End Mortgage Finance Fund I L.P. Other N/A 10.00% N/A 9/2009 5715 5,715 5,715 N/A
Various
13,511 9,511 9,511
Total $299,237 $272,271 $274,085

(1) All percentages have been rounded to the nearest whole percentage. Loan ta realty value is the ratio of the principal batance of the loan as of December 31, 2006 to the
approised value of the real estate that secures the loon at the time of the loan. The current value of the real estate may be different. The ltoan to realty value for each corpo-
rate credit note includes the principal balance of the portion of the loan we have sold.
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Commercial Mortgage-Backed and Other Real fstate Securities
We also invest in commercial mertgage-backed securities, or
CMBS, and other real estate securities. Our CMBS investments
include senijor, subordinate and interest-only classes of primar-
ily net lease loan securitizations or pass through trusts. Qur real
estate securities represent our pro rata investments in a pool
of mortgage loans on properties net leased to a single tenant.
We believe we are well-positioned to evaluate net lease (MBS
investments and real estate securities due to our expertise with
net lease loan assets and our experience in structuring CMBS
investments. We structured four (MBS securitizations aggregat-
ing approximately $1.5 billion prior te our initial public offering.
As a result of our familiarity with the collateral included in these
transactions, many of our (MBS investments to date have been
made in classes of our prior securitizations.

The following pie chart depicts the credit quality™™ of our
partfolio of CMBS and other real estate securities as of December
31, 2006.

CREDIT QUALITY ~ CMBS AND OTHER

BUSINESS

Our CMBS and other real estate securities are expected to
generate the following annual cash flows™ through the year 2016.

CMBS AND OTHER

Non-Investment Grade 2

4% AAA
6% AA-
21% BB3+
<1% BBB
21% BBB-
47% Non-Investment Grade

(1) Reflects actucl ratings on our CMBS securities and underlying tenant ratings on
our other real estate securities.

{in mitlions) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

(1) Reflects scheduled payments of intergst and principal on all of our securities.
Actual results may differ materially from those prajected.
Please see “Risk Foctors” section,
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Our {MBS and other real estate securities as of December 31,
2006 are summarized in the following table:

(in thousands)

SECURITY DESCRIPTION CUSIP NO. FACE AMOUNT®  CARRY VALUE COUPON YIELO® MATURITY DATE
Investments in Commaercial Mortgage Loan Securitizations
BACM 2006-4, Class H 05950WATS $8,000 $8,219 6.01% 5.78% Aug 2016
BSCMS 1999 CLF1, Class E 07383FCCO 3,076 1,710 7.11% 15.74% Nov 2023
CALFS 1997-CTL1, Class O 140281AF3 6,000 5,977 6.16% 6.28% Nov 2018
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class E 201736A)4 9,526 11,213 7.86% 6.21% Jul 2022
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class G 201736AL9 9,526 10,393 1.86% 7.06% Feb 2023
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class H 201736AM7 11,907 8,127 6.25% 10.36% Mar 2024
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class J 201736AN5 6,383 2,205 6.25% 20.00% Oct 2025
NLFC 1999-LTL-1, Class E 63859CCLS 11,081 7,208 5.00% 9.60% Feb 2022
NLFC 1999-LTL-1, Class X (10} 63859CCGH 7,597 8,127 0.49% 8.82% Jan 2024
WBCMT 2004-C15 180D 929766YG62 15,000 14,349 5.58% 7.17% Nov 2009
WBCMT 2004-C15 180E §29766YHO 8,000 7.633 5.58% 1.27% Nov 2009
WBCMT 2006-C27, Class C 92977QAK4 11,000 11,289 5.89% 5.57% Aug 20116
BACMS 2002-2, Class V-1 (7-Fleven, Inc.) 05947UJE9 428 305 B.72% 12.30% Sep 2019
BACMS 2002-2, Class V-2 (Sterling Jewelers} 05947UJF6 655 455 8.68% 12.30% Jan 2021
108,179 97,210
Investments in Certificated Loan Transactions
CVS Corporation 126650885 19,603 19,248 5.88% 6.18% Jan 2028
Keninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.82% Jan 2020 008686AA5 8,980 9,350 7.82% 7.15% Jan 2020
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.9% May 2026 52467 @ALY 23,3595 24,976 7.90% 7.15% May 2026
Yahoo, Inc. 984332AC0 31,955 32,282 6.65% 6.62% Aug 2026
83,933 85,856
Total $192,112 $183,066

(1) Represents face amaunt, or, in the case of the NLFC 1999-1TL-1, Class X (IG) bond, our cost basis.
(2) Represents the yield to maturity, computed using the effective interest method, based on our carry value.

CO-INVESTMENT PROGRAMS

Beginning in 2007, we intend to enter into co-investment or
joint venture programs for a limited number of our current or
future owned property investments. We believe that these
arrangements wilt enable us to earn incremental returns on our
property investments and provide us with an additional source
of capital not dependent on United States capital markets.
Consistent with this strateqy, in December 2006, we entered
into an agreement pursuant to which we have committed to
contribute up to $5.0 million of capital to a newly formed
management company organized to form and manage real estate
investment funds offered and sold to European investors, subject
1o the satisfaction of certain terms and conditions by the princi-
pals of the management company. We expect our investment will
entitie us to a preferred return on our investment. We also
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expect from time to time to source properties for the manage-
ment company’s investment funds. We intend to retain an inter-
est in any property sourced to any investment fund.

PORTFOLIO FINANCING
Qur portfolio returns reflect the yields generated by our assets
less our cost of financing. We believe that our cost of financing
is one of the lowest in the REIT industry, primarily as a result
of the strong credit characteristics of our tenants. Such strong
credit characteristics enable us to finance a component of our
property acquisitions through our CD0. CDO financing also
enables us to exercise greater control over our financing activi-
ties, particularly as it relates to our property acquisitions.

Our portfolio financing strategy is to finance our portfolio
assets with long-term fixed rate debt as soon as practicable after




we invest. We seek to finance our assets on a long-term basis
with debt of a like maturity, commonly referred to as “match-
funding.” Since our nitial public offering, our long-term fixed
rate financings have been in the form of mortgage debt and
collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs. Most of our real property
acquisitions have been financed on a long-term basis with third
party mortgage debt, with some of our smaller owned real proper-
ties financed through our CBO. As noted above, we also use CDO
financing to provide incremental leverage on property acquisi-
tions financed with mortgage debt. Most of our loan and CMBS
investments are financed or we expect will be financed on a long-
term basis through our existing or a future (D(. A limited number
of our generally higher yielding portfolio assets are not financed.

We have short-term borrowing arrangements in place to facili-
tate our investment activity while we arrange long-term financ-
ing. Through Wachovia Bank, N.A. and its affiliates, we have a
$250 million repurchase agreement through which we principatly
finance our loan and securities investments and a $100 million
real property acquisition facility through which we can finance
our owned real properties. Qur interest cost on our short-term
borrowings is at floating rates.

In anticipation of our next (DO issuance, in December 2006 '
Wachovia Bank agreed to temporarily expand our borrowing
capacity under our repurchase agreement to $350 million.

Since our initial public offering, all of our financings have
been on-balance sheet financings, meaning the assets we
finance and liabilities we incur are reported on our balance sheet
for accounting purposes.

In March 2005, we completed our first CDO. Qur CDO was an
entirely fixed rate financing. We aggregated approximately $300
million of assets into the pool, and we created $285 million face
amount of multi-class notes and $15 million of preferred equity
through the CDO trust. The net amount of the debt we issued
was $268.1 million, inclusive of a $0.4 million discount to face,
as we retained the three most junior note classes aggregat-
ing a face amount of $16.5 million and the full $15 million of
preferred equity. Each of the five note classes of the (D0 was
rated investment grade. During the first five years of the CDO
term, we expect to reinvest principal repayments on the underly-
ing assets into qualifying replacement collateral. The CDO notes
are expected to mature in January 2015. Qur effective blended
financing rate {inclusive of original issue discount and debt issu-
ance and hedge costs) on our CDQ is approximately 5.67%.

We are currently aggregating assets for our next CBO financ-
ing. We expect our next CDO issuance to occur in the second
quarter of 2007.

As of December 31, 2006, the following statistics summarize
our portfolio financing position:
® leverage of approximately 79.8% (short-term and long-term

secured debt divided by assets in portfolio);

BUSINESS

" $794.8 million of total mortgage debt at a weighted average
coupon of 5.46% and a weighted average effective financing
rate of 5.58%; and

® $268.2 million of CDO debt at an effective blended financing
rate of approximately 5.67%.

HEDGING STRATEGY

We employ a hedging and risk management strategy to protect
our investments from interest rate fluctuations prior to the time
we obtain long-term fixed rate financing. We do so by having
derivative and other risk management transactions that react in
a corresponding but opposite manner to offset changes in the
value of our investments due to changes in underlying U.S.
Treasury interest rates and, to a lesser degree, swap spreads. For
example, as underlying interest rates fall, the value of our fixed-
rate investment increases, while the value of our derivative and
other risk management transaction dectines. Conversely, as
underlying interest rates rise, the value of our fixed-rate
investment falls while the value of our derivative and other risk
management transaction increases. We use forward starting inter-
est rate swaps to hedge the variability of changes in the
interest-related cash outfiows on our forecasted future borrow-
ings. Interest rate swaps are agreements between two parties to
exchange, at particular intervals, payment streams calculated on
a specified notional amount. The interest rate swaps that we
have entered into are single currency interest rate swaps and, as
such, do not require the exchange of a notional amount. As of
December 31, 2006, we were hedging our exposure to such
variability through October 2016.

Some assets, including investments in franchise loans and
development loans and subordinated CMBS securities, may not
be hedged at all. We intend generally to continue to seek to
manage our interest rate exposure taking into account the cost
of such derivative and other risk management transactions and
the limitations on derivative and other risk management
transactions imposed by the REIT tax rules.

REVENUE CONCENTRATIONS IN 2006

None of our tenants accounted for more than 10% of our total
revenues during 2006. Two of our tenants, Acn Corporation and
the United States Government, accounted for more than 10% of
our total revenue from our owned real properties segment (i.e.,
our operating real estate segment). We had no revenue concen-
trations of greater than 10% in our loan and securities segment
(i.e.. lending investments),
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ASSET PIPELINE

Owned Property Pipeline

Our owned property pipeline includes potential acquisitions in
various stages of review. We generally have from 5 to 10 poten-
tial transactions in different stages in our property acquisition
qualificatian, pricing and due diligence process at any given
time. Once we determine that a transaction meets our criteria
for purchase, we negotiate an expression of interest or proceed
directly to a purchase and sale agreement with the owner for
the purchase of the property. The expression of interest does
not hind us to purchase, but may bind the seller not to accept
another offer to purchase the property during the negotiation of
a purchase and sale contract. We generally seek to negotiate a
due diligence period during which we can terminate our obliga-
tions for any reason and receive back any deposit we paid into
escrow. After that due diligence period, any deposit we paid into
escrow typically becomes non-refundable. We seek to close our
real property acquisitions within four to eight weeks after the
purchase and sale agreement is signed.

Loan Pipeline

Our loan pipeline includes potential loans in various stages of
review. We receive frequent requests for net lease or other single
tenant financing and typically have several potential transac-
tions in different stages in our loan origination quatification,
pricing and due diligence process at any given time. Once we
have reviewed and determined that a lease is financeable under
our program, we will, at the borrower's request, issue a term
sheet, which briefly outlines the pricing and terms under which
we propose to finance the property. Upon acceptance of the term
sheet by the borrower, we issue a form of application, which sets
forth the detailed terms of the transaction. Once the borrower
signs an application and delivers it to us with a deposit and the
application is accepted, we consider such loans to be committed
loans, subject to our due diligence process and final approval

by our investment committee. We generally close a committed
loan within four to eight weeks after the application is signed.
At any time from the date of acceptance of the application until
closing, the borrower may lock in the interest rate on the loan
by submission of an additional deposit, payment of an additional
fee and execution of a rate lock agreement.

ORIGINATION NETWORK

We maintain a comprehensive marketing, advertising and public
relations program that supports our origination efforts. The
objective of the program is to build our name recognition and
credibility and to promote our products. We believe, based upon
our experience and responses from customers, that we have
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been suceessful in achieving our objectives of market awareness
and prominence.

Property Acquisitions

Since our initial public offering, we have teveraged our relation-
ships within our loan origination business and our knowledge
of the net lease and other single tenant business to develop
relationships with investment sale brokers, through which we
primarily identify real property for purchase. We also source
property acquisition opportunities directly from developers and
owners or investors in real estate assets. Because of the inherent
synergies among our products, from time to time we identify
property acquisition opportunities through our loan origination
network and vice versa.

Our property acquisition network is smaller and less special-
ized than our loan origination network. As a result, we have
found that our sources for property acquisition opportunities
require less marketing and training efforts than those required in
our loan origination business. We frequently meet with invest-
ment sale brokers to discuss our investment criteria. We alse
include members of our property acquisition network on distribu-
tions of our bimonthly newsletters, brochures and other written
marketing materials.

Loan Origination

Our principal source of loan origination is our national network
of independent mortgage brokers. We also originate loans
directly from developers and owners or investors in net leased
or other single tenant properties. A significant portion of our
loan business is with repeat customers.

Mortgage brokers working with net lease products need
specialized knowledge and skills not generally required for tradi-
tional real estate debt and equity activities. We routinely meet
with mortgage brokers to discuss the latest developments in net
tease financing. As part of our efforts to educate our mortgage
broker network about net lease financing, we provide bimenthly
newsletters, brochures and other written material intended
to keep mortgage brokers up to date on the latest underwrit-
ing requirements for net lease financings and net leases, lease
enhancements, and changes in tenant credit ratings, as well as
to provide information on our latest programs.

UNDERWRITING PROCESS

Once a prospective investment opportunity is identified, the
potential transaction undergoes a comprehensive underwriting
and due diligence process that is overseen by our investment
committee, which consists of six of our key employees, including
the chief executive officer, president, chief financial officer and
chief investment officer, The focus of our asset underwriting falls



into three primary areas:

® credit and financial reviews of the tenant as well as an
assessment of the tenant's business, the overall industry
segment and the tenant's market position within the industry;

B |ease quality, including an analysis of the term, tenant termi-
nation and abatement rights, landlord obligations and other
lease provisions; and

% 3 real estate fundamentals review and analysis.

The credit quality of the tenant under the lease is an important
aspect of the underwriting of the transaction. Prior to entering
into any transaction, our underwriter, assisted by our chief
investment officer and chief financial officer as necessary,
conducts a review of the tenant’s credit quality. This review may
include reviews of publicly available information, including any
public credit ratings, audited financial statements, debt and
equity analyst reports, and reviews of corporate credit spreads,
stock prices and market capitalization.

While we have no defined minimum credit rating or balance
sheet size for tenants, we anticipate that a significant majority
of the tenants underlying our investments will have investment
grade or implied investment grade credit ratings. For those ten-
ants that either are below investment grade or are unrated, we
may conduct additional due diligence, including additional finan-
cial reviews of the tenant and a more comprehensive review of
the business segment and industry in which the tenant operates.

Assuming that the credit of the tenant under the lease is
satisfactory, a thorough review is then conducted into the qual-
ity of the lease, focusing primarily on the landlord’s obligations
under the lease and those provisions of the lease that would
permit the tenant to terminate or abate rent prior to the conclu-
sion of the primary lease term. We analyze the lease to ensure
that all or substantially all of the property expenses are borne
by the tenant or that any property expenses not borne by the
tenant are sufficiently underwritten to assure that we can isolate
a predictable cash flow from the asset. For our loan invest-
ments, we isolate any tease provisions that provide for tenant
abatement or termination rights or landlord's obligations, and
determine whether to apply appropriate forms of {ease enhance-
ments, including as necessary, specialized insurance, reserves
or debt service coverage covenants. In addition, each lease is
reviewed by outside counsel and a lease summary is provided to
our underwriter for use in underwriting the transaction.

Finally, we conduct a review with respect to the quality of
the real estate subject to the lease. In all cases, the property
is reviewed from a traditional real estate perspective, including
quality of construction and maintenance, location and value of
the real estate and technical issues such as title, survey and
environmental. As necessary, appraisals and environmental and
engineering reports are obtained from third-parties and reviewed
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by our underwriter and/or legal counsel. The level of additional

review will then vary depending on whether the investment is an

owned property or a loan. For our owned properties, we thor-
oughly review the property’s real estate fundamentals, including
location and type of the property, vacancy rates and trends in
vacancy rates in the property’s market, rental rates within the
property’s market, recent sales prices and demographics in the
property’s market. As described in detail under “Our Portfo-
lio—Owned Properties” above, we target properties with one or
more of the following: located in a primary metropolitan market,
fungible asset type, barriers to entry in the market, and a core
facility of the tenant. In addition, we may evaluate, or engage

a third-party provider to evaluate, alternative uses for the real

estate and the costs associated with converting to such alterna-

tive uses, as well as examine the surrounding real estate market
in greater detail.

In the case of a loan to a property owner, our real estate
due diligence includes a review of the background and financial
capabilities of the owner.

In the case of (MBS investments, our underwriter, assisted by
our chief investment officer and chief financial officer, thorough-
ly evaluates the credit, the legal and financial structures and the
collateral quality underlying the transaction.

In addition to our review of the quality of any individual
transaction, our investment committee also:
® evaluates our current portfolio, including consideration of

how the subject transaction affects asset diversity and credit

concentrations in the tenant, industry or credit level;

= determines whether we can implement appropriate legal and
financial structures, including our ability to control the asset
in a variety of circumstances, such as an event of default by
the tenant or the borrower, as applicable;

% evaluates the leveraged and unleveraged yield on the asset
and how that yield compares to our target yields for that
asset class and our analysis of the risk profile of the invest-
ment; and

" determines our plans for financing and hedging the asset.

We use integrated systems such as customized software and
models to support our decisions on pricing and structuring
investments. Before issuing any form of commitment to fund an
investment transaction, the transaction must be approved by our
investment committee. Our investment committee consists of
our chief executive officer, president, chief financial officer,
chief investment officer, and two of our senior originators. The
committee meets frequently and on an as-needed basis to
evaluate potential investments.

In addition, we have a four-member investment oversight
committee of our board of directors, which approves all
transactions in excess of $50.0 million. Qur chief executive
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officer is the only member of this committee who is an employee
of our company.

We believe that we can continue to grow our business more
rapidly than we need to expand our general and administrative
costs and headcount.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

We manage a diverse portfolio of real estate assets. For our
owned properties where we are responsible for day-to-day
management of the property, we typically hire third party prop-
erty managers who are overseen by employees of our company.
Our owried property investments also require that we perform a
variety of asset management functions, such as:

% meeting periodically with our tenants;

® monitoring lease expirations and tenant space requirements;
" monitoring the financial condition and credit ratings of our
tenants;

performing physical inspections of our properties;

making periodic improvements to properties where required;
monitoring portfolio concentrations (e.g., tenant, industry); and
monitoring real estate market conditions where we own

properties.
ASSET SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM

We aiso have created an on-going asset surveillance system that

allows us to:

® track the status of our assets and asset opportunities;

% link into a management program that includes the underlying
asset origination or acquisition documents;

8 |pad expected asset cash flows from our underwriting files
into the system;

® import data from the system into our financial accounting
system;

® monitor actual cash flows on each asset through servicer
reports;

® immediately identify issues such as non-payment of rent and
servicer advances of rent or debt service through servicer
exception reports;

® track credit ratings of underlying tenants; and

® compute coverage and compliance tests for our CDO
transactions.

Through this single system we are able to track and document
the entire lifecycle of our assets,
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CLOSING PROCESS

From the time we begin to consider an investment until the
investment is closed, the prospective transaction undergoes a
variety of defined steps and procedures. In connection with the
closing process, we will typically need to rely on certain third
parties not under our control, including tenants, borrowers,
sellers, warehouse lenders, brokers, outside counsel, insurance
companies, title companies, environmental consultants,
appraisers, engineering consultants and other product or service
providers. Our personnel carefully manage the closing process
and have developed a streamlined set of procedures, checklists
and relationships with many of the third-party providers with
whom we do business on an on-going basis.

As set forth above under “Underwriting Process” above, each
transaction goes through a multi-stage underwriting process
including review by our investment committee. Transaction
underwriting and the documentary process surrounding it is
supported by the use of standardized transaction documents,
including closing checklists and form acquisition and loan
documents, and is further supported by proprietary underwriting
and pricing software. All of our transactions are closed by our
in-house ¢losing and underwriting staff, many of whom have
more than five years of experience with us. That staff seeks to
close our loan transactions four to eight weeks after the applica-
tion is signed and close property acguisitions four to eight
weeks after a purchase and sale agreement is signed, while at
the same time maintaining our underwriting standards.

COMPETITION

We are subject to significant competition in each of our business
segments. We compete with specialty finance companies, insur-
ance companies, commercial banks, investment banks, savings
and loan associations, mortgage bankers, mutual funds, institu-
tional investors, pension funds, hedge funds, other lenders,
governmental bodies and individuals and other entities, includ-
ing REITs. We may face new competitors and, due to our focus
on net lease and other single tenant properties located through-
out the United States, and because many of our competitors
are locally and/or regionally focused, we will not encounter the
same competitors in each region of the United States.

Many of our competitors have greater financial and other
resources and may have other advantages over our company.
Our competitors may be willing to accept lower returns on their
investments and may succeed in buying the assets that we have i
targeted for acquisition. We may also incur costs on unsuccessful
acquisitions that we will not be able to recover.




ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, a
current owner of real estate may be required to investigate and
clean up contaminated property. Under these laws, courts and
government agencies have the authority to impose cleanup
responsibility and liability even if the owner did not know of and
was not responsible for the contamination. For example, Liability
can be imposed upon us based on the activities of our tenants or
a prior owner. In addition to the cost of the cleanup,
environmental contamination on a property may adversely affect
the value of the property and our ability to sell, rent or finance
the property, and may adversely impact our investment in

that property.

Prior to acquisition of a property, we obtain Phase I environ-
mental reports. These reports are prepared in accordance with
an appropriate level of due diligence based on our underwrit-
ing standards and generally include a physical site inspection,

a review of relevant federal, state and local environmental and
health agency database records, one or more interviews with
appropriate site-related personnel, review of the property’s chain
of title and review of historic aerial photographs and other
information on past uses of the property and nearby or adjoining
properties. We may also obtain a Phase II investigation which
may include limited subsurface investigations and tests for
substances of concern where the results of the Phase I environ-
mental reports or other information indicates possible contami-
nation or where our consultants recommend such procedures.

We believe that our portfolio is in compliance in all material
respects with all federal, state and local laws and regulations
regarding hazardous or toxic substances and other environmen-
tal matters.

At December 31, 2006, we were not aware of any environ-
mental concerns that would have a material adverse effect on
our financial position or results of operations,

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, we had 21 employees. We have an
experienced staff, many of the members of which have been
previously employed by the real estate departments from major
financial institutions, law firms and rating agencies. We believe
that our relations with our employees are good. None of our
employees are unionized.

BUSINESS

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports,
proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Inves-
tors may read and copy any document that we file, including
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, at the SEC's Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, [.C, 20549. Investors
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC
maintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, from which
investors can electronically access our SEC filings.

We also make available free of charge on or through our
Web site {www.caplease.com), our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repoerts on Form 8-K
and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electroni-
cally file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Investors
can access our filings with the SEC by visiting the investor rela-
tions section of our web site at www.caplease.com.

The information on our web site is not, and shall not be
deemed to be, a part of this report or incorporated into any
other filings we make with the SEC.
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RISK FACTORS

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Set forth below and elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K
and in other documents we file or furnish with the SEC are risks
and uncertainties that could adversely affect our business and
operations and cause actual results to differ materially from the
results contemplated by any forward-looking statements made by
us or on our behalf.

RISKS RELATED TO OPERATIONS

The market price of our stock may be adversely impacted by
our pace of investment activity.

The markets in which we compete for investments are highly
competitive and our pace of investment activity continues to be
impacted by competitive conditions. If our pace of investment
activity does not match market expectations the market price of
our stock could be adversely affected.

We conduct a significant part of our business with Wachovia
Bank, N.A. and its affiliates, and their continued business
with us is not guaranteed.

We rely on Wachovia Bank, N.A. and its affiliates in various

aspects of our business. For example:

® Wachovia Bank, N.A. and its affiliates provide us with short-
term financing through a repurchase agreement and a real
property acquisition facility.

B Many of our real property acquisitions have been and we
expect will continue to be financed on & long-term basis
through traditional mortgage debt obtained from Wachovia
Bank.

" Affiliates of Wachovia Bank, N.A, have performed investment
banking services for us, including in connection with our ini-
tial public offering, our initial CDO transaction and our Series
A preferred stock and first follow-on common stock offering.

® Wachovia Bank, N.A. acts as loan servicer of our loan invest-
ments financed under our repurchase facility.

2 We enter into derivative transactions from time to time with
Wachovia Bank, N.A,

These parties are not obligated to do business with us, and

any adverse developments in their business or in our relation-
ship with them could result in these parties choosing not to do
business with us or a significant reduction in our business with
them. Termination of our business with Wachovia Bank, N.A. or
its affiliates or a significant reduction in our business with these
parties could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.
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If we lower our dividend, the market value of our common
stock may decline,

The level of our commaon stock dividend is established by our
board of directors from time to time based on a variety of fac-
tors, including our cash available for distribution, our funds from
operations and our maintenance of REIT status. Various factors
could cause our board of directors to decrease our common stock
dividend level, including tenant defaults resulting in a material
reduction in our cash flows or a material loss resulting from an
adverse change in one or more of the tenants underlying our
investments. If we are required to lower our common stock divi-
dend, the market value of common stock in our company could
he adversely affected.

RISKS RELATED TO PORTFOLIO ASSETS

Single tenant leases involve significant risks of

tenant default.

We focus our investment activities on properties and loans on
properties that are leased to single tenants. Therefore, a default
by the sole tenant is likely to cause a significant or complete
reduction in the cash flows from that investment and a reduction
in the value of our investment.

An adverse change in the financial condition of one or more

tenants underlying our investments could have a material

adverse impact on us.

We make portfotio investments based on the financial strength

of the underlying tenant and our expectations of their continued

payment of rent under the lease. We rely on rent payments under |

the lease for our cash flows. Therefore, adverse changes in the

financial condition of the tenants or the certainty of their ability

to pay rents could have a material adverse impact on us.

For example:

® The bankruptcy or insolvency of any of our tenants could re-
sult in that tenant ceasing to make rental payments, resulting
in a reduction of our cash flows and losses to our company.

® The value of our investments is substantially driven by the
credit quality of the underlying tenant or tenants, and an
adverse change in the subject tenant’s financial condition or
a decline in the credit rating of such tenant may result in a
decline in the value of our investments and a charge to our
income statement.

®  An adverse change in the financial condition of one or more
tenants underlying our investments or a decline in the credit |
rating of one or more tenants underlying our investments
could result in a margin call if the related asset is being
financed on our short-term barrowing facilities, and could
make it more difficult for us to arrange long-term financing
for that asset, including by increasing our cost of financing.




B We own the subordinate classes in our CDO financings. If the
underlying tenant on any asset financed in our CDO fails to
make rental payments, we may fail to satisfy coverage tests
under the CDO, which could result in our cash flows from the
assets in the CDO being redirected to senior class owners,

We are subject to tenant credit concentrations that make

us more susceptible to adverse events with respect to

certain tenants.

We are subject to the following tenant credit concentrations as

of December 31, 2006:

® approximately $207.4 million, or 13.2%, of our assets in
portfolio invoive properties leased to the United States
Government;

" approximately $91.0 million, or 5.8%, of our assets in portfo-
lio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by, TJX
Companies, Inc.;

B approximately $87.5 million, or 5.6%, of our assets in port-
folio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by,
Lowe's Companies Inc.; and

® approximately $81.4 million, or 5.2%, of our assets in portfo-
lio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by, Aon
Corporation.

Any bankruptcy, insolvency or failure to make rental payments
by, or any adverse change in the financial condition of, ane or
more of these tenants, or any other tenant to whom we may
have a significant credit concentration in the future, could result
in a material reduction of our cash flows or material losses to
our company.

We are subject to tenant industry concentrations that

make us more susceptible to adverse events with respect

to certain industries.

We are subject to the following industry concentrations as of

December 31, 2006:

® approximately $199.3 miltion, or 12.7%, of our assets in
portfolio involve properties leased to, or leases quaranteed
by, companies in the insurance industry (e.g., Aon Corpora-
tion, Allstate Insurance Company, Farmers New Warld Life
Insurance Company, Aetna Life Insurance Company);

B approximately $138.5 million, or 8.8%, of our assets in port-
folio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by,
companies in the retail department stores industry (e.g., TIX
Companies, Inc., Kohl's Corporation);

® approximately $104.3 million, or 6.6%, of our assets in port-
folio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by,
companies in the retail home improvements industry (e.q.,
Lowe's Companies, Inc., Home Depot USA, Inc.);
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B approximately $89.3 mitlion, or 5.7%, of our assets in port-
folio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by,
companies in the retail drug industry (e.g., CVS Corporation,
Walgreen Co.); and

® approximately $83.9 million, or 5.3%, of our assets in port-
folio involve properties leased to, or leases guaranteed by,
companies in the banking industry (e.g., AmeriCredit Corp.,
Capital One Financial Corporation, Harris Bankcorp, Inc., Bank
of America, N.A., National Gity Bank).

Any downturn in one or more of these industries, or in any other
industry in which we may have a significant credit concentration
in the future, could result in a material reduction of our cash
flows or material losses to our company.

We are subject to geographic concentrations that make us

more susceptible to adverse events in these areas.

We are subject to the following geographic concentrations as of

December 31, 2006:

¥ approximately $181.0 million, or 11.5%, of our assets in
portfolio are investments in properties located in the
Chicago, Illinois metropolitan area;

% approximately $178.6 million, or 11.3%, of our assets in
portfolic are investments in properties located in the
Washington, D.C. metropolitan area;

B approximately $146.1 million, or 9.3%, of our assets in port-
folio are investments in properties located in the New York
(City and Northern New Jarsey area;

® approximately $135.2 million, or 8.6%, of our assets in
portfolio are investments in properties located in the
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania metropolitan area; and

" approximately $93.3 million, or 5.9%, of our assets in portfo-
lio are investments in properties located in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area.

An economic dewnturn or other adverse events or conditions
such as terrorist attacks or natural disasters in one or more of
these areas, or any other area where we may have a significant
credit concentration in the future, could result in a matenal
reduction of our cash flows or material losses to our company,

Our investments in assets backed by below investment grade
credits have a greater risk of default.

We invest in assets where the underlying tenant’s credit rating
is below investment grade (approximately $214.5 million, or
13.6%, of our assets in portfolio as of December 31, 2006).
These investments will have a greater risk of default and
bankruptcy than investments in properties leased exclusively to
investment grade tenants.
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Our investments in assets where we obtain “private” credit
ratings expose us to certain risks.

In order to effectively implement our financing strategy, we are
required to have ratings for all of the underlying tenants on our
loans and properties. When we invest in a loan or property where
the underlying tenant does not have a publicly available credit
rating, we rely on our own estimates of the tenant’s credit rating
and later obtain a private rating from S&P or Moody's to allow
us to finance the asset as we had planned. If S&P or Moody's
disagrees with our ratings estimates, we may not be able to
obtain our desired level of leverage and/or our financing costs
may exceed those that we projected. This outcome could have
an adverse impact on our returns on that asset and hence our
operating results.

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF REAL ESTATE

Bankruptcy laws will limit our remedies if a tenant becomes
bankrupt and rejects our lease.

We rely on rent payments under our tease with the tenant to fund
our financing of the property and to generate the spread we earn
on the asset. If the tenant becomes insolvent or bankrupt, our
lease may be rejected and rent payments could cease. In such

a case, our remedies will be limited under the United States Bank-
ruptcy Code. We may not be able to recover the premises promptly
from the tenant and our claim for damages, which is limited to
rent under the lease for the greater of one year or 15 percent

(but not more than three years) of the remaining term, plus rent
already due but unpaid, may not be sufficient to cover our debt
service and any other expenses with respect to the property.

The success of our owned properties business will depend

on our ability to obtain third-party management for the real
properties we purchase. '

For certain of our owned properties, we are responsible for
day-to-day management of the property. In these instances, we
typically retain third party property managers to perform our
obligations. A failure of these managers or us to perform could
trigger the tenant’s right to terminate the lease or abate rent. In
addition, if the managers or we fail to perform our cbligations in
a cost-effective manner, our returns and net cash flows from the
property and hence our overall operating results and cash flows
could be materially adversely affected.

Operating expenses of our properties could reduce our cash
flow and funds available for future dividends.

For certain of our owned properties, we are responsible for oper-
ating costs of the property. In these instances, our lease requires
the tenant to reimburse us for atl or a portion of these costs,
either in the form of an expense reimbursement or increased
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rent. Qur reimbursement may be limited to a fixed amount or 2
specified percentage annually. To the extent operating costs ex-
ceed our reimbursement, our returns and net cash flows from the
property and hence our gverall operating results and cash flows
coutd be materially adversely affected.

We have greater exposure to operating costs when we invest
in owned properties leased to the United States Government.
Our leases with the United States Government are typical Govern-
ment Services Administration, or GSA, type leases. These leases
do not provide that the United States Government is wholly
responsible for operating costs of the property, but include

an operating cost compoenent within the rent we receive that
increases annually by an agreed upon percentage based upen the
Consumer Price Index, or CPI. Thus, we have greater exposure

to operating costs on our properties leased to the United States
Government because if the operating costs of the property
increase faster than CPI, we will bear those excess costs.

We may not be able to renew our leases or re-lease our
properties.

Upon the expiration of leases on our properties, we may not be
able to re-let all or a portion of that property, or the terms of
re-letting (including the cost of concessions to tenants) may

be less favorable to us than current lease terms. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to retain tenants upon the
expiration of their leases. If we are unable to re-let promptly, or
if the rental rates upon re-letting are significantly lower than the
current rates, our financial condition and operating results will
be adversely affected.

It may be difficult for us to buy and sell real estate quickly.
Real estate investments are relatively illiquid. Our ability to vary
our portfolio by selling and buying properties in response to
changes in economic and other conditions is limited. In
addition, the mortgage debt we put on the property and REIT tax
requirements restrict our ability to quickly re-sell properties we
have purchased. If we must sell a property, we cannot assure you
that we will be able to dispose of the property in the time period
we desire or that the sales price of the property will recoup or
exceed our cost for the property.

An uninsured loss or a loss that exceeds the insurance policy
limits on our owned properties could subject us to lost
capital or revenue on those properties.

Our comprehensive loss insurance policies may include substantial
deductibles and certain exctusions. For example, our earthquake
insurance coverage for properties we own in seismic zones 3 or

4 will typically include a customary deductible of five percent

of our insurable value. If we are subject to an uninsured loss or



a loss that s subject to a substantial deductible, we could lose
part of our capital invested in, and anticipated revenue from,
the property, which could harm our operating results and finan-
cial condition and our ability to pay dividends.

Noncompliance with environmental laws could adversely
affect our financial condition and operating results.

The real properties we own are subject to various federal, state
and local environmental laws. Under these laws, courts and
government agencies have the authority to require the current
owner of a contaminated property to clean up the property, even
if the owner did not know of and was not responsible for the
contamination. for example, liability can be imposed upon us
based on activities of one of our tenants or a prior owner,

Prior to acquisition of a property, we obtain Phase I envi-
ronmental reports and, in some cases, a Phase II environmental
report. However, these reports may not reveal all environmental
conditions at a property and we may incur material environmen-
tal liabilities of which we are unaware. The costs incurred to
clean up a contaminated property, to defend against a claim, or
to comply with environmental laws could be materiat and could
adversely affect our financial condition and operating results.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks particular to

real property.

As an owner of real property (including any real property we

may acquire upon a loan foreclosure), we are subject to various

additional risks not otherwise discussed in these risk factors
and generally incident to the ownership of the real estate. These
risks may include thase listed below:

% civil unrest, acts of God, including earthquakes, floods and
other natural disasters, which may result in uninsured losses,
and acts of war or terrorism, including the consequences of
the terrorist attacks, such as those that occurred on Septem-
ber 11, 2001;

® adverse changes in national and local economic and market
conditions;

® the costs of complying or fines or damages as a result of
non-cempliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act;

® changes in governmental laws and regulations, fiscal policies
and zoning ordinances and the related costs of compliance
with laws and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinances;

¥ the ongoing need for capital improvements, particularly in
older structures; and

" other circumstances beyond our control.

Should any of these events occur, our financial condition and
operating results could be adversely affected.

RISK FACTORS

RISKS RELATED TO DEBT ASSETS

Our investments in commercial mortgage-backed securities
may be subordinated,

As of December 31, 2006, our (MBS investments included $51.6
mitlion of helaw investment grade band classes (approximately
3.3% of our assets in portfolio as of December 31, 2006). Gener-
ally, these classes represent subordinate classes of the securi-
tization pool, meaning that we hold the “first loss” position or

a near “first loss” position in the event of losses on the assets
within the pool. We may not be able to recover our investment in
these subordinated CMBS classes. In addition, the value of these
subordinated investments may be adversely affected by defaults
or decreases in the value of the underlying collateral, increases in
market rates for similar collateral pools or economic downturns,
and we may be required under GAAP to record an impairment loss
on our investment if any of these developments occur.

We have limited recourse in the event of a default on any of
our mortgage loans.

Our mortgage loan investments are non-recourse obligations of
the property owner, and, in the event of default, we are generaily
dependent entirely on the loan collateral to recover our invest-
ment. Our loan collateral consists of a mortgage on the underly-
ing property and an assignment of the tenant’s lease. To the
extent the tenant fails to make its lease payments, recovery of
our investment will depend upon the liquidation value of the
underlying real property. The liguidation value of a commercial
property may he adversely affected by risks generally incident

to interests in real property, including changes in general or
local economic conditions and/or specific industry segments,
declines in real estate values, increases in interast rates, real
estate tax rates and other operating expenses including energy
costs, changes in governmental rules, requlations and fiscal poli-
cies, including environmental legislation, acts of God, and other
factors which are beyond our or our borrower's control. There
can be no assurance that our remedies with respect to the loan
cotlateral will provide us with a recovery adequate to recover our
investment.

We may experience losses on our mortgage loans.

We originate mortgage loans on properties subject to a net

lease as part of our investment strategy. The typical net lease
requires the borrower or tenant to maintain casualty insurance
on the underlying property. These insurance policies may include
substantial deductibles and certain exclusions. If the underlying
property is subject to a casualty loss that is uninsured or subject
to a substantial deductible, rent payments on the related lease
may cease, our loan may default and we could lose some or all of
our investment.
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Our collateral rights under our 10-year credit tenant loan
program are limited.

As part of our 10-year credit tenant loan program, we split a
loan secured by a mortgage on real estate and an assignment
of the lease on the property into two notes, a real estate note
{which we generally sell promptly following origination), and

a corporate credit note (which we retain in our portfolio). The
corporate credit note has a junior claim on the real estate mort-
gage. Further, while the corporate credit note has a first priority
claim on the lease assignment in a tenant bankruptcy, our claim
for damages will be limited to an amount defined under the
Bankruptcy Code (the greater of one year's rent or 15% {but not
mare than three years) of rent over the remaining lease term,
plus rent already due but unpaid). Therefore, in the event of a
default on the loan, our collateral rights on our corporate credit
notes will be more limited than the collateral rights we have
under our long-term mortgage loans.

Our mezzanine investments have a greater risk of loss than
mortgage loans.

We make mezzanine and other generally subordinate invest-
ments. These investments generally involve a higher degree of
risk than our first mortgage loans. While we expect most of these
investments will be secured, we expect our right to payment

and security interest will be subordinated to one or more senior
tenders. Therefore, we may be limited in our rights to collect
scheduled payments on these investments and to recover any of
our investment through a foreclosure of collateral.

Qur mezzanine investments may also include an interest
only payment schedule, with the principal amount remaining
outstanding and at risk until the maturity of the obligation. In
this case, a borrower's ability to repay its obligation may be
dependent upon a liquidity event, such as a sale or refinancing
of the related property or other collateral.

We may be subject to losses from the investments we make
in franchise loans.

During 2006, we entered into a revolving credit agreement

with a third party borrower. We agreed to fund loans from time
to time of up to $12 million to support the borrower’s capital
contributions to a jeint venture that makes franchise loans to
franchisees of YUM! Brands, Inc. restaurant concepts such as
Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken and Pizza Hut. These loans

are secured by a pledge of the borrower’s interest in the joint
venture and a limited guarantee by one of the principals of the
borrower. We alsc have made and may make in the future invest-
ments in franchise loans funded outside of the joint venture. Our
loans expose us to various unique risks, which could result in
losses to us. These risks include the following:

® Because our investments ultimately fund franchise loans,
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our ability to collect interest on and principal at maturity of
our loans will be dependent upon the financial health of the
underlying franchisees’ business. We have very limited experi-
ence evaluating franchise loans and we do not re-underwrite
the underlying franchise loans, but rely primarily on the un-
derwriting effarts performed by or on behalf of our borrower.

% QOur loans are typically interest only with a balloon payment
due at matunty.

B Adverse events with respect to one or more of the YUM!
Brands franchises, such as the recent E. coli outbreak as-
sociated with Taco Bell Stores, could adversely impact the
underlying franchisee borrowers and hence our investment.

® A third party lender has a first priority lien in the underlying
franchise loans, and therefore, our collateral is limited in the
event of a default by our borrower as a result of non-payment
by a franchisee.

Development loans involve greater risk of loss than loans
secured by income producing properties.

We make investments in development loans that involve a higher
degree of risk than long-term senior mortgage loans secured

by income-producing real property, due to a variety of factors.
These factors include the subordinate status of our loan invest-
ment, dependence for repayment on successful completion and
operation of the project, difficulties in estimating construction
or rehabilitation costs, loan terms that often require little or no
amortization, and the possibility that a foreclosure by the holder
of the senior loan could result in a substantial decrease in the
value of our collateral. Accordingly, in the event of a borrower
default, we may not recover some or all of our investment in our
development loans.

Fluctuating interest rates may adversely affect the quantity
of loan assets we can originate.

Higher interest rates may reduce overall demand for loans and
accordingly reduce our origination of loan assets, which could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
operating results.

Unscheduled principal payments on our loans could adversety
affect our financial condition and operating results.

The rate and timing of unscheduled payments of principal on
our loans is impossible to predict accurately and will be affected
by a variety of factors, including the level of prevailing interest
rates, restrictions on voluntary prepayments contained in the
loans, the availability of credit generally and other economic,
demographic, geographic, tax and legal factors. In general,
however, if prevailing interest rates fall significantly below the
interest rate on a loan, the borrower is more likely to prepay the
then higher-rate loan than if prevailing rates remain at or above




the interest rate on the {oan.

While our loan documents generally prohibit prepayment
without a premium to preserve our yield, this premium may not
be required or may not be recoverable under various circum-
stances, including in the event of a casualty or condemnation
of the related property or a loan default. Unscheduled principal
prepayments could adversely affect our financial condition and
operating results to the extent we are unable to reinvest the
funds we receive at an equivalent or higher yield rate. In addi-
tion, a large amount of prepayments, especially prepayments on
loans with interest rates that are high relative to the rest of our
portfolia, will likely decrease the overall spread we anticipate
receiving on our portfolio.

We may be required to repurchase assets that we have sold or
to indemnify holders of our CDOs.

If any of the assets we originate or acquire and sell or pledge to
obtain leng-term financing do not comply with representations
and warranties that we make about certain characteristics of the
assets, the borrowers and the underlying properties, we may be
required to repurchase those assets or replace them with substi-
tute assets, In addition, in the case of assets that we have sold,
we may be required to indemnify persons for losses or expenses
incurred as a result of a breach of a representation or warranty.
Repurchased assets may require a significant allocation of
waorking capital to carry on our books, and our ability to borrow
against such assets may be limited. Any significant repurchases
or indemnification payments could materially and adversely
affect our financial condition and operating results.

The success of our loan business will depend upon our ability
to service effectively, or to obtain effective third-party
servicing for, the loans we invest in,

We have entered into a servicing arrangement with Wachovia
Bank, N.A, for servicing of our loans. We may in the future
undertake to retain the servicing of our loan assets. We have no
experience servicing a large portfolio of loans for an extended
period of time. We cannot assure you that our third-party
contractor or we will be able to service the loans according to
industry standards. Failure to service the loans properly could
harm our financial condition and operating results.

Maintenance of our Investment Company Act of 1940
exemption imposes limits on our operations.

We intend to continue to conduct our business in a manner that
allows us to avoid registration as an investment company under
the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”). Under
Section 3(c){5)(C) of the 1940 Act, entities that are primarily
engaged in the business of purchasing or otherwise acquiring
“mortgages and other liens on and interests in real estate” are

RISK FACTORS

not treated as investment companies. The position of the SEC
staff generally requires us to maintain at least 55% of our assets
directly in qualifying real estate interests in order for us to rely
on this exemption (the “55% Requirement”). To constitute a
qualifying real estate interest under this 55% Requirement, a
real estate interest must meet various criterfa. Mortgage securi-
ties that do not represent all of the certificates issued with
respect to an underlying pool of mortgages may be treated as
securities separate from the underlying mortgage loans and,
thus, may not qualify for purposes of the 55% Requirement. Our
ownership of these mortgage securities, therefore, is limited by
the provisions of the 1940 Act and SEC staff interpretations. We
cannot assure you that efforts to pursue our investment strategy
will not be adversely affected by operation of the 1940 Act.

RISKS RELATED TO BORROWINGS

Leveraging our portfolio is an important component of our

strategy and subjects us to increased risk of loss.

A key component of our strategy is to borrow against, or lever-

age, our assets to allow us to invest in a greater number of

assets and enhance our asset returns. However, leverage also
subjects us to increased risk of loss. The use of leverage may
result in increased losses to us in the following ways:

% We rely on the cash flows from the assets financed to fund
our debt service requirements. Therefore, in the event of a
tenant default on its rent payments, our losses are expected
to increase as we will need to fund our debt service require-
ments from other sources.

® To the extent we have financed our assets under our variable
rate short-term borrowing facilities, our debt service require-
ments will increase as short-term interest rates nse. There-
fore, if short-term interest rates rise in excess of the yields
on our assets financed, we will be subject to losses.

® Qur lenders will have a first priority claim on the collateral we
pledge and the right to foreclose on the collateral. Therefore,
if we default on our debt service obligations, we would be at
risk of losing the related collateral.

® Qur short-term borrowing facilities are fully recourse lending
arrangements. Therefore, if we default on these obligations,
our lenders will have general recourse to our company’s as-
sets, rather than limited recourse to just the assets financed.

Increases in our cost of financing may cause our expected
spreads on new assets to erode.

The profitability of our portfolio (and, in turn, our business) is
driven by the returns on our assets, based on the spread between
the yields generated by our assets and the cost of financing

our portfolio. We generally secure long-term financing for our
assets after we agree to acquire them, Therefore, if our cost to
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finance our assets increases over our assumptions at the time we

commit to invest, the spread we expected to earn on the asset

(and hence our overall portfolio) will erode. Various factors could

cause our financing cost to increase, including:

% a decline in the credit rating of the underlying tenant;

B increases in long-term interest rates;

® market dislocations caused by the failure or financial
difficulties of a large financial institution or institutions;

8 jneffectiveness of our hedging strategies;

® weakening economic conditions; and

B |Inited States military activity and terrorist activities.

Spread erosion could have a material adverse effect on our cash
flows, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to implement our long-term

financing strategy.

We secure long-term financing of our assets to enable us to

invest in a greater number of assets and enhance our asset

returns. We expect our leverage to average 70% to 85% of our

assets in portfolie. Qur ability to imptement our {ong-term

financing strategy is subject to the following risks:

B We may not be able to achieve our desired leverage level due
to decreases in the market value of our assets, increases in
interest rates and other factors.

" We are subject to conditions in the mortgage, (DO and other
long-term financing markets which are beyand our control,
including the liquidity of these markets and maintenance of
attractive credit spreads.

B In the event of an adverse change in the financial condition
of our underlying tenant, it may not be possible or it may be
uneconomical for us to obtain long-term financing for the
subject asset.

Our inability to implement our long-term financing strategy may
cause us to experience lower leveraged returns on our assets
than would otherwise be the case, and could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results.

Our use of debt financing could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition.

We are subject to the risks normally associated with debt financ-
ing, including the risk that our cash flows will be insufficient

to meet required principal and interest payments and the risk
that we will be unable to refinance our existing indebtedness, or
that the terms of such refinancing will not be as favorable as the
terms of our existing indebtedness. As of December 31, 2006,
the scheduled principal payments on our long-term debt over the
next five years and thereafter were as follows:

(in thousands, notional amounts where appropriate, otherwise camrying amounts)

EXPECTED MATURITY DATES

2007
Mortgages on real estate investments $ 5,207
Collateralized debt obligations (36)

Qther long-term debt -

2008 2009 2010 2011 THEREAFTER
$7,565 $ 9,206 $11,28¢ §13,852 $747,564
(38) (41) 22,792 10,861 234,652
- - - - 30,930

Negative amounts shown with respect to our collateralized debt obligations represent amortization of original issue discount.

If our debt cannot be paid, refinanced or extended, we may not
be able to make distributions to stockholders at expected levels
or at all. Further, if prevailing interest rates or other factors at
the time of a refinancing result in higher interest rates or other
restrictive financial covenants upon the refinancing, then such
refinancing would adversely affect our cash flows and funds
available for operation and distribution.

Hedging transactions may not effectively protect us against
anticipated risks and may subject us to certain other risks
and costs.

Our current policy is to enter into hedging transactions primarily
to protect us from the effect of interest rate fluctuations on our
asset portfolio from the date on which we commit a rate or price
to a borrower or seller and until the date our cost to finance the
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asset on a long-term basis is fixed. Our hedging policy exposes

us to certain risks, among them the following:

® No hedging activity can completely insulate us from the risks
associated with changes in interest rates and, therefore, our
hedging strategy may not have the desired beneficial impact
on our results of operations or financial condition.

¥ There will be many market risks against which we may not be
able to hedge effectively, including changes in the spreads
of corporate bonds, CMBS or CDOs over the underlying U.5.
Treasury rates.

" We may or may not hedge any risks with respect to certain of
our asset investments. _

®  Qur hedging strategy may serve to reduce the returns which
we could possibly achieve if we did not hedge certain risks.

® Because we intend to structure our hedging transactions in a



manner that does not jeopardize our status as a REIT, we will
be limited in the type of hedging transactions that we may use.

® Hedging costs increase as the period covered by the hedge
increases and during pericds of rising and volatile interest
rates. We may increase our hedging activity and thus increase
our hedging costs during periods when interest rates are
votatile or rising.

We may fail to qualify for hedge accounting treatment,

We record derivative and hedge transactions in accordance with
United States generally accepted accounting principles, specifi-
cally Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
(“SFAS 133"). Under these standards, we may fail to qualify for
hedge accounting treatment for a number of reasons, including if
we use instruments that do not meet the SFAS 133 definition of a
derivative (such as short sales), we fail to satisfy SFAS 133 hedge
documentation requirements or we fail initial or subsequent quar-
terly hedge effectiveness assessment requirements. If we fail to
qualify for hedge accounting treatment, our operating results may
suffer because any losses on the derivatives we enter into would
be charged to our income statement without any offset from the
change in fair value of the related hedged transaction.

Our existing short-term borrowing facilities may be
unavailable to us.

We borrow money under short-term borrowing facilities to fund
all or part of our investment in most of our assets. These facili-
ties are uncommitted as the lender must agree to each asset
financed. We cannot assure you that we will be able to finance
assets on these facilities at any given time.

Qur short-term financings may expose us to interest rate
risks and margin calls.
Our borrowings under our short-term borrowing facilities are
currently at variable rates and will be adjusted monthly relative
to market interest rates. Increases in short-term rates will cause
our borrowing rates to rise and our net income to decrease. If
interest rates on our borrowings rise in excess of the yields on
our assets financed, we will be subject to losses on those assets.
The amount available to us under our short-term borrow-
ing facilities depends in large part on the lender’s valuation of
the assets that secure our financings. The facilities provide the
lender the right, under certain circumstances, to re-evaluate the
collaterat that secures our outstanding borrowings. In the event
the lender determines that the value of the collateral has
decreased (for example, in connection with a decline in the
credit rating of the underlying tenant), it has the right to initi-
ate a margin call. A margin catl would require us to provide the
lender with additional collateral or to repay a portion of the

RISK FACTORS

outstanding borrowings at a time when we may not have a suf-
ficient portfolio of assets or cash to satisfy the margin call. Any
failure by us to meet a margin calt could cause us to default on
our short-term borrowing facilities and otherwise have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

The use of (DO financings with coverage tests may have a
negative impact on our operating results and cash flows.

We have purchased, and expect to purchase in the future, subor-
dinate classes of bonds in our (DO financings. The terms of the
CDO securities issued by us include, and we expect will include
in the future, cash flow coverage tests that are used fJn‘man'ly
to determine whether and to what extent principal and interest
proceeds on the undertying assets may be used to pay principal
of and interest on the subordinate classes of bonds in the CDQ.
These cash flow coverage tests consist of an overcollateraliza-
tion test and an interest coverage test. The avercollateralization
test ensures that a minimum amount of collateral par amount
secures the related notes. The interest coverage test ensures that
cash coupon payments generated from the (DO collateral wilt be
adequate to pay fees and interest due on the related notes.

In the event the cash flow coverage tests are not satisfied,
interest and principal that would otherwise be payable on the
subordinate classes may be re-directed to pay principal on the
senior bond classes. Therefore, failure to satisfy these coverage
tests could adversely affect our operating results and cash flows.

RISKS RELATED TO LEASE ENHANCEMENTS

Our lease enhancement mechanisms may fail.

We have developed certain lease enhancement mechanisms de-

signed to reduce the risks inherent in our net lease investments.

These lease enhancement mechanisms include:

® casualty and condemnation insurance policies that protect
us from any right the tenant may have to terminate the
underlying net lease or abate rent as a result of a casualty or
condemnation; and

®  borrower reserve funds that protect us from any rights the
tenant may have to terminate the underlying net lease or
abate rent as a result of the failure of the property owner to
maintain and repair the property or related common areas.

These lease enhancement mechanisms may not protect us
against all losses. For example, our casualty and condemnation
policies typically contain exclusions relating to war, insurrection,
rebellion, revolution or civil riot and radicactive matter, earth-
quakes (in earthquake zones) and takings (other than by
condemnation) by reason of danger to pubtic health, public safety
or the environment, In addition, amounts in the borrower reserve
fund may be insufficient to cover the cost of maintenance or
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repairs, and the borrower may fail to perform such maintenance
or repairs at its own expense, The failure of our lease enhance-
ment mechanisms may result in the loss of our capital invested
in, and profits anticipated from, our investment, and could
adversely affect our financial condition and operating resutts.

We depend on our insurance carriers to provide and honor

lease enhancements.

We presently obtain specialized tease enhancement insurance

policies from two carriers, The limited number of insurance carri-

ers available to provide lease enhancements restricts our ability

to replace such insurers. Any of the following developments with

respect to our carriers may have a matenal adverse effect on our

financial condition and operating results:

B 3 deterioration in our relationship with one or both of our
carriers;

¥ a bankruptcy or other material adverse financial development
with respect to one or both of our carriers; and

® 3 dispute as to policy coverage with one or both of our carriers.

We may fail to analyze leases adequately or apply
appropriate lease enhancement mechanisms.

In determining whether a lease enhancement mechanism is
appropriate, we examine the costs and benefits of the lease
enhancement mechanism in light of our analysis of the risks
associated with the underlying net lease. As a result of this anal-
ysis, we may decline to apply a lease enhancement mechanism
that would otherwise protect us. Our failure to analyze leases
adequately or apply appropriate lease enhancement mechanisms
could cause a decline in the value of our net lease asset and
adversely affect our financial condition and operating results.

RISKS RELATED TO BUSINESS STRATEGY AND POLICIES

We face significant competition that could harm our business.
We are subject to significant competition in each of our business
segments. We compete with specialty finance companies, insur-
ance companies, investment banks, savings and loan associa-
tions, banks, mortgage bankers, mutual funds, institutional
investors, pension funds, hedge funds, other lenders, governmen-
tal bodies and individuals and other entities, including REITs. We
may face new competitors and, due to our focus on net lease and
other single tenant properties located throughout the United
States, and because many of our competitors are locally and/or
regionally focused, we may not encounter the same competitors
in each region of the United States. Many of our competitors
have greater financial and other resources and may have other
advantages over our company. Our competitors may be willing

to accept lower returns on their investments, may have access

to lower cost capital and may succeed in buying the assets that
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we target for acquisition. We may incur costs on unsuccessful
acquisitions that we will not be able to recover. Qur failure to
compete successfully could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and operating results.

Our network of independent mortgage brokers and
investment sale brokers may sell investment opportunities
to our competitors.

An important source of our investments comes from independent
mortgage brokers and investment sale brokers. These brokers are
not contractualty obligated to do business with us. Further, our
competitors also have relationships with many of these brokers
and actively compete with us in our efforts to obtain invest-
ments from these brokers. As a result, we may lose potential
transactions to our competitors, causing our investment pace to
slow, which could have a material adverse effect on the market
price of our stock.

Our joint venture investments will expose us to certain risks.

We intend from time to time to co-invest in real properties

with third parties through partnerships or other entities.

Investing in this manner subjects us to certain risks, among

them the following:

® For joint venture properties, we will not exercise sole deci-
sion-making authority regarding the property and, thus, we
may not be able to take actions that we believe are in our
company's best interests. For example, we expect that in
most cases we will need our partner's approval before selling
or refinancing the subject property or entering into or amend-
ing any space lease of the property.

" We may be required to accept liability for obligations of the
joint venture {such as recourse carve-outs on martgage loans)
beyond our economic interest.

®  Qur returns on joint venture properties may be adversely
affected if the properties are not held for the long-term, or a
period of about ten years.

As part of our joint venture efforts, we also intend to make a
passive investment in a real estate investment fund management
company. The management entity is a start-up company and, thus,
our investment is highly speculative. If the management company
is unable to execute its business plan, which includes raising
sufficient capital, or if we or other investors fail te make required
capital contributions, our investment could be adversely affected.
Our investment also generally does not entitle us to veting rights
and, therefore, our ability to influence management policy is very
limited. We could lose some or all of this investment.




Our ability to grow our business will be limited by our
ability to attract debt or equity financing, and we may have
difficulty accessing capital on attractive terms.

We expect to fund future investments primarily from debt or
equity capital. Therefore, we are dependent upon our ability to
attract debt or equity financing from public or institutional lend-
ers. The capital markets have been, and in the future may be,
adversely affected by various events beyond our control, such

as the United States’ military involvement in the Middle East
and elsewhere, the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001, the
ongoing War on Terrorism by the United States and the bank-
ruptcy of major companies, such as Enron Corp. Events such as
an escalation in the War on Terrorism, new terrorist attacks, or
additional bankruptcies in the future, as well as other events
beyond our control, could adversely affect the availability and
cost of capital for our business. As a RELT, we will also be depen-
dent upon the availability and cost of capital in the REIT markets
specifically, which can be impacted by various factors such as
interest rate levels, the strength of real estate markets and
investors’ appetite for REIT investments. We cannot assure you
that we will be successful in attracting sufficient debt or equity
financing to fund future investments, or at an acceptable cost.

Future offerings of debt and equity may adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.

We expect to continue to increase our capital resources by
making additional offerings of equity and debt securities in the
future, which would include classes of preferred stock, common
stock and senior or subordinated notes. All debt securities and
other borrowings, as well as all classes of preferred stock, will
be senior to our common stock in a liquidation of our company.
Additional equity offerings could dilute our stockholders’ equity,
reduce the market price of shares of our common stock, or be of
preferred stock having a distribution preference that may limit
our ability to make distributions on our common stock. Our
ahility to estimate the amount, timing or nature of additional
offerings is limited as these factors will depend upon our pace of
investment activity, market conditions and other factors.

We may not be able to maintain our rapid growth rate.

We have experienced rapid growth in recent years, increasing
our total assets from approximately $126 million at December
31, 2003 to approximately $1.6 billion at December 31, 2006.
We may not be able to maintain a similar rate of growth in the
future. Qur failure to do so may have an adverse effect on our
stock price.

We may fail to manage our anticipated growth.
As of December 31, 2006, our company had 21 employees. As
our asset base continues to grow, we may experience a signifi-
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cant strain on our management, operational, financial and other
resources. Our ability to manage growth effectively will require
us to continue to improve our operational and financial systems,
expand our employee base and train and manage our employees
and develop additional management expertise. Failure to manage
growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and operating results.

Temporary investment in short-term investments may
adversely affect our results.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected during the
period in which we are implementing our investment and leverag-
ing strategies or during any period after which we have received
the proceeds of a financing or asset sale but have not invested
the proceeds. During this time, we may be invested in short-term
investments, including CMBS or CDO bonds, corporate bonds,
commercial paper, money market funds and U.S. agency debt.

The concentration of our company’s common stock could have

an adverse impact on the value of your investment.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately 45.3% of our common

stock was owned by six unrelated institutional investors {based

on SEC filings made by these investors). This concentration of

ownership could have an adverse impact on the value of your

investment, including as a result of the following:

B Trading volume in our stock may be limited, which will reduce
the liguidity of your investment.

® The sale of a significant number of our shares in the open
market by a significant stockholder or otherwise could
adversely affect our stock price.

® Although nene of these investors on its own controls a
majority of our common stock, these owners coutd determine
to act together and given their significant concentration may
be able to take actions that are not in your best interest.

Qur board of directors may change our investment and
operational policies without stockholder consent.

Our board of directors determines our investment and operation-
al policies and may amend or revise our policies, including our
policies with respect to our REIT status, investment objectives,
acquisitions, growth, operations, indebtedness, capitalization
and distributions, or approve transactions that deviate from
these policies without a vote of or notice to our stockholders.
Investment and operational policy changes could adversely
affect the market price of stock in our company and our ability
to make distributions to our stockholders.
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The federal income tax laws governing REITs are complex, and
our failure to qualify as a REIT under the federal tax laws will
result in adverse tax consequences.

We intend to continue to operate in a manner that will allow

us to qualify as a REIT under the federal income tax laws. The
REIT qualification requirements are extremely complex, however,
and interpretations of the federal income tax laws governing
qualification as a REIT are limited. Accordingly, we cannot be
certain that we will be successful in qualifying as a REIT. At any
time, new laws, interpretations, or court decisions may change
the federal tax laws or the federal income tax consequences of
our qualification as a REIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be
subject to federal income tax on our taxable income. Qur taxable
income would be determined without deducting any distribu-
tions to our stockholders. We might need to borrow money or
sell assets in order to pay any such tax. If we cease to qualify as
a REIT, we no longer woutd be required to distribute most of our
taxable income to our stockholders. Unless the federal income
tax laws excused our failure to qualify as a REIT, we could not
re-elect REIT status until the fifth calendar year after the year in
which we failed to quatify as a REIT.

Our ownership limitations may restrict or prevent you from
engaging in certain transfers of our stock,
In order to maintain our REIT qualification, no more than 50%
in value of our outstanding stock may be owned, directly or
indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the federal
income tax laws to include various kinds of entities) during
the last half of any taxable year. “Individuals” for this purpose
include natural persons, private foundations, some employee
benefit plans and trusts, and some charitable trusts. In order to
preserve our REIT quatification, our charter generally prohibits
any person from directly or indirectly owning more than 9.9% in
value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of
any class or series of the outstanding shares of our capital stock.
If anyone transfers shares in a way that would violate our
ownership limits, or prevent us from continuing to qualify as
a REIT under the federal income tax laws, we will consider the
transfer to be null and void from the outset and the intended
transferee of those shares will be deemed never to have owned
the shares or those shares instead will be transferred to a trust
for the henefit of a charitable beneficiary and will be either
redeemed by us or sold to a person whose ownership of the shares
will not violate our ownership limits. Anyone who acquires
shares in violation of our ownership limits or the ather restric-
tions on transfer in our charter bears the risk of suffering a
financial loss when the shares are redeemed or sold if the market
price of our stock falts between the date of purchase and the
date of redemption or sale.
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Provisions of our charter and Maryland law may limit the
ability of a third-party to acquire control of our company.

Our charter contains restrictions on stock ownership and
transfer.

As described above, our charter contains stock ownership imits.
These limits may delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a
change of control of our company that might involve a premium
price for stock of our company or otherwise be in the best inter-
est of our stockholders.

Our board of directors may issue additional stock without
stockholder approval. '

Our charter authorizes our board of directors to amend the
charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares
of stock we have authority to issue, without any action by the
stockholders. Issuances of additional shares of stock may delay,
defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our
company that might involve a premium price for stock of our
company or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.

Other provisions of our charter and bylaws may delay or
prevent a transaction or change of control.

Our charter and bylaws also contain other provisions that may
delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of
our company that might invalve a premium price for our commaon
stack or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.
For example, our charter and bylaws provide that: a two-thirds
vote of stockholders is required to remove a director, vacancies
on our board may only be filled by the remaining directors (or, if
no directors remain, by the stockholders), the number of direc-
tors may be fixed anly by the directors, our bylaws may only be
amended by our directors and a majority of shares is required to
call a special stockholders meeting.

Increased market interest rates may reduce the value

of our stock.

We believe that investors consider the dividend distribution rate
on shares of REIT stock, expressed as a percentage of the market
price of the shares, relative to market interest rates as an
important factor in deciding whether to buy or sell shares of REIT
stock. If market interest rates go up, prospective purchasers of
REIT stock may expect a higher dividend distribution rate. Higher
interest rates would also likely increase our borrowing costs

and might decrease cash available for distribution. Thus, higher
market interest rates could cause the market price of stock in our
company to decline.




The market price of our stock may vary substantially,

Various factors can affect the market price of our stock including

the following:

B actwal or anticipated vanatiens in our quarterly results of
operations;

% the extent of institutional investor interest in our company;

B the reputation of REITs generally and the attractiveness of
their equity securities in comparison to other equity securi-
ties, including securities issued by other real estate compa-
nies, and fixed income securities;

® changes in expectations of future financial performance or
changes in estimates of securities analysts;

B fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes; and

B announcements by us or our competitors of acquisitions,
investments or strategic alliances.

We depend on our key personnel.

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our senior manage-
ment team. There is no guarantee that any member of our senior
management team will remain employed with our company.

If any member of our senior management team were to die,

~ become disabled or otherwise leave our employ. we may not

be able to replace him with a person of equal skill, ability and
industry expertise.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Qur corporate offices are located at 1065 Avenue of the Ameri-
cas, New York, New York 10018. Our lease at this property expires
in September 2013.

Our owned real properties are described above under “Busi-
ness—Our Portfolio—Owned Properties.”

Itemn 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings in the
ordinary course of business. We do not believe any matter we are
currently involved in will have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

In March 2007, our company was named as a defendant in a
lawsuit brought by Qwest Communications Corporation. The law-
suit relates to a computer data center in Sacramento, California
owned by Sandy Beaches 1 LP, a limited partnership in which
four of our executive officers (Messrs, McDowell, Pollert, Seale
and Blanz) have invested. Herakles LLC, a limited liability

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

company in which the management group has similarly invested
and which is an affiliate of Sandy Beaches, is a party to a
management agreement with Qwest for the operation of the data
center. Riptide I LP, another limited partnership in which the
management group has similarly invested and which is another
affiliate of Sandy Beaches, subteases a portion of the leased
building from Qwest. '

We view this matter as a commercial dispute between Qwest,
on the one hand, and Sandy Beaches, Herakles and Riptide, on the
other hand, as Qwest has made a variety of claims against these
three entities, including breach of the lease, the management
agreement and the sublease. Qwest is not seeking to terminate
the lease or abate rent in the action. As best we can tell from a
thorough review of the complaint, Qwest's sole claim against our
company is that it is an “alter ego” of the other deféndants and,
therefore, its separate existence should be disregarded and it
should be liable for any damages payable by the other defendants.
We believe this claim to be patently false, We are not a party to
the lease, management agreement or sublease. We do not own or
manage the property or the data center or pay rent to or receive
rent from Qwest. We have never commingled our assets with those
of the three entities and each entity maintains an existence sepa-
rate and apart from our company, with operations, employees, and
places of business separate from our company.

Our company’s sole relationship with this property relates to
a monthly advisory fee of $66,000 we receive from Sandy Beach-
es. Sandy Beaches agreed to pay us this fee when we agreed to
structure and make a first mortgage loan to it in February 2001,
The fee is payable through November 2010. At the time of the
loan, we were not a public company. Also in February 2001, we
sold the loan to a conduit lender for its securitization.

We believe that Qwest's claims against our company are
without merit and we will vigorously defend our interest in this
matter, including by seeking to be dismissed from the lawsuit at
an early stage. We do not believe the Qwest’s claims will have a
material adverse impact on our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of
Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during
the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006.
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Part II.

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity,
Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Market Information and Holders of Record

Qur common stock has been listed for trading on the New York
Stock Exchange {“NYSE™) under the symbol “LSE” since our
initial public offering on March 19, 2004. On February 15, 2007,
the reported closing sale price per share of common stock on
the NYSE was $11.15 and there were 52 holders of record of
our common stock. The table below sets forth the quarterly high
and low sales prices of our common stock on the NYSE for the
periods indicated.

FISCAL YEAR LOW HIGH
2005

First Quarter $10.60 $12.62
Second Quarter 10.07 11.43
Third Quarter 9.95 11.30
Fourth Quarter 9.38 11.05
2006

First Quarter $10.33 $11.73
Second Quarter 9.90 12.13
Third Quarter 10.25 11.58
Fourth Quarter 10.71 12.21
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Dividends
The table below sets forth the cash dividends paid on our com-
mon stock far the periods indicated:

QUARTER ENDED DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE DIVIDEND PER SHARE

2005

March 31, 2005 April 15, 2005 $0.18
June 30, 2005 July 15, 2005 0.18
September 30, 2005 October 17, 2005 0.18
December 31, 2005 January 17, 2006 0.20
2006

March 31, 2006 April 17, 2006 $0.20
June 3¢, 2006 July 17, 2006 0.20
September 30, 2006 October 16, 2006 0.20
December 31, 2006 January 16, 2007 0.20

We generally intend to distribute each year all or substantially
all of our REIT taxable income (which does not necessarily equal
net income as calculated in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles) to our stockholders so as to comply with
the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and to avoid
federal income tax and the nondeductibte excise tax. We intend
to make dividend distributions quarterly. Our dividend policy is
subject to revision at the discretion of our board of directors. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of our board of direc-
tors and will depend on our cash available for distribution, our
funds from cperations, our maintenance of REIT status and other
factors as our board of directors deems relevant.




Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder
return of our common stock with that of the Standard & Poor's
500 Composite Stock Price Index and the Standard & Poor's REIT
Compaosite Index from March 19, 2004 {the date our common
stock began to trade publicly)} through December 31, 2006. The
graph assumes that you invested $100 at the close of market on
March 19, 2004 in our common stock and each of the indexes,
with dividends reinvested. The compansons in this graph are
provided in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission
disclosure requirements and are not intended to forecast or be
indicative of the future performance of our common stock.
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BASE PERIOD
COMPANY / INDEX 3/19/2004 6/30/2004 12/31/2004 £/30/2005 12/31/2005 6/30/2006 12/31/2008
& C(apital Lease Funding, Inc. 100 99.05 121.57 109.02 109.69 123.12 129.62
B 5&P 500 Index 100 103.23 110.65 109.75 116.09 119.23 134.42
0O S&P REIT Index 100 95.96 118.30 126.78 133.16 152.26 188.76
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Tax Characteristics of 2006 Dividends

The following table summarizes the taxable nature of our

comman dividends during 2006:

Total common dividend per share (tax basis) $0.80
Capital gain 2.6898%
Ordinary income 0.0694%
Return of capital §7.2408%

100.0000%
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical financial information for the five years ended December 31, 2006 is derived from our audited consoli-
dated financial statements and those of our predecessor, Caplease, LP (the successor-in-interest to Capital Lease Funding, LLC) and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, related notes, and other
financial information included in this Form 10-K.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

(in thousands, except per share emounts) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Income Statement Data

Revenues:
Rental revenue $78,656 $37,956 $4,287 3 — $—
Interest income from mortgage and other real
estate loans and securities 32,470 27,898 13,589 7,317 8,092
Property expense recoveries 8,828 6,272 1,608 — —
Gains on sale of mortgage loans and securities 2.923 447 794 11,652 10,051
Other revenue 1,903 479 726 151 343
Total Revenues 124,780 73,052 21,004 19,120 18,486
Expenses:
Interest expense 63,212 31,398 2,768 1,220 2;142
Interest expense to affiliates — — — 838 659
Property expenses 15,891 10,441 1,761 — —
(Gain) loss on derivatives (413) (159) 724 3,129 7,729
Loss on securities 207 2,372 247 — —
General and administrative expenses 9,772 10,140 8,833 7,186 6,966
General and administrative expenses - stock based
compensation 2,621 2.235 3,825 — —
Depreciation and amortization expense on real
property 25,451 11,273 1,281 — —
Loan processing expenses 268 283 196 114 158
Total Expenses 117,709 67,983 19,635 12,487 17,654
Income before minority interest and taxes 7.0 5.069 1,369 6,633 832
Minority interest in consolidated entities (17) 55 — — —
Provision for income taxes - — 9 — —
Incame from continuing operations 7,054 5,124 1,360 6,633 832
Income from discontinued operations 195 6 — - —
Net income 7,249 5,130 1,360 6,633 832
Dividends allocable to preferred shares (2.844) {(561) — — —
Net Income Allocable to Common Stockholders $4,405 $4,569 $1,360 $6,633 $832

Earnings per share (pro forma for years 2003 and 2002):

Net income per common share, basic and diluted $0.14 $0.16 $0.06 $1.61 $0.20
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, basic 31,939 27,784 22,125 4,108 4,108
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, diluted 31,941 27,784 22,125 4,108 4,108
Dividends declared per common share $0.80 §0.74 $0.25 $— $—

Dividends declared per preferred share $2.03125 $0.48524 $— $— $—
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Other Data
Cash flows from operating activities $27,443 $(17,111) $10,973 $(10,743) $3,774
' Cash flows from investing activities (361,854) (675,408} (349,576) (69) 846
Cash flows from financing activities 319,520 681,114 362,802 11,948 (10,773}

Balance Sheet Data

I

} Real estate investments, net $1,115,001 $764,930 $194,541 $— $—
Real estate investments consolidated
under FIN 46 — — 48,000 — —

‘ Mortgage and other real estate loans held for investment 273,170 297,551 207,347 — —

| Mortgage loans held for sale — — — 71,757 77,716
Securities available for sale 183,066 137,409 87,756 40,054 20,348
Structuring fees receivabte 3,253 3,862 4,426 5,223 4,794
Total assets 1,644,300 1,286,488 581,702 125,773 112,276
Repurchase agreement and other short-term
financing obligations 195,485 129,965 133,831 88,087 76,116
Mortgages on real estate investments 794,773 551,844 111,539 — —
Collateralized debt obligations . 268,190 268,156 — — —
Other long-term debt 30,930 30,930 — — —
Stockholders’ equity/members’ capital 307,656 210,01 253,264 34,045 27,775

|
‘ Cash and cash equivalents 4,425 19,316 30,721 6,522 5,386
|
|
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DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and the notes to those financial
statements, included elsewhere in this filing. Where appropriate,
the following discussion includes analysis of our predecessor entity.

OVERVIEW

We are a diversified REIT that invests primarily in single tenant
commercial real estate assets subject to long-term leases to high
credit quality tenants. We focus on properties that are subject to
a net lease. See “Business—Overview” for what constitutes a net
lease. We also continue to be opportunistic and have made and
expect to continue to make investments in single tenant proper-
ties where the owner has exposure to property expenses when
we determine we can sufficiently underwrite that exposure and
isolate a predictable cash flow.

Our primary business objective is to generate stable, long-
term and attractive returns based on the spread between the
yietds generated by our assets and the cost of financing our
portfolio. We invest at all levels of the capital structure of net
lease or other single tenant properties, including equity invest-
ments in real estate (owned real properties), debt investments
(mortgage loans and net lease mortgage backed securities) and

mezzanine investments secured by net leased or other single
tenant real estate collateral.

The principal sources of our revenues are rental income on
our owned real properties and interest income from our debt
investments (loans and securities). The principal sources of our
expenses are interest expense on our assets financed, deprecia-
tion expense on our real properties, generat and administrative
expenses and property expenses (net of expense recoveries).

We rely on leverage to allow us to invest in a greater number
of assets and enhance our asset returns. We seek to finance our
assets on a long-term basis with fixed-rate debt of a like matu-
rity. Through December 31, 2006, our tong-term financings have
been in the form of traditional third party mortgage financings
(on most of our owned real properties) and our first CDO {com-
pleted in March 2005). We have short-term floating rate borrow-
ing arrangements in place to facilitate our investment activity
while we arrange long-term financing. We employ a hedging
strategy to mitigate our exposure to changes in interest rates
while our assets are financed under our short-term borrowing
arrangements. We expect our leverage to average 70% to 85%
of our assets in portfolio. Including the trust preferred debt we
issued in December 2005 (see table below), our overall portfolio
leverage as of December 31, 2006 was approximately 81.8%.

We rely primarily on equity and debt capital to fund our
portfolio growth. The following is a summary of our capital rais-
ing activities beginning with our initial public offering in March
2004 and through December 31, 2006.

MONTH/YEAR SECURITIES 1SSUED PRICE NET PROCEEDS

March 2004 23.0 million shares of common stock $10.50 $221.8 million

October 2005 1.4 million shares of 8.125% Series A $25.00 $33.7 million
cumulative redeemable preferred stock

December 2005 $30.9 million of junior subordinated notes N/A $29.9 million

May 2006 5.747 miltion shares of common stack $10.55 $57.3 million

November/ December 2006 160,900 shares of common stock

$11.91 (average) $1.9 million

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITY IN 2006

The follewing summarizes certain aspects of our portfolio invest-
ment and financing activity during the year ended December 31,
2006.

B We originated assets of approximately $538.6 million, includ-
ing the acquisition of 11 real properties for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $359.4 million and the
origination of $123 million of loan investments (including
$78.0 million of loans sold), comprised of mortgage loans,
carporate credit notes and mezzanine investments.

" We financed our real property acquisitions with $245.7 mil-
Lion of fixed rate mortgage debt (including $28.6 million of
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debt assumed at its fair market value). Our next CDO issuance
is scheduled for the second quarter of 2007.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Our ability to grow our portfolio is subject to a vanety of factors
beyond our control, including competitive conditions in the
commercial real estate markets and interest rate levels, The
modest downward movement in market interest rates during the
latter part of 2006 had a positive impact on our origination
pace for owned properties as spreads on new assets improved
(although not to the levels we were seeing in 2004 and most of
2005). However, bidding for new properties continues to be very




competitive, and if competitive conditions intensify or market
interest rates increase {without a corresponding increase in asset
returns), our ability to continue to originate new assets may be
adversely affected. Spread compression and competition from
conduit lenders also continue to make it challenging for us to
originate loans with yield and risk characteristics that fit within
our targets.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with United States
generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The prepara-
tion of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
use of judgments, estimates and assumptions that could affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. The following is a summary of our accounting policies
that are most affected by judgments, estimates and assump-
tions. The summary should be read in conjunction with the more
complete discussion of our accounting policies included in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K,

Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans Held for Investment
Since our initial public offering, our loan investments have been,
and we expect in the future they wilt continue to be, accounted
for as tong term investments, as our strategy contemplates that
we hold the loans for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
We record loans held for investment at cost (unpaid principal
balance adjusted for unearned discount or premium and loan
origination fees) and are required to periodically evaluate each
of these loans for possible impairment. Impairment is indicated
when it is deemed probable that we will be unable to collect atl
amounts due according to the contractuat terms of the asset.
Upon determination of impairment, we must establish a specific
valuation allowance with a corresponding charge to earnings.
Significant judgment is required both in determining impairment
and in estimating the resulting loss allowance. In determining
impairment and any loan loss allowance, we evaluate factors
such as the present vatue of expected future cash flows on the
loans, the fair market value of our collateral, and the amount
and status of any senior debt. As of December 31, 2006, we had
no loss allowances on any of the loans in our portfolio.

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Real Estate
We allocate the purchase price of rental real estate acquired to
the following based on fair values:

DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

B acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and
improvements; and

® jdentified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of
above-market and below-market leases, in-place leases and
tenant relationships.

In estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets
acquired, we consider information obtained about each property
as a result of our due diligence activities and other market data,
and utilize various valuation methods, such as estimated cash
flow projections utitizing appropriate discount and capitaliza-
tion rates, estimates of replacement costs, and available market
information. The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired
property considers the value of the property as if it were vacant.

Above-market and below-market lease values for acquired
properties are recorded based on the present value of the differ-
ences between (i) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant
to each in-place lease and (ii) management’s estimate of fair
market lease rates for each corresponding in-place lease. Fair
market lease rates are measured over a period equal to the
remaining term of the lease for above-market leases and the
initiat term plus the term of any below-market rate renewal
options for below-market leases. In computing present value,
we use a discount rate which reflects the risks associated with
the leases acquired. The value of in-place leases is amortized
to expense over the remaining initial terms of the respective
leases. The value of tenant relationship intangibles is amortized
to expense over the anticipated life of the relationships.

Other intangible assets acquired include in-place leases and
tenant relationships which are valued based on management’s
evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease
and our overall relationship with the respective tenant. Factors
considered by management in its analysis of in-place lease
values include an estimate of carrying costs during the hypothet-
ical expected time it would take management to find a tenant to
lease the space for the existing lease term (a “lease-up period”)
considering current market conditions, and costs to execute
similar leases. Management estimates carrying costs, including
such factors as real estate taxes, insurance and other operat-
ing expenses during the expected iease-up period, considering
current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases. In
estimating costs to execute similar leases, management consid-
ers leasing commissions and other related expenses. Character-
istics considered by management in valuing tenant retationships
include the nature and extent of our existing husiness relation-
ships with the tenant, growth prospects for developing new busi-
ness with the tenant, the tenant’s credit quality and expecta-
tions of lease renewals. The value of in-place leases is amortized
to expense over the remaining initial terms of the respective
leases. The value of tenant relationship intangibles is amortized
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to expense over the anticipated life of the relationships. Through
December 31, 2006, we have assigned no value to tenant rela-
tionships on any of our acquisitions.

Securities Available for Sale

We treat our investments in securities as available for sale and
account for them in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Account-
ing for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” As
such, they are carried at fair value with net unrealized gains or
losses reported on our balance sheet as a component of other
comprehensive income or loss. Fair value is based primarily upon
our estimates of value, based upon broker quotations where
available, yields on assets of similar credit quality and duration,
or good faith estimates of those yields. The indicated quotations
may be subject to significant variability based on market condi-
tions, including interest rates and spreads. While a liquid market
for these securities typically exists, the securities may not be
frequentty traded and, therefore, we may not be able to sell them
at our estimates of value. Changes in market conditions, as well
as changes in the assumptions or methodology used to deter-
mine fair value, could result in a significant increase or decrease
in the equity on our balance sheet. We must also assess whether
any unrealized losses on securities reflect a decline in value
which is other than temporary. If so, we must write the impaired
security down to its fair value through a charge to our income
statement. Significant judgment is required in this analysis. In
determining whether a decline in value is other than temporary,
we consider whether the decline is due to factors such as chang-
es in interest rates (typically temporary) or credit downgrades or
credit defaults (typically other than temporary). In estimating
other-than-temporary impairment losses, management consid-
ers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value
has been below cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the underlying credit and (3) our intent and ability
to retain our investment in the underlying credit for a period of
time sufficient to allow for anticipated recovery in fair vaiue. We
recorded other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of our
CMBS securities of $0.9 million for 2006, $2.4 million for 2005
and $0.2 million during 2004, in each case reflecting exposure
to the Winn-Dixie bankruptcy.

Impairment on Owned Real Properties

We own real properties for investment. We review these proper-
ties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recov-
erable. Upon determination of impairment, we would record a
write-down of the asset, which would be charged to earnings.
Significant judgment is required both in determining impairment
and in estimating the resulting write-down. Through December
31, 2006, we have determined that no write-downs have been
necessary on any of our owned real properties.
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Derivative Instruments and Other Risk Management
Transactions

Our derivative instruments and other risk management transac-
tions, which we hold for hedging or other risk management
purposes, are carried at fair value pursuant to SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended. Fair value is based on market quotations. Fair values
on such derivatives are subject to significant variability based
on many of the same factors as our securities avaitable for sale
discussed above. Further, to the extent the denvatives qualify as
hedges under SFAS No. 133, net unrealized gains or losses are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (a component of stockholders’ equity on our balance
sheet); otherwise, they are reported as a component of current
income or loss on our income statement. In order to qualify

for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133, our deriva-
tives must meet various technical requirements under SFAS 133,
including satisfying hedge effectiveness testing at each report-
ing date. Failure to meet these requirements would result in
the change in value of the derivative instrument being charged
directly to our income statement without any offset from the
change in fair value of the related hedged transaction.

Revenue Recognition

As part of our 10-year credit tenant loan program, we onginate a
loan and split it into two notes, a real estate note and a corpo-
rate credit note, We generally sell the real estate note to a third
party and retain the corporate credit note in our portfolio. Dur-
ing 2006, we sold one real estate note for aggregate proceeds of
$78.6 million, and recognized a gain of $0.6 million. We compute
our gain by comparing our sales proceeds on the note to its

cost basis. We compute our cost basis on the note by allocating
our entire basis in the loan among the two notes based on the
present value of expected cash flows on each note. In computing
present values, we estimate a discount rate based on a bench-
mark United States Treasury rate ptus a market spread based on
the underlying credit. Our estimates reflect market rates and we
believe they are reasonable. However, the use of different esti-
mates could have an impact on our gain on sale revenue.

Stock Based Compensation

Pursuant to our 2004 stock incentive plan, we have made and
expect to continue to make awards of common stock to our
employees with vesting subject to attainment of performance
criteria. Under SFAS No. 123R (revised 2004), Share-Based Pay-
ment, we are required to estimate the probability of vesting of
these shares quarterly and recognize expense (generally equal to
the fair market value of the shares awarded on the grant date)
for any shares deemad probable to vest over the period the
employee is required to perform services to receive the shares.
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We base our estimates of probability on an assessment of our
actual results against the relevant performance criteria. These
estimates may change over time as our actual results against the
criteria are re-assessed. Changes in these estimates could have a
material impact on the expense we recognize.

PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we completed the
following property acquisitions (dollar amounts in thousands):

NET RENTABLE

MONTH ACQUIRED  TEMANT OR GLUARANTOR & LOCATION PURCHASE PRICE LEASE EXPIRES SQUARE FEET
October Aetna Life Insurance Company $24,255 November 2016 122,605
1333 - 1385 East Shaw Avenue, Fresno, (A
October United States Government 16,350 September 2018 74,300
200 McCarty Avenue, Albany, NY
November T-Mobile USA, Inc. 16,195 January 2017 69,287
695 Grossmere Park, Nashville, TN
November Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. 28,530 December 2016 154,849
1320 N. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Dr., Milwoukee, WI
December Johnson Contrels, Inc. 27,000 August 2016 307,275
6750 Bryan Dairy Rood, Largo, FL
December AmeriCredit Corp. 43,000 August 2017 246,060
4001 Embarcadero Orive, Arlington, TX . .
$155,330
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
We conduct our business through two operating seaments:
B gperating real estate (including our investments in owned
real properties); and
® |ending investments (including our lean investments as
well as our investments in securities).
Segment data for the year ended December 31, 2006 are as follows:
(amounts in thousands)
CORPORATE/UNALLOCATED OPERATING REAL ESTATE LENDING INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total reverues 1811 $88,002 $35,966 $124,780
Total expenses and minority interest 14,901 82,754 20,070 117,726
Income (loss) from continuing operations (14,090) 5,248 15,896 7,054
Total assets 30,219 1,152,348 461,732 1,644,300
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Segment data for the year ended December 31, 2005 are as follows:

{omounts in thousands)

CORPORATE/UNALLOCATED OPERATING REAL ESTATE LENDING INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total revenues $1,090 $44,352 $27.609 $73,052
Total expenses and minority interest 12,493 39,254 16,181 67,928
Income (loss) from continuing operations {11,402) 5,098 11,428 5,124
Tatal assets 48,007 797,945 440,536 1,286,488
Segment data for the year ended December 31, 2004 are as follows:
(amounts in thousends)

. CORPGRATE/UNALLOCATED OPERATING REAL ESTATE LENDING [NVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total revenues $603 $6,356 $14,045 $21,004
Total expenses and minority interest 11,869 4,206 3,569 19,644
Income (loss) from continuing operations (11,266) 2,150 10,476 1,360
Total assets 31,454 247,325 302,923 581,702
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 26 in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we continued to
execute on our business plan as a long-term holder of equity,
debt and mezzanine investments in net lease and other single
tenant assets. Our focus during the year was on: (i) identifying
and acquiring assets that met our investment criteria, {ii)
financing our assets, (i) raising additional capital to fund the
growth of our portfolio, and (iv) continuing to communicate
our expanded capabilities to the marketplace.

COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

The following discussion compares our operating results for the
year ended December 31, 2006 to the comparable period in 2005,

Revenue
Totat revenue increased $51.7 million, or 71%, to $124.8 million.
The increase was primarily attributable to increases in rental
income and property expense recoveries and increases in interest
income, gain on sale of loans and securities and other revenue.
Rental income and property expense recoveries, in the
aggregate, increased $43.3 million, or 98%, to $87.5 million. We
continued to make significant investments in owned properties
during 2006, and the significant increase in revenues associ-
ated with these investments is a result of the large growth in
this portien of our overall investment portfolio during 2005 and
2006. Rental income for the 2005 period includes $3.5 million
from assets consolidated under FIN 46. As described in footnote
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in this Form 10-K, we were required under FIN 46 to recognize
revenue and expense on one of our real property purchases prior
to our acquisition date because a deposit we made on our
purchase price had become non-refundable.

Interest income increased $4.6 million, or 16%, to $32.5 mil-
lion. The increase was due to larger overall aggregate loan and
security investments.

Gain on sale of loans and secunties increased from $0.4
million to $2.9 million, primarily reflecting gains on the sale of
securities in the fourth quarter of 2006 (32.3 million) and a gain
we earned on the origination and sale of a mortgage loan in the
first quarter of 2006 ($0.6 million).

Other revenue increased $1.4 million, or 297%, from $0.5
million to $1.9 million, primarily reflecting income we received
on loans that were paid off in 2006.

Expenses
Total expenses increased $49.7 million, or 73%, to $117.7
million. The increase in expenses was primarily attributable to
increases in interest expense, depreciation expense and property
related expenses, offset in part by lower loss on securities.
Interest expense increased $31.8 million, or 101%, from
$31.4 million to $63.2 million. The increase was primarily the
result of $22.9 million of increased interest expense on our
property mortgages, $3.0 million of increased interest expense
on our March 2005 CBO borrowings and $2.4 million of addi-
tional interest expense on the trust preferred debt we issued in
December 2005. In addition, interest expense on our borrow-
ings under our repurchase agreement increased $5.3 million, or




129%, from $4.1 million to $9.4 million. This was the result of
higher average borrowing levels and higher rates of interest on
our repurchase agreement borrowings in 2006. The 2005 results
included interest expense of $1.7 million from assets consoli-
dated under FIN 46.

Depreciation and amortization expense on real property
increased $14.2 million, or 126% to $25.5 million, as a result of
the significant increase in real estate investments made during
2005 and 2006. Depraciation and amortization expense for the
2005 period includes $0.9 million of expense from assets con-
solidated under FIN 46. ’

Property expense increased $5.4 million, or 52%, to $15.9
million. The net amount of property expenses we incurred in
2006 (net of expense recoveries) was $7.1 million. The growth
in property expenses reflects the growth of our portfolio as well
as our purchase of properties with greater overall exposure to
property expenses under the lease provisions, primarily with
respect to leases with the United States Government. While our
investment focus continues to be on net leased properties, we
expect to continue to pursue properties where we have exposure
to property expenses when we determine we can sufficiently
underwrite that exposure and isolate a predictable cash flow.
Property expenses for the 2005 peried include $0.9 million of
expense from assets consolidated under FIN 46.

Loss on securities decreased to $0.9 million in 2006, from
$2.4 million in 2005. All losses related to write-downs we took
on our real estate securities as a result of exposure to the Winn-
Dixie bankruptcy.

General and administrative expense was relatively unchanged,
as it decreased $0.4 million, or 4%, from $10.1 million
to $9.8 million.

General and administrative expense-stock based compensa-
tion increased $0.4 million, reflecting an additional year of
stock awards under our stock plan amortizing to expense. During
2006, we recognized to expense a portion of the stock awards
made to our directors, officers and other employees during March
2004, March 2005 and March 2006, because we have historically
used a three year vesting schedule for our stock awards. During
January 2007, we began using a five year vesting schedule for
stock awards. As of December 31, 2006, 32.8 mitlion of deferred
compensation expense was included on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet as a component of additional paid in capital. This amount
15 expected to be charged to our Income Statement ratably over
the remaining vesting period (through March 2011). As of
December 31, 2006, the amount of deferred compensation
expense for awards of 62,222 shares made in 2005 and awards
of 89,000 shares made in 2006 had not yet been measured and
included as a component of additional paid in capital because
the grant date (as defined under relevant accounting guidance)
had not yet occurred.

DISCUSSIDN & ANALYSIS

Net income

Net income increased from $5.1 million to $7.2 million, as a
result of the factors discussed above. Net income allocable to
common stockholders was $4.4 million in 2006, reflecting
dividends to preferred stockholders of $2.8 million.

COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

The foliowing discussion compares our operating results for the
year ended December 31, 2005 to the comparable period in 2004.

Revenue

Total revenue increased $52.0 miltion, or 248%, to $73.0 million.
The increase was primarily attributable to increases in rental
income and property expense recoveries and increases in interest
income, offset in part by decreases in gain on sale of loans and
securities and other revenue.

Rental income and property expense recoveries, in the
agqgregate, increased $38.3 million, or 650%, to $44.2 millicn,
We continued to make significant investments of owned proper-
ties during 2005, and the significant increase in revenues associ-
ated with these investments is a result of the large growth in
this portion of our overall investment portfolio. Rental income
for the 2005 period includes $3.5 million from assets consolidat-
ed under FIN 46. As described in footnote 26 in our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K, we
were required under FIN 46 to recognize revenue and expense on
one of our real property purchases prior o our acguisition date
because a deposit we made on our purchase price had become
non-refundable.

Interest income increased $14.3 million, or 105%, to $27.9
miltion. The increase was due to larger overall asset investments,
including both loans and securities investments,

Gain on sale of loans and securities decreased from $0.8 mil-
lion to $0.4 million. The decrease was due to lower overall sales
activity during 2005 compared with 2004.

Expenses

Total expenses increased $48.3 million, or 246%, to $67.9 million,
The increase in expenses was primarily attributable to increases
in interest expense, property related expenses and general and
administrative expenses, offset in part by a reduction in loss on
derivatives.

Interest expense increased $28.6 million, or 1,034%, from
$2.8 million to $31.4 million. The increase was primarily the
result of $12.8 million of increased interest expense on our prop-
erty mortgages and $11.7 million of interest expenses on our
CDO borrowings. In addition, interest expense on our borrowings
under our repurchase agreement increased $2.2 million, or 118%,
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from $1.9 million to $4.1 million. This was the result of higher
average borrowing levels and higher rates of interest on our
repurchase agreement borrowings in 2005. The 2005 results also
include interest expense of $1.7 million from assets consolidated
under FIN 46.

Property expense increased 493% from $1.8 million to $10.4
million. The net amount of property expenses we incurred in
2005 (net of expense recoveries) was $4.2 million. The growth
in property expenses reflects the growth of our portfolio as well
as our purchase of properties with greater overall exposure to
property expenses under the lease provisions, primarily with
respect to leases with the United States Government. While our
investment focus continues to be on net leased properties, we
expect to continue to pursue properties where we have exposure
to property expenses when we determine we can sufficiently
underwrite that exposure and isolate a predictable cash flow.
Property expenses for the 2005 period include $0.9 millicn of
expense from assets consclidated under FIN 46.

(Gain) loss on derivatives was ($0.2) million for 2005,
compared to $0.7 millicn in 2004. The 2005 gain represents
hedge ineffectiveness related to open derivative positions as of
December 31, 2005. The 2004 expense represents carry costs of
hedges and short-sale positions that were in place prior to our
initial public offering. Prior to our initial public offering, we
employed fair value hedges of our assets, along with derivatives
and short sales of securities that did not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment. After our initial public offering date, we
terminated all of the outﬁtanding fair value hedges, derivative
and short sale positions, and converted to cash flow hedges
against our expected future financings.

Loss on securities was $2.4 million related to a write-down
on three of our real estate securities, reflecting our actual and
mark-to-market losses on those securities as a result of the
Winn-Dixie bankruptcy.

General and administrative expense increased $1.3 million,
or 15%, from $8.8 million to $10.1 million, due primarily to
increased expenses associated with our status as a public
company, including expenses associated with compliance with
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, accounting and assurance
expenses, personnel costs and lizbility insurance,

General and administrative expense-stock based compensation
of $2.2 million was recognized during the 2005 period. This
represents 2005 vesting of stock awards made in 2004 and 2005
under our stock plan. These shares vest through March 2010 and,
as of December 31, 2005, $2.1 million of deferred compensation
expense was included on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as a
component of additional paid in capital. This amount is expected
to be charged to our Income Statement ratably over the remain-
ing vesting period (through March 2010).
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Depreciation and amortization expense on real property
increased $10.0 miltion, or 780% to $11.3 miliion, as a result of
the significant increases in real estate investments made during
2005. Depreciation and amortization expense for the 2005 period
includes $0.9 million of expense from assets consolidated under
FIN 46.

Minority interest
Minority interest in consolidated entities is $0.1 million as a
result of the assets consolidated under FIN 46 as discussed above.

Net income

Net income increased from $1.4 million to $5.1 million, as a
result of the factors discussed above. Net income allocable to
common stockholders was $4.6 million in 2005, reflecting
dividends to preferred stockholders of $0.6 million.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

Funds from operations, or £F0, is a non-GAAP financial measure.
We believe FFQ is a useful additional measure of our performance
because it facilitates an understanding of our operating perfor-
mance after adjustment for real estate depreciation, a non-cash
expense which assumes that the value of real estate assets di-
minishes predictably over time. In addition, we believe that FFO
provides useful information to the investment community about
our financial performance as compared to other REITs, since FFO
is generally recognized as an industry standard for measuring the
operating performance of an equity REIT. FFO does not represent
cash generated from operating activities in accordance with
GAAP and is not indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.
FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income or
earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP as an
indicator of our operating performance or as an alternative to
cash flow as a measure of liquidity. Since all companies and
analysts do not calculate FFO in a similar fashion, our
calculation of FFO may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures reported by other companies.

We calculate FFQ in accordance with standards established
by the National Asscciation of Real Estate Investment Trusts
("NAREIT"}) which defines FFO as net income {(computed in
accordance with GAAP) excluding gains (or losses) from sales
of property, plus depreciation and amortization, and after
adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.




The following table reconciles our net income to FFQ for
the years ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

(in thousands, except per share emounts) 2006 2005 2004
Net income allocable to commaon stockholders $4,405 $4,569 $1,360
Adjustments:

Add: Minority interest-0P units 17 - -

Add: Depreciation and amortization expense on real property 25,451 11,273 1,281
Funds from operations $29,873 $15,842 §2,641
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, diluted 31,941 27,784 22,125
Weighted average number of OP units outstanding 145 - -
Weighted average number of common shares and OF units outstanding, diluted 32,086 27,784 22,125
Net income per common share, basic and diluted $0.14 $0.16 $0.06
Funds from operations per share $0.93 $0.57 $0.12
Gain on sale of mortgage loans and securities $2,923 $447 §794
Depreciation on real estate investments consolidated under FIN46 $- $935 $-

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2006, we had $4.4 million in available cash
and cash equivalents. As a REIT, we are required to distribute

at least 90% of our taxable income to our stockhalders on an
annual basis, and we intend to distribute all or substantially all
of our REIT taxable income in order to comply with the distribu-
tion requirements of the Code and to avoid federal income tax
and the nondeductible excise tax. We declared total dividends

of $0.80 per share of common stock during the year ended De-
cember 31, 2006, including $0.20 per share in each of the first,
second, third and fourth quarters. We also declared a dividend of
$0.5078125 per share of 8.125% Series A cumulative redeem-
able preferred stock in each of the first, second, third and fourth
quarters of 2006.

We believe that our working capital and cash provided by
operations will be sufficient to fund our operations and pay our
distributions necessary to enable us te continue to qualify as a
REIT. However, our strategy contemplates additional investments
and, therefore, as we approach or reach our target leverage level
from time to time, we will need to raise additional capital. As of
December 31, 2006, we had an effective shelf registration state-
ment under which we can offer an aggregate of approximately
$202.5 million of common stock, preferred stock and/or senior
or subordinated debt securities from time to time.

We raised additional equity capital through a public offering
of common stock that closed in May 2006. We issued 5,747,000
shares of common stock in a public offering at a price to the

public of $10.55 per share, and raised net proceeds of ap-

proximately $57.3 million, after the underwriting discount and
offering expenses. The shares were issued pursuant to our shelf
registration statement. We used $52.9 mitlion of the proceeds
from the offering to reduce our short-term borrowings, and the
balance to fund additional investments.

We also sold an aggregate of 160,900 shares of common stock
through a public offering in the fourth quarter of 2006. Brinson
Patrick Securities Corporation acted as our agent for these sales
pursuant to a sales agreement we entered into with them in
August 2005 and received a sales commission of 3.0% on the
sales. The shares were issued pursuant to our shelf registration
statement. We raised net proceeds of approximately $1.9 million
and we used these proceeds to fund additional investments,

We expect to continue to raise additional capital from time to
time to enable us to continue to implement our growth strategy,
although the precise timing of our next capital raise will be im-
pacted by our pace of investment activity and market conditions.
Our ability to raise capital is influenced by market conditions,
and we cannot assure you conditions for raising capital will be
favorable for us at any time.

We recognize rental income on our owned properties on a
straight line basis in accordance with SFAS 13, As of December
31, 2006, this has resulted in the company accruing $14.9 million
of rental income in excess of our actual rent cash flows under the
various leases, with $8.8 million accruing during 2006. We expect
the impact of straight-lining of rents to fluctuate over time as
contractual rents step up and our actual rent cash flows increase
under the various leases and we purchase additional properties.
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Short-Term Liquidity and Financing

We expect to meet our short-term Liquidity requirements gener-
ally through our available cash and cash equivalents, cash
provided by operations, as well as through our short-term
borrowing arrangements. Qur short-term borrowing arrangements
are comprised of a repurchase agreement with Wachovia Bank
(aggregate borrowing capacity of $250 million) and a real
property acquisition facility with Wachovia Bank and one of

its affiliates (two loan agreements with aggregate borrowing
capacity of $100 million}. These arrangements are uncommitted,
meaning the lenders may decline to advance on any asset we
seek to finance.

In anticipation of our next CDO issuance, in December 2006
Wachovia Bank agreed to temporarily expand our barrowing
capacity under our repurchase agreement to $350 million.

We had $195.5 million outstanding as of December 31, 2006
under our Wachovia repurchase agreement, which borrawings
were secured by loan investments with an aggregate carry value
of $171.8 million, and securities with a carry value of $82.0
million. We had no borrowings outstanding as of December 31,
2006 under our real property acquisition facility. Our short-term
borrowing arrangements are co-terminus, and are scheduled to
expire in August 2007.

Our short-term borrowing arrangements allow us to finance
our assets on a short-term basis while we arrange long-term
financing. We pay interest at prevailing short-term interest rates
plus a spread. These borrowing arrangements are secured by the
assets financed and are fully recourse to our other assets. Qur
lender also has the right to initiate a margin call if our assets
financed decline in value (including as a result of a tenant down-
grade). We are required to comply with various covenants under
these arrangements, including financial covenants of minimum
liquidity, minimum consolidated net worth and maximum leverage.

As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with the
terms of our short-term borrowing arrangements. We do not cur-
rently anticipate any difficulty in maintaining compliance with
these terms in future periods. We believe our relationship with
Wachovia Bank is excellent. However, because our short-term
borrowing arrangements are uncommitted, we cannot make any
assurance that these facilities will continue to be available to us.

Long-Term Liquidity and Financing

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements generally
through cash provided by operations, long-term fixed-rate financ-
ings on our asset investments and issuances of debt and equity
capital. As discussed in further detail above, we issued 5,747,000
shares of comman stock in an underwritten public offering in
May 2006. We also issued an aggregate of 160,900 shares of
common stock through Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation as
sales agent in a public offering in the fourth quarter of 2006.
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We finance our investments through short-term financing
arrangements and, as soon as practicable thereafter, we obtain
long-term financing for these investments, generally on a
secured, nen-recourse basis. Through December 31, 2006,
our long-term financings have been in the form of traditional
third party mortgage financings (on most of our owned real
properties) and our first COO (completed in March 2005). As of
December 31, 2006, we have financed on a long-term basis an
aggregate of approximately $1.36 billion of assets in portfolio
with third party mortgage debt of $794.8 million and collateral-
ized debt obligations of $268.2 million. We expect our leverage
to average 70% to 85% of our assets in portfolio. Including the
December 2005 trust preferred debt, our overalt portfolio lever-
age as of December 31, 2006 was approximately 81.8%.

Long-Term Mortgage Financings

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we obtained $217.0
million of long-term third party mortgage financing on our real
property acquisitions. We also assumed debt of an aggregate of
$28.6 million (fair market value of debt assumed) in connection
with the acquisition of one real property.

Qur mortgage financings are fixed rate financings. The notes
typically mature over a long-term period of approximately ten
years, and debt service is payable monthly. The notes are gener-
ally non-recourse to us but are secured by a mortgage on the
property and an assignment of the underlying lease and rents on
the property. The notes include customary non-recourse excep-
tions, The notes are often interest only for all or a portion of the
note term, and thus require a balloon payment at maturity. We
believe the value of the assets financed is, and wilt continue to
be, sufficient to repay or refinance our debt at maturity.

CDO Financing

In March 2005, we completed our first CDO. Our CDO was an
entirely fixed rate financing. We aggregated approximately $300
million of assets into the pool, and we created $285 miltion face
amount of multi-class notes and $15 million of preferred equity
through the CDO trust. The net amount of the debt we issued
was $268.1 million, inclusive of a $0.4 million discount to face,
as we retained the three most junior note classes aggregating

a face amount of $16.5 million and the full $15 mitlion of pre-
ferred equity. Each of the five note classes of the CDO was rated
investment grade. During the first five years of the (DO term, we
expect to reinvest principal repayments on the underlying assets
into qualifying replacement collateral. The CDO notes are expect-
ed to mature in January 2015. Qur effective blended financing
rate {inclusive of original issue discount and debt issuance and




hedge costs) on our €00 is approximately 5.67%. Our (DO debt
is non-recourse to us but is secured by the assets in the pool.

We are currently aggregating assets for our next CDO financ-
ing. We expect our next (DO jssuance to occur in the second
quarter of 2007,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities provided $27.4 million of cash during 2006,
primarily driven by net income as adjusted by various non-

cash gains and charges of $24.7 million, increases in accounts
payable of $2.3 million and decreases in other assets of $1.5
million, partially offset by decreases in depasits and escrows of
$1.9 million, We used $17.1 million of cash in operating activi-
ties in 2005. Qur 2005 net income as adjusted for straight-lining
of rents, various non-cash gains and losses and depreciation
and amortization charges was $14.1 million, but was offset by
increases in other assets of $18.9 million (net of $8.3 million
increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses), decreases
in deposits and escrows of $8.5 millien and amounts due to
servicers and dealers of $4.4 million. The increase in other assets
in 2005 was driven by $16.6 million of funds being held by our
CDO trustee at year end pending distribution or reinvestment,
$5.7 million of cash being held in escrow by our mortgage lend-
ers to fund various property related costs (like tenant improve-
ments, capital expendituras and property expenses), and $4.4
million of rents receivable on several of our owned properties.
During 2005, most of the cash we had collected in 2004 in

the form of deposits and escrows and amounts due to servicers
was paid back. Our net cash provided by operating activities in
2004 was $11.0 million and reflects adjustments for non-cash
items of expenses for amortization of stock-based compensation
($3.8 million) and depreciation and amortization ($1.4 million,
including $1.3 million on real property). Our net cash provided
by operating activities in 2004 also reflects adjustments for
nen-cash items for amortization of ahove and below market
rents ($0.1 million), straight-lining of rents ($0.5 million) and
amortization of discounts/premiums, and origination fees/costs
{$0.2 million).

Investing activities used $361.9 million during the year
ended December 31, 2006, which primarily resulted from net
investments in real estate of $337.9 million, net investments in
securities available for sale of $46.7 million, and purchases of
furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
of $1.8 million, partially offset by a net reduction in our loan
investments of $24.8 mitlion. We sold a mortgage loan for $78.6
million during 2006. Investing activities used $675.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2005, which primarily
resulted from net investments in real estate of $534.4 million,
net investments in loans of $83.3 million and net investments in
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securities available for sale of $58.8 million. Investing activities
used $349.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2004,
which primarily resutted from net investments in real estate of
$174.4 million, net investments in mortgage loans of $133.1
milltion and net investments in securities available for sale of
$40.0 million.

Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $319.5 million, reflecting net borrowings
from mortgages on real estate investments of $214.7 million,
net borrowings on repurchase agreements and other short-term
financing obligations of $65.5 million, proceeds from our com-
mon stock offering of $59.1 million, and cash received from a
construction escrow held by our mortgage lender of $8.7 millign,
offset in part by, dividends and distributions paid of $27.7 mil-
Lion and debt issuance costs of $1.3 million, Cash provided by
financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2005
was $681.1 million, reflecting net borrowings from mortgages on
real estate investments of $399.2 million, barrowings from
collateralized debt obligations of $268.1 miltion, proceeds from
a preferred stock equity offering of $33.7 million, and borrow-
ings from ather long-term debt obligations of $30.9 million,
offset in part by, dividends paid on common shares of $19.2
miltion, funds used in hedging and risk management activities
of $11.2 million, a construction escrow held with our mortgage
lender of $9.5 million, debt issuance costs of $7.1 million, and
net repayments on repurchase agreement obligations of $3.9 mil-
Lion. Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended
December 31, 2004 was $362.8 million, reflecting net proceeds
from our initial public offering of $222.8 million (before prepaid
offering expenses of approximately $1.0 million), net borrowings
under long-term mortgage financings of $97.4 million, net bor-
rowings under repurchase agreements of $45.7 million, partially
offset by dividends paid of $2.7 million. We used $88.1 million
of our net proceeds from the initial public offering to repay our
repurchase agreement borrowings.

See our consolidated statements of cash flows in the histori-
cal consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
filing for a reconciliation of our cash position for the periods
described above.

DERIVATIVE AND OTHER RISK MANAGEMENT TRANSACTIONS

Since our initial public offering, we have entered into de-
rivative and other risk management transactions in order to
hedge the value of our future debt obligations from changes

in underlying interest rates during the period between closing
and obtaining long-term financing of our assets. Qur derivative
and other risk management activities during this period have
consisted primarily of interest rate swaps, and we expect they
will continue to consist primarily of interest rate swaps in the
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future. In accordance with SFAS 133, the interest rate swaps, to
the extent that they have been designated and qualify as part
of a hedging relationship, are treated as cash flow hedges for
accounting purposes.

Net realized gains and losses on our qualifying cash flow
hedges are included in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified and amortized as part of interest expense on our
Consolidated Income Statement over the expected term of the
related debt issuances. For the years ended December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, we had net realized gains and (losses)
of $0.4 million and ${11.2) millien, respectively, related to cash
flow hedges. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, we reclassified $1.2 million and $0.9 million,
respectively, from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
interest expense related to the underlying debt issuances.

Within the next twelve months, we estimate that $1.2 million
of net losses currently hetd within Accumulated Other Compre-
hensive Income will be rectassified to earnings as additional
interest expense.

Consistent with SFAS No. 133, open cash flow hedges are
marked to fair value at each reporting date, with a carresponding
offset to other comprehensive income {a component of Stock-

holders’ Equity). The change in net unrealized gains and {losses)
of $(0.7) million and $8.1 million in the years ended December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, for derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges is separately disclosed in the
Company’s statement of changes in stockholders’ equity.

We do not use derivative and other risk management
transactions for trading or speculative purposes and we only
enter into contracts or hedging arrangements with major
financial institutions.

We settle our derivative and other risk management transac-
tions in cash. Therefore, upon settlement, we will pay or receive
cash for the net amount due. These amounts could be material
and could have a material impact (positive os negative) on our
liquidity. We seek to settle these transactions simultaneous with
the closing of our financing transaction for the related hedged
asset to mitigate the possible adverse impact on our liguidity.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table outines the timing of payment requirements

related to our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006:

(in thousands)

TOTAL LESS THAN 1 YEAR 2-3 YEARS 4-5 YEARS AFTER 5 YEARS
Mortgages on real estate investments $794,773 $5,207 $16,861 $25,141 $747,564
Collateralized debt obligations 268,190 (36) (79} 33,653 234,652
Other long-term debt 30,930 - - - 30,930
Operating leases 5,010 738 1,470 1,485 1,317
Repurchase agreement obligations 195,485 195,485 - - -
Total $1,294,388 $201,394 $18,252 $60,279 $1,014,463

Negative amounts shown with respect to our coliateralized debt obligations represent amortization of eriginal issue discount.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of December 31, 2006, we had the following off-balance sheet
arrangements.

We are obligated under a letter of credit with respect to one
of our prior securitization transactions (BSCMS 1999-CLF1). The
maximum potential amount of future required payments under
the letter of credit is $2.85 million. The letter of credit expires
on February 18, 2009. The trustee of the securitization trust may
draw the letter of credit if there are realized losses on the mort-
gage loans in the collateral pool that would create a shortfall in
the interest or principal on any investment grade certificate. The
letter of credit may be withdrawn when the ratings of the invest-
ment grade certificates are ne longer dependent upon the credit
support provided by the letter of credit. During February 2005,
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ane of the mortgage loans in the securitization on a property
leased to Winn-Dixie defaulted, in connection with the bank-
ruptcy of Winn-Dixie. This loan was tiquidated by the trust in the
fourth quarter of 2006. We do not expect any draw on the letter
of credit as a result of this mortgage default, or otherwise.

We had outstanding commitments to fund loans of approxi-
mately $12.0 million related to our credit agreement to support
YUM! Brands, Inc. franchise loans as of December 31, 2006. As
of December 31, 2006, advances of $5.7 million had been made
against these commitments,

We entered into an office lease in April 2006 for our new
corporate offices at 1065 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New
York. The term of the lease is for seven years and five months
with a base rent of approximately $0.7 million per year for the
first four years (after a five month rent free period} and approxi-




mately $0.8 million per year for the remainder of the term.

During October 2006, we acquired a real property in Fresno,
California leased to Aetna Life Insurance Company, and agreed
to fund expected improvements to the real property of ap-
proximately $0.8 million. During November 2006, we arranged
long-term financing on this property and we funded a reserve
account with our lender for the full amount of this obligation.
We expect these funds will be disbursed in full as improvements
are completed. As of December 31, 2006, none of these funds
have heen dishursed.

We have agreed to contribute up to $5.0 million of capital
to a newly formed management company organized to form
and manage real estate investment funds offered and sold to
turopean investors, subject to the satisfaction of certain terms
and conditions by the principals of the management company.
As of December 31, 2006, we had deposited approximately $0.4
million toward our aggregate $5.0 million commitment.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss from adverse changes in the
level of one or more market prices, rate indices or other market
factors. We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in
interest rates, credit spreads, tenant credit ratings and equity
prices. We attempt to mitigate certain of these risks by entering
into hedge and other risk management transactions during the
short-term and fixed-rate financings for the long-term. We seek
to obtain long-term fixed rate financing as soon as practicable
after we make an asset investment. There can be no assurance,
however, that such mitigation strategies will be completely or
even partially successful. The level of our exposure to market risk
is subject to factors beyond our control, including political risk
(including terrorism), monetary and tax policy, general economic
conditions and a variety of other associated risks.

Interest Rate Exposure

We are exposed to interest rate risk in various aspects of our
business. The most significant ways we can be impacted by inter-
est rates are as follows. Increases in the level of interest rates
may impact our ability to originate new assets, as spreads on
assets we are targeting may compress {unless there is a corre-
sponding increase in assetf returns) and demand for our products
may be adversely affected.

Also, to the extent we finance assets in our portfolio on our
short-term borrowing facilities, our net income from these fixed
rate assets will decrease as interest rates rise and our borrowing
cost increases. In addition, as interest rates rise, our anticipated
cost to finance these assets on a long-term basis may rise,
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causing our expected spread on these assets to be reduced. We
attempt to mitigate these risks by entering into risk manage-
ment transactions that react in a manner that offsets our
increased interest costs and by locking our long-term financing
cost as soon as practicable after we commit to an asset. As
noted above, there can be no assurance that our mitigation
strategies will be successful.

Furthermore, shifts in the U.S. Treasury yield curve, which
represents the market’s expectations of future interest rates,
would also affect the yield required on our fixed-rate assets. This
would have similar effects on the fair value of our loans and real
estate securities, our financial position and results of operations,
as would a change in general credit spreads (described below).

Credit Spread Curve Exposure

Our loans and real estate securities are subject to spread risk.
The majority of these assets are fixed-rate assets, which are
valued based on a market credit spread over the rate payable an
fixed-rate U.S. Treasuries of like maturity. In other words, their
value is dependent on the yield demanded on such assets by the
market based on their credit relative to LS. Treasuries. Changes
in the general credit markets can lead to changes in the required
yietd on these assets, which would result in a higher or lower
value for our loans and real estate securities, If the required
market yields increase as a result of these general credit-market
changes, the value of our fixed-rate assets would decline rela-
tive to U.S. Treasuries. Conversely, if the required market yields
decrease as a result of these general credit-market changes, the
value of our fixed-rate assets would increase relative to U.S.
Treasuries. These changes in the market value of our fixed-rate
asset portfolio may affect the equity on our balance sheet or
our results of operations directly through provisions for losses
on loans or on available-for-sale securities. These value changes
may also affect our ability to borrow and access capital.

Tenant Credit Rating Exposure

Substantially all of our portfolio assets are subject to risks due
to credit rating changes of the underlying tenant or tenants.
Deterioration in the underlying tenant’s credit rating can result
in a lower value for the related asset, which could result in &
reduction in the equity on our balance sheet or a charge to our
income statement. In addition, precipitous declines in the credit
rating of a particular tenant prior to our obtaining long-term
financing may significantly impede or eliminate our ability to
finance the asset. We manage these risks by maintaining diver-
sity among our credits and assessing our aggregate exposure to
ratings classes, in particular lower rated classes. We also seek to
lock or procure long-term financing on our assets as promptly as
practicable after we commit to invest.
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Equity Price Risk Exposure

We may seek to raise capital by sale of our common stock.
QOur ability to do so is dependent upon the market price of our
common stock and general market conditions.

Fair Value

For certain of our financial instruments, fair values are not
readily available since there are no active trading markets as
characterized by current exchanges between willing parties,
Accordingly, we derive or estimate fair values using various
valuation techniques, such as computing the present value of

estimated future cash flows using discount rates commensurate
with the risks involved. However, the determination of estimated
cash flows may be subjective and imprecise. Changes in assump-
tions or estimation methodologies can have a material affect on
these estimated fair vatues. The fair values indicated below are
indicative of the interest rate and credit spread environment as
of December 31, 2006, and may not take into consideration the
effects of subsequent interest rate or credit spread fluctuations,
or changes in the ratings of the underlying tenants.

The following summarizes certain data regarding our interest
rate sensitive instruments:

(dollar amounts in thousands)

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EFFECTIVE
CARRYING AMOUNT NOTIONAL AMOUNT  INTEREST RATE  MATURITY DATE FALR VALUE
12/31/2006  12/31/2005  12/31/2006  12/31/2005 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 123172005
Assets:
Mortgage and other real estate loans $274,085  $298,377  $272,271  3296,479 6.85% Various $277.014  $307.829
held for investment
Securities available for sale @ 183,066 137,409 192,111 149,662 7.61%  2009-2028 183,066 137,400
Structuring fees receivable 3,253 3,862 N/A N/A 7.99%  2010-2020 3,253 3.862
Derivative assets @ 2,333 1,082 127,529 82,852 N/A N/A 2,333 1,082
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreement and other $195,485  $129,965  §195,485  $129,965 6.25%  Short-term §195,485  $129,965
short-term financing obligations
Mortgages on real estate investments 794,173 551,844 789,971 546,284 5.58%  2013-2024 7B4,802 545,289
Coliateralized debt obligations ¢ 268,190 268,156 268,500 268,500 5.67% 2015 258,557 262,955
Other long-term debt & 30,930 30,930 30,930 30,930 B.30% 2016 31,958 30,849
Derivative liabilities 2,405 298 104,190 43,029 N/A N/A 2,405 298

(1) This portfolie of loans bears interest at fixed rates. We have estimated the fair vaiue of this portfolio of loans based on sales of loans with simifor credit and structural char-
acteristics where available, and management’s estimate of fair values where comparable sates information is not avaitable. The maturity dates for the loans range from 2007

through 2033,

(2) Securitfes available for sale represent subordinate interests in securitizations {(MBS), as well as pass-through certificates representing our pro rata investments in @ pool of
mortgage loans. Structuring fees receivable represent cash flows receivatle by us from the sale of loans to third-party purchesers. The notional values for the (MBS are shown
at their respective face amounts, Fair volue for the CMBS is based en third-party quotations, where obtainable, or our estimate of fair volue, based on yields of comparably
rated securities in the (MBS market. Fair value for the structuring fees receivable is shown ot our amortized cost for these items. For the securities ovailoble for sale, we
expect to receive monthly interest coupen payments, and contractual principal payments as scheduled.

{3) These instruments represent hedging and risk management transactions involving interest rate swaps. They hove been valued by reference to market quotations.

{4) Our repurchase agreement and other short-term financing obligations bear interest at floating rates, and we believe thot for similar financial instruments with comparable
credit risks, the effective rates approximate morket value. Accordingly, the carying amounts outstanding are believed to approximate fair vatue.

(5) We estimate the fair value of mortgage notes on real estate investments and colloteralized debt obligations using a discounted cash flow analysis, based on our estimates
of market interest rates. For mortgages where we have an early payment right, we also consider the prepayment amount to evaluate the fair value. The maturity date of the
collateratized debt obligations reflects our expected maturity date in Januery 2015 and is used to compute the related fair value and weighted average effective interest rate.

(6) We estimate the fair volue of our other long-term debt using o discounted cash flow anclysis, bosed upon management's estimates of market interest rates. The maturity date
of our other fong-term debt reflects our expected maturity date in January 2016 and is used to compute the related fair value and weighted average effective interest rate.

Our generally higher evel of interest rate sensitive instruments
at December 31, 2006 reflects our greater level of assets and
liabilities as a result of our continued growth since completion
of our initial public offering in March 2004.
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Scheduled maturities of interest rate sensitive instruments as of
December 31, 2006 are as follows:

(in thousands, notional amounts where appropriate, otherwise carrying amounts)

EXPECTED MATURITY DATES

2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 THEREAFTER
Mortgage and other real estate loans $13,587 $5.972 $14,846 $11,393 $12,493 $213,980
Securities availabte for sale - CMBS 1,553 2,203 25,129 2,366 2,914 157,946
Structuring fees receivable 659 713 772 768 73 268
Derivative assets 2,333 - . - - -
Mortgages on real estate investments 5,207 7,565 9,296 11,289 13,852 747,564
Repurchase agreement and other short-term 195,485 - - - - -
financing obligations
Collateralized debt obligations (36) (38) (41) 22,792 10,861 234,652
Other long-term debt - - . - - 30,930
Derivative liabilities 2,405 - - - - -

Negative amounts shown with respect to our collateralized debt obligations represent amortization of original issue discount.

The expected maturity dates shown for {oan investments, secun-
ties available for sale and structuring fees receivable are based
on the contractual terms of the underlying assets. These assets,
based on our current operating strateqy, are held for investment,
COur liabilities with respect to our repurchase agreement are
short-term in nature and, accordingly, are listed in the current
period. The material assumptions used to determine fair value
are included in footnotes 1 through 6 in the immediately
preceding table.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Capital Lease Funding, Inc. (the “Company™) is

responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting. Internal contrel over financial
reporting is defined in Ruie 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a process

designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company's principal

executive and principal financial officers, and effected by the

Company’s board of directors, management and other persan-

nel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and includes those poli-
cies and procedures that:

" pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable
detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispo-
sitions of assets of the Company;

" provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza-
tions of management and directors of the Company; and

" provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPDRT

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fi-
nancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compli-
ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Becember 31,
2006. In making the assessment, management used the criteria
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0) in Internal Control-—Integrated
Framework.

Based on this assessment, management concluded that, as of
December 31, 2006, the Company's internal control over financial
reporting is designed and operating effectively.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP. the Company's independent regis-
tered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on
management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. This report appears at the beginning of Item
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets
of Capital Lease Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders’ equity/members’ capital, and
cash flows for the years then ended. Our audit also included

the financial statement schedules of Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
listed in the Index at [tem 8. We also have audited manage-
ment’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s
Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”,
that Capital Lease Funding, Inc. maintained effective internat
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based
on criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Frame-
work issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (C050).” Capital Lease Funding, Incls
management is responsible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective {nternal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opin-
ion on these financial statements, an opinion on management’s
assessment, and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Compa-
ny's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
matenial respects. Qur audit of financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Qur
audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtain-
ing an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
pracess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
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accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reason-
abte detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendi-
tures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. _
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the deqree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Capital Lease Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, management’s assessment
that Capitat Lease Funding, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established
in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Com-
mittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COS0).” Furthermore, in our opinion, Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal controt
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (C050).”

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen LLP
New York, New York
March 7, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Capital Lease Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity/members’ capital, and cash flows of
Capital Lease Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company”} for
the year ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of matenal misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,

we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used, and significant estimates made by management, and evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results
of operations and cash flows of Capital Lease Funding, Inc. and
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2004, in confor-
mity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
New York, New York
March 8, 2005
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER 31

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts} 2006 2005
Assets
Real estate inve;tments, net $1,115,001 $764,930
Mortgaae and other real estate loans held for investment 273,170 297,551
Securities available for sale 183,066 137,409
Cash and cash equivalents 4,425 19,316
Asset held for sale 2,942 2,942
Structuring fees receivable 3,253 3,862
Other assets 62,443 60,478
Total Assets $1,644,300 $1,286,488
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities $17,132 $14,890
Repurchase agreement and other short-term financing obligations 195,485 129,965
Mortgages on real estate investments 794,773 551,844
Collateralized debt obligations 268,190 268,156
Other long-term debt 30,930 30,930
Intangible liabilities on real estate investments 19,693 14,419
Dividends payable 7,582 6,253
Total Liabilities 1,333,785 1,016,457
Minority interest 2,859 -
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, Series A cumulative

redeemable preferred, liquidation preference $25.00 per share, 1,400,000 shares

issued and outstanding 33,657 33,657

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 34,091,829 and 27,868,480 shares issued and

outstanding, respectively 341 279

Additional paid in capital 277,918 237,843

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,260} (1,748)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 307,656 270,031
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $1,644,300 $1,286,488

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statements

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

(Amounts in thousands, except per share omounts) 2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Rental revenue $78,656 $37.956 34,287
Interest income from mortgage and other real estate loans and securities 32,470 27,898 13,589
Property expense recoveries 8,828 6,272 T 1,608
Gains on sate of mortgage loans and securities 2,923 447 794
Other revenue 1,903 479 726
Total Revenues 124,780 73,052 21,004
Expenses:
Interest expense 63,212 31,398 2,768
Property expenses 15,891 10,441 1,761
{Gain} loss on derivatives {413} (159) 724
Loss on securities 907 2.372 247
General and administrative expenses 9,772 10,140 8,833
General and administrative expenses-stock based compensation 2,621 2,235 3,825
Depreciation and amortization expense on real property 25,451 11,273 1,281
Loan processing expenses 268 283 196
Total Expenses 117,709 67,983 19,635
Income before minority interest and taxes 7,071 5,069 1,369
Minority interest in consolidated entities (17) 55 -
Provision for income taxes - - 9
Income from continuing operations 7,054 5.124 1,360
Income from discontinued operations 195 6 -
Net income 7,249 5.130 1,360
Dividends allocable to preferred shares (2,844} (561) -
Net Income Allocable to Common Stockholders $4,405 $4,569 $1,360

Earnings per share:

Net income per common share, basic and diluted $0.14 $0.16 $0.06
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic 31,939 27,784 22,125
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, diluted 31,941 27,784 22,125
Dividends declared per common share $0.08 $0.74 $0.25
Dividends declared per preferred share $2.03125 $0.48524 $-

See notes to consolidated firancial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity/Members’ Capital

(Amounts in thousonds)

CAPITAL LEASE FUNDING, LLC

CAPTTAL LEASE FUNDING, INC,

MEMBERS' CAPITAL

ACCUMULATED

OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE COMMON STOCK
INCOME (LOSS) PREFERRED STOCK AT PAR

Balance at December 31, 2003

$31,957

$2,088 5 - $1

Acquisition of Caplease LP

Issuance of common stock-initial public offering

Initial public offering costs

Issuance of stock-incentive stock plan at offering date
Adjust initial management share purchase to market value

Incentive stock plan compensatien expense-March 25-
December 31, 2004

Net income

Dividends dectared

Unrealized change in value on securities available for sale
Unrealized loss on derivatives

Net realized loss on cash flow hedges

(31,957)

(2,088) - 40
- - 230

- - 4

Batance at December 31, 2004

Issuance of preferred stock

incentive stock plan compensation expense

Incentive stock plan grants issued and forfeited

Net income

Issuance of common stock

Dividends declared-preferred

Dividends declared-common

Unrealized change in value of securities available for sale
Unrealized change in value of derivatives

Realized losses on derivatives, net of amortization of $877

Balance at December 31, 2005

Incentive stock plan compensation expense

Incentive stock plan grants issued and forfeited

Net income

Issuance of common stock

Dividends declared-preferred

Dividends declared-comman

Unrealized change in value of securities available for sale

Unrealized change in value of derivatives

Realized gains on derivatives, net of amortization of $1,173

Balance at December 31, 2006

$- $33,657 $341

See notes to consolidated finoncial statements.
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CAPITAL LEASE FUNDING, INC,

ACCUMULATED
OTHER

Continued ADDITIONAL COMPREHENSIVE RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
(Amgunts in thousands) PAID-IN CAPITAL INCOME {LOSS) EARNINGS TOTAL INCOME
Balance at December 31, 2003 $13 $ - $- $34,059

Acquisition of Caplease LP 31,917 2,088 - -

Issuance of commen stock-initial public offering 241,270 - - 241,500

Initial public offering costs (19,723) - - (19,723)

Issuante of stock-incentive stock plan at offering date 1,357 - - 1,361

Adjust initial management share purchase to market value 1,447 - - 1,447

Incentive stock plan compensation expense-March 25- 1,018 - - 1,018

December 31, 2004

Net income - - 1,360 1.360 $1,360

Dividends declared {5.513} - {1,360) (6,873)

Unrealized change in value on securities available for sale - 8,121 - 8,121 8,121

Unrealized loss on derivatives - {7,312) - {7,312) {7.312)

Net realized loss on cash flow hedges - (1,694) - {1,694) (1.694)
Batance at December 31, 2004 251,786 1,203 - 253,264 $475

Issuance of preferred stock - - - 33,657

incentive stock plan compensation expense 2,235 - - 2.235

Encentive stock plan grants issued and forfeited {4) - - -

Net income - - 5,130 5,130 $5.130

Issuance of common stock - - - -

Dividends declared-preferred - - (680} (680)

Dividends declared-common {16,174} - (4,450) (20,624)

Unrealized change in value of securities available for sale - (561) - (561) {561)

Unrealized change in value of derivatives - 8,098 - 8,098 8,098

Realized losses on derivatives, net of amortization of $877 - {10,488) - (10,488) (10,488)
Balance at December 31, 2005 237,843 {1,748) - 276,031 $2,179

Incentive stock plan compensation expense 2,621 - - 2,621

Incentive stock plan grants issued and forfeited (3) - - -

Net income - - 7,249 7.249 $7.249

Issuance of commen stock 59,074 - - 59,133

Dividends declared-preferred - - (2,844} (2.844)

Dividends declared-common (21,617) - {4,405) (26,022)

Unrealized change in value of securities available for sale - (2,956} - (2,956) (2.956)

Unrealized change in value of derivatives - {737) - (737} (737)

Realized gains on derivatives, net of amortization of $1,173 - 1,181 - 1,181 1,181
Balance at December 31, 2006 $277,918 $(4.260) $- $307,656 $4,737
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

{Amounts in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Operating Activities
Net income §7,249 $5,130 $1,360

Adjustments to reconcile ret income to cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 25,7117 10,469 1,386
Stock based compensation 2,621 2,235 3,825
Amortization of above and below market leases (686) (583) (80}
Minority interest in consolidated entities 17 - -
Gain on sale of mortgage loans and securities (2,923) {447) (794)
Loss on securities available for sale 907 2,3n 247
(Gain) loss on derivatives (413} (159) 724
Straight-lining of rents (8.822) (5.581) (507)
Amortization of discounts/premiums, and origination fees/costs {526) (514) (247)
Amortization of debt issuance costs and FMV of debt assumed 1,593 1,139 18
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Funds used in hedging and risk management activities - - (4,485)
Structuring fees receivable 609 563 797
Other assets 1,510 (27.146) (6,676)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,275 8,271 843
Deposits and escrows {1.867) (8,501) 10,550
Amounts due to servicer 182 (4,359) 4,012
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Operating Activities 27,443 (17,111) 10,973

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of mortgage and other real estate loans 78,645 12,131 25,422
Additions to mortgage and other real estate loans (122.988) (115,852) (167,009)
Principal received from borrowers 69,196 20,372 8,520
Origination costs on lending investments 201 362 331
Purchase of securities available for sale (56.201) (66,168) (95,867)
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale 7.939 5,787 55,868
Principal amortization an securities availzble for sale 1,518 1,541 418
Purchases of real estate investments (329,751) (530,593} (174,351)
Real estate improvements, additions and construction in progress {(8,188) {3,825) (174)
Deposits on potential equity investments (16,445) {14,700} (2,500)
Return of deposits on equity investments 16,045 16,600 -
Purchase of other investments - (930) -
Purchases of furniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements (1,825) (133) (234)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (361,854) {675,408} {349,576)

Cantinued >
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(CDNT]NUED)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

(Amounts in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Financing.Activities

Borrowing under repurchase agreement and other short-term financing obligations $189,5621 $232,024 $135,411
Repayment of repurchase agreement and other short-term financing abligations (124,001) (235,890) (30,344)
Repayments under repurchase agreements to affiliates - - {59.322)
Borrowings from mortgages on real estate investments 217,050 400,552 97,547
Repayments of mortgages on reaf estate investmants (2,368) (1,341) (191)
Borrowings from collateralized debt obligations - 268,130 -
Borrowings from other long-term debt obligations - 30,930 -
Debt issuance costs (1,327) (7.050) (344)
Escrows held with mortgage lender 8,695 (9,507} -
Funds provided by {used in) hedging and risk management activities 421 (11,206) -
Commeon stock issued, net of offering costs 59,133 - 222,818
Preferred stock issued, net of offering costs - 13,657 -
Cash distributions to minority limited partners (105) - -
Dividends paid on common and preferred stock (27.591) (19,174) (2,749)
Reverse merger - - 14
Changes in amounts due from affiliates 92 (11) {38)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities $319,520 $681,114 $362,802
Net (decrease} increase in cash and cash equivalents (14,891) (11,405) 24,199
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 19,316 30,721 6,522
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $4,425 $19,316 $30,721

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the year for interest expense (excluding capitalized interest} $59,965 $24,165 52,647
Cash paid for capitalized interest - 1,589 -
Cash paid during the year for income taxes - 9 -
Distributions declared but not paid 53 - -
Dividends declared but not paid 1,529 6,253 4,124

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Qperating, Investing and Financing Information

Prepaid expenses and other assets reclassified to public offering costs $- 3 - $1,040
Unrealized (loss} gain on cash flow hedges (737) 8,098 (7.312)
Unrealized (loss} gain on available-for-sale securities (2,956) (561) 8,121
Value of in-place leases and above-market leases acquired 39,619 69,344 13,518
Value of below-market leases acquired 6,465 8,102 7.108
Securities reclassified to mortgage loans held for investment - 6,932 -
Mortgage notes payable assumed on properties acguired 28,623 41,276 14,190
Operating partnership units issued in connection with an investment 3,000 - -
Real estate investments consolidated under FIN46 - 81,500 48,000
Real estate investments no longer consolidated under FIN46 - 129,500 -
Mortgage on real estate investments consolidated under FIN4G - 50,887 4,815
Martgage on real estate investments no longer consolidated under FIN46 - 55,702 -
Depreciation on real estate investments cansolidated under FIN4S - 935 -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

(Dotlar amounts in thousands, except per share amourits}

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

L. Organization

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Capital Lease Funding, Inc. (“CLF, Inc.” and collectively with its
majority-owned subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a diversified real
estate investment trust, or REIT, that invests primarily in single
tenant commercial real estate assets subject to long-term leases
to high credit quality tenants. The Company focuses on proper-
ties that are subject to a net lease, or a lease that requires the
tenant to pay all or substantially all expenses normally associ-
ated with the ownership of the property (such as utilities, taxes,
insurance and routine maintenance} during the lease term. The
Company also has made and expects to continue to make invest-
ments in single tenant properties where the owner has exposure
to property expenses when it determines it can sufficiently
underwrite that exposure and isolate a predictable cash flow.

The Company invests at all levels of the capital structure
of net lease or other single tenant properties, including equity
investments in real estate (owned real properties), debt invest-
ments (mortgage loans and net lease mortgage backed securi-
ties) and mezzanine investments secured by net leased or other
single tenant real estate collateral.

CLF, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Maryland during
October 2003, and was formed for the purpose of continuing
the existing business operations and acquiring the assets and
liabilities of Caplease, LP. Since 1995, Caplease, LP was primarily
engaged in the business of underwriting, originating and selling
or securitizing mortgage loans made to owners of real properties
subject to long term leases to high credit quality tenants. CLF,
Inc. completed this acquisition through a reverse merger and its
initial public offering during March 2004. CLF, Inc. is the indirect
sole general partner of, and owns approximately 98.5% of the
common equity of, Caplease, LP.

CLF, Inc. completed its initial public offering of common
stock in March 2004, and issued its 8.125% Series A cumulative
redeemable preferred stock in a public offering in October 2005.
As of December 31, 2006, CLF, Inc. had 34,091,829 shares of
common stock and 1,400,000 shares of 8.125% Series A cumula-
tive redeemable preferred stock outstanding. See Note 17.

CLF, Inc. is organized and conducts its operations to qualify
as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for federal income
tax purposes. As such, it will generally not be subject to federal
income tax on that portion of its income that is distributed to
stockholders if it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable
income to its stockholders by prescribed dates and complies with
various other requirements.

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and include the assets, Liabili-
ties, and results of operations of Caplease, LP prior to March
24, 2004, and CLF, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries and
other entities consolidated under FIN 46 thereafter (see Note
26). Results of operations of properties acquired are included in
the Consolidated Income Statements from the date of acquisi-
tion, except as otherwise provided in Note 26. All significant
intercompany transactions, balances and accounts have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates
and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabili-
ties, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal course of business, the Company encounters
primarily two significant types of economic risk: credit and
market. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company's loans,
leases, securities and derivative instruments that results from

a borrower’s, lessee’s or derivative counterparty’s inability or
unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market
risk reflects changes in the value of investments in loans, real
estate, securities or derivative instruments due to changes in
interest rates or other market factors, including the value of the
collateral underlying loans and securities and the valuation of
real estate held by the Company. Management believes that the
catrying values of its investments are reasonable taking into
consideration these risks along with estimated collateral values,
payment histories, and other retevant information.

Investments in Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

The Company classifies its loans as long-term investments, as its
strateqy is to hold the loans for the foreseeable future or until
maturity. Loans are carried on the Company's Balance Sheet at
cost {unpaid principal balance adjusted for unearned discount




Notes to consolidated financial statements

{Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

or premium and loan origination fees). Unearned discounts or
premiums and loan origination fees are amortized as a compo-
nent of interest income using the effective interest method over
the life of the loan.

The Company periedically evaluates each of its loans held
for investment for possible impairment. Impairment is indicated
when it is deemed probable that the Company will be unable
to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the asset. Upon determination of impairment, the Company
must establish a specific valuation atlowance with a correspond-
ing charge to earnings. Significant judgment is required both
in determining impairment and in estimating the resulting loss
allowance. In determining impairment and any loan loss allow-
ance, the Company evaluates factors such as the present value
of future cash flows on the loans, the fair market value of any
collateral, and the amount and status of any senior debt. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company had no loss allowances on any
of the loans in its portfolio.

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Real Estate

The Company's purchase price of rental real estate acquired is

allocated to the following based on fair values:

" acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and
improvements; and

" identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of
above-market and below-market leases, in-place leases and
tenant relationships.

In estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets

acquired, the Company considers information obtained about

each property as a result of its due diligence activities and other

market data, and utilizes various valuation methods, such as

estimated cash flow projections utilizing appropriate discount

and capitalization rates, estimates of replacement costs, and

available market information. The fair value of the tangible

assets of an acquired property considers the value of the prop-

erty as if it were vacant.

Above-market and below-market lease values for acquired
properties are recorded based on the present value of the differ-
ences between (i) the contractual amounts to be paid pursu-
ant to each in-place lease and (ii) management’s estimate of
fair market lease rates for each corresponding in-place lease.
Fair market lease rates are measured over a period equal to the
remaining term of the lease for above-market leases and the
nitial term plus the term of any below-market rate renewal
options for below-market leases. In computing present value,
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the Company uses a discount rate which reflects the risks
associated with the leases acquired. The capitalized above-
market lease values are amortized as a reduction of base rental
revenue over the remaining term of the respective leases, and
the capitalized below-market lease values are amortized as an
increase to base rental revenue over the remaining initial terms
plus the terms of any below-market renewal options of the
respective leases.

Other intangible assets acquired include amounts for in-place
lease values and tenant relationship values which are based
on management's evaluation of the specific characteristics
of each tenant’s lease and the Company’s overall relationship
with the respective tenant. Factors considered by management
in its analysis of in-place lease values include an estimate of
carrying costs during the hypothetical expected time it would
take management to find a tenant to lease the space for the
existing lease term (a "lease-up period”) considering current
market conditions, and costs to execute similar leases. Manage-
ment estimates carrying costs, including such factors as real
estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses during the
expected lease-up period, considering current market condi-
tions and costs to execute similar leases. In estimating costs to
execute similar leases, management considers leasing comrmis-
sions and other related expenses. Characteristics considered by
management in valuing tenant relationships include the nature
and extent of the Company's existing business relationships with
the tenant, growth prospects for developing new business with
the tenant, the tenant’s credit quality and expectations of lease
renewals. The value of in-place leases is amortized to expense
over the remaining initial terms of the respective leases. The
value of tenant relationship intangibles is amortized to expense
over the anticipated life of the relationships. Through December
31, 2006, the Company has assigned no value to tenant relation-
ships on any of its acquisitions.

For property acquisitions where the Company assumes exist-
ing mortgage debt, the debt is recorded at its fair value, based
on management’s estimate of current market yields available for
comparahle financing. The Company amortizes any discount ar
premium as part of interest expense on the related debt using
the effective interest method.

Real estate taxes, insurance and interest expense on proper-
ties that are under development are capitalized in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS") No. 34, Capital-
ization of Interest Cost and SFAS No. 67, Accounting for Costs and
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per shore emounts)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.

Depreciation is determined by the straight-line method over
the remaining estimated economic useful lives of the proper-
ties. The Company generally depreciates buildings and building
improvements over periods not exceeding 40 years. Direct costs
incurred in acquiring properties are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.
Significant renovations which extend the useful life of the
properties are capitalized.

Securities Available for Sale

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Invest-
ments in Debt and Equity Securities, the Company classifies secu-
rities which it intends to hold for an indefinite period of time as
securities available for sale. These securities are reported at fair
value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, with unre-
alized gains and losses inctuded in other comprehensive income,
and other than temporary impairments included in current earn-
ings on the Consolidated Income Statement. Purchase premiums
and discounts are amortized as a component of interest income
using the effective interest method over the terms of the securi-
ties. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses,
management cansiders (1) the length of time and the extent to
which the fair value has been below cost, {2) the financial con-
dition and near-term prospects of the underlying credit and (3}
the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in
the underlying credit for a period of time sufficient to allow for
anticipated recovery in fair value. The Company had losses on
securities charged to the Income Statement of $907 during the
year ended December 31, 2006, $2,372 during the year ended
December 31, 2005, and $247 during the year ended December
31, 2004.

Structuring Fees Receivable

Structuring fees receivable represent fees which the Company is
entitled to receive over time for structuring, originating and/or
selling loans and are initially recorded at the discounted value of
expected cash receipts, and periodically evaluated for impair-
ment. In accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
fee revenue is recognized as earned when the following criteria
are met: (i) evidence of an arrangement exists; (ii) services
have been rendered; {iii) the fee is fixed or determinable; and
{iv} collectibility is reasonably assured. The Company amortizes
the receivable balance as cash is collected, aliocating the cash
received to pnincipal and interest.
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Deferred Origination Fees and Costs

In accordance with SFAS No. 91, Accounting for Nonrefundable
Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and
Initial Direct Costs of Leases, the Company defers the recognition
of fees and expenses associated with the origination of its loans
held for investment. These items include lender fee income, rate
lock income, direct loan origination costs, certain legal fees,
insurance costs, rating agency fees and certain other expenses.
Deferred fees and costs are recognized as an adjustment to the
effective yield over the life of the related asset.

Sale of Commercial Mortgage Loans

Prior to its initial public offering in March 2004, the Company
sold a majority of its mortgage loans. Since its initial public
offering, the Company's portfolio business strategy has con-
templated selling only a limited number of mortgage loans. The
Company does not retain servicing rights for sold loans. When
the Company sells mortgage loans, it derecognizes assets sold,
records assets received or retained and records a gain or loss on
sale. The asset received is generally cash. In certain sale transac-
tions, the Company retains a small cash flow interest in the loans
being sold. The Company accounts for sales of mortgage loans

in accordance with SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.

Derivative and Other Risk Management Transactions

The Company accounts for derivatives in accordance with SFAS
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ-
ities (“SFAS 133"). The Company measures derivative instruments
at fair value and records each as an asset or liability, depend-
ing on the Company’s rights or obligations under the applicable
derivative contract.

Since its conversion to a REIT in March 2004, the Company's
hedging strategy has been to use forward starting interest rate
swaps to hedge the value of changes in the interest-related cash
outflows on forecasted future borrowings. These interest rate
swaps, to the extent that the Company has designated them and
they qualify as part of a hedging relationship, are treated as
cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS 133. For denvatives
designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portions of the de-
rivative are reported in other comprehensive income (“0C1"} and
are subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged item
affects earnings. Ineffective portions of hedges are recognized
in earnings in the affected period.
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(Dollor amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Revenue Recognition

Rental revenue on real estate is recognized in accordance with
SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Rental revenue is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the non-cancelable term of the
lease unless another systematic and rational basis is more repre-
sentative of the time pattern in which the use banefit is derived
from the leased property. This includes the effects of rent steps
and rent abatements under the (eases.

Interest income from loans, securities, and structuring fees
receivable, is recognized an the accrual basis of accounting,
Interest income from securities {including interest-only strips)
is recognized over the life of the investment using the effective
interest method. The cost basis of interest-gnly strips is adjusted
to reflect any prepayments from underlying assets, using the
initial yield-to-maturity at the purchase date.

Gains are recognized on the sale of loans and securities in
accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 140. The Company
may from time to time split its mortgage loan investments into
two notes-a real estate note and a corporate credit note. In
these instances, the Company will generally sell the real estate
note to a third party and retain the corporate credit note in
portfolio. The Company computes gain on these sales by compar-
ing the sales proceeds on the note sold to its cost basis. The
Company computes its cost basis on the note sold by allocating
the entire basis in the loan between the two notes based on the
present value of expected cash flows on each note. In comput-
ing present values, management estimates a discount rate based
on a benchmark rate ptus a market spread based on the credit of
the underlying tenant. These estimates reflect market rates that
management believes are reasonable. However, the use of differ-
ent estimates could have an impact on the calculation of gain
on sale revenue.

The Company may periodically receive breakup fees on
contracts in connection with its investments in real estate. The
Company recognizes revenues from contract breakup fees when
the contractual conditions have occurred to trigger-the receipt of
such a fee, when the amounts of such revenue can be reasonably
determined, and when collection is probable.

Lease Enhancement Mechanisms

The Company utilizes the following lease enhancement mecha-

nisms, primarily as part of its lending programs:

® casualty and condemnation insurance policies that protect
the Company from any right the tenant may have to termi-
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nate the underlying net lease or abate rent as a result of a
casualty or condemnation; and
" with respect to a double net lease, borrower reserve funds
that protect the Company from any rights the tenant may
have to terminate the underlying net lease or abate rent as
a result of the failure of the property owner to maintain and
repair the property or related common areas.
Costs incurred by the Company for lease enhancement mecha-
nisms as part of the Company’s tending programs are typically
charged to the borrowers. In instances where costs are not fully
absorbed by the borrower, costs are treated in accordance with
SFAS No. 91, as a cost of loan origination. Costs for lease
enhancement mechanisms for the Company's owned real properties
are treated as a cost of financing and are amortized as part of
interest expense over the expected term of the related financing.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews its invest-
ment in long-lived assets (owned real properties) for impair-
ment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
The Company began acquiring owned real properties in the third
quarter of 2004, The Company recognized no impairment losses
on long-lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004.

Marketing and Advertising Costs

The Company expenses marketing and advertising costs as
incurred. Marketing and advertising expense totaled $544, $615,
and $688, in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Income Taxes

CLF, Inc. is subject to federal income taxation at corporate rates
on its “REIT taxable income.” However, CLF, Inc. is allowed a
deduction for the amount of dividends paid to its stockholders,
thereby subjecting the distributed net income of CLF, Inc. to
taxation at the stockholder level only. CLF, Inc. intends to con-
tinue to operate in a manner consistent with and it has elected
to be treated as a REIT for tax purposes. From time to time,

the Company may conduct a portion of its business through a
taxable REIT subsidiary {“TRS"), and the income from the activi-
ties of the TRS is subject to federal and state taxation at the
applicable corporate rates,
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Other Comprehensive Income

In accordance with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive
Income, the Company recognizes the change in fair value of its
securities available for sale through other comprehensive income.
In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the Company recognizes the
change in fair value, and gains and losses from the effective
portion of its cash flow hedges through other comprehensive
income. Realized gains and losses from the effective portion of
the cash flow hedges related to the Company's debt issuances are
amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of
the related financing, using the constant interest method.

Earnings per Share
In accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earmings per Share, the Com-
pany presents both basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS").
Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net
income allocable to common stockholders by the weighted aver-
age number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earn-
ings per share reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised or converted inte common stock, where such exercise
or conversion would result in a lower EPS amount. For the 2006
period, the Company’s computation of diluted EP5 included 6,000
shares which the Company agreed in September 2006 to issue
to an empleyee if a service condition is satisfied on January 2,
2007, The service condition was satisfied and the shares were
issued on January 2, 2007.

The following summarizes the Company's EPS computations
for the years ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004:

DECEMBER 31

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004
Net income allocable to cammon

stockholders $4,405 $4,569 $1,360
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding, basic 31,939 27,784 22,125
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding, diluted 31,941 27,784 22,125

Earnings per share, basic and diluted $0.14 $0.16 $0.06

Non-vested shares included in
weighted average number of shares
outstanding above 588 496 254
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R: (Revised
2004) - Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS 123R
replaces SFAS No. 123, which the Company adopted on January
1, 2003. SFAS No. 123R requires that the compensation cost
relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in
financial statements and be measured based on the fair value of
the equity or Uability instruments issued. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 123R as of January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No.
123R did not have a material effect on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial statements. See Note 18,

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections — A Replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and SFAS No. 3 ("SFAS No. 154"). SFAS No. 154 changes
the requirements for the accounting and reporting of a change
in accounting principle by requiring retrospective application
to prior periods’ financial statements of the change in account-
ing principle, unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154
also requires that a change in depreciation or amortization for
long-lived, non—financial assets be accounted for as a change
in accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting
principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. The Company's adoption of SFAS No. 154 on
January 1, 2006 did not have a material effect on the Company’s
consotidated financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company's financial
statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and mea-
surement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on description, clas-
sification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. The Company believes that the adop-
tion of this standard on January 1, 2007 will not have a material
effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements ("SFAS No, 1577). SFAS No. 157 provides
guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities.
This statement clarifies the principte that fair vatue should be
based on the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. SFAS No, 157 establishes a
fair value hierarchy, giving the highest prionity to quoted prices
in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data.
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(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

SFAS No. 157 applies whenever other standards require assets
or liabilities to be measured at fair value. This statement is

effective in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The

Company believes that the adoption of this standard on January
1, 2008 will not have a material effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the cwrrent presentation. There was no effect an net income ar
equity related to these reclassifications.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company defines cash equivalents as highly liquid invest-
ments purchased with maturities of three months or less at date
of purchase, From time to time, the Company's account balance
held at financial institutions exceeds Federal Depository Insur-
ance Corporation {“FDIC”} insurance coverage and, as a result,
there is a concentration of credit risk related to the balance

on deposit in excess of FDIC insurance coverage. The Company
believes that the risk of loss is not significant.

4. Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans Held
for Investment

Mortgage and other real estate loans held for investment at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, are summarized in
the following table. These investments consist predominantly

of mortgage loans on properties subject to leases to investment
grade tenants. As of December 31, 2006, the weighted average
credit rating of the underlying tenants was BBB+ from Standard
& Poor’s. As of December 31, 2006, none of the Company's loans
held for investment were on non-accrual status or past due 90
days or more.

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005
Principal $272,271 $296,479
Premium 1,814 1,898
Carrying amount of loans 274,085 298,377
Deferred origination fees, net (915} {826}
Total $273,170 $297,551

FINANCIAL STATEMERTS

From time to time, the Company makes mezzanine loan and
other investments. These investments are typically shorter-term
in nature and are often subordinate to other financing. As of
December 31, 2006, these investments aggregated $9,511, and
are included in the table above.

During June 2006, the Company entered into a revolving
credit agreemant with a third party borrower. The Company
agreed to fund loans from time to time of up to $12,000 to
support the borrower’s capital contributions to a joint venture
that makes franchise loans to franchisees of YUM! Brands, Inc.
restaurant concepts such as Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken
and Pizza Hut. During August 2006, the Company also made a
$6,648 bridge loan to an affiliated entity of the credit agreement
borrower to support a franchise loan made outside the joint
venture. The bridge loan, which was scheduled to mature in
December 2006, has heen extended until March 2007. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company had advanced $5,715 under
the revolving credit agreement, and there was $2,648 of principal
outstanding under the bridge loan. Loans made under these
programs have been classified as mezzanine loans by the Company.

At December 31, 2006, the mortgage and other real estate
loans carried interest rates ranging from 5.28% to 10.00%,
and at December 31, 2005, the mortgage and other real estate
loans carried interest rates ranging from 5.28% to 14.29%. At
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the weighted aver-
age effective interest rate on the mortgage and other real estate
loans, as measured against the Company’s cost basis, was 6.85%
and 6.86%, respectively.

5. Real Estate Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company acquired
11 real estate properties for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $359,000. During the year ended December 31,
2005, the Company acquired 17 real estate properties for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $566,000. There were
no dispositions of real estate properties during 2006 or 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, one of the Company's real estate
properties was classified as held for sale (see Note 6).
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Real estate held for investment and related intangible
liabilities on real estate investments consisted of the following
at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005:

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005
Real Estate Investments, at Cost:
Land $177,726 $136,566
Building and improvements 852,495 557,248
Intangible assets under SFAS 141 122,481 82,862
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (37,701) (11,746}
Real estate investments, net $1,115,001 $764,930
Intangible Liabilities on Real Estate Investments:
Intangible liabilities under SFAS 141 $21,674 $15,210
Less: Accumulated amortization (1.981) (791)
Intangible liabilities on real estate investments, net $19,693 $14,419

Acquisition costs capitalized as part of buildings and improve-
ments were $3,583 for the year ended December 31, 2006, and
$2,082 for the year ended December 31, 2005. Interest capi-
talized as part of buildings and improvements was $0 for the
year ended December 31, 2006, and $1,589 for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Amounts for accrued rental income and deferred rental
income as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, were
as follows:

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005
Accrued Rental Income $15,069 $6,708
Deferred Rental Income 160 620
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Accrued rental income is included in other assets on the

Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. Deferred rentat income

is included in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other li-

abilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities for the years

ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and December 31,

2004 was as follows:

RECEMEER 31
2006 2005 2004
Amortization of in-place leases
(included in depreciation and
amortization expense) $7,969  $2,925 $295

Amortization of above-market
leases (included as a reduction
of rental revenue) 504 128 -

Amartization of below-market
leases (inctuded as a component
of rental revenue) 1,190 1 80
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As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s weighted average
amortization period on intangible assets was 11.6 years, and the
weighted average amortization period on intangible liabilities
was 19.3 years.

Scheduled amortization on existing intangible assets and
liabilities on real estate investments is as follows:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS INTANGIBLE LIABILITIES

2007 $10,688 $1,423
2008 10,688 1,423
2009 10,688 1,423
2010 10,688 1,423
2011 10,688 1,423
Thereafter 57.221 12,578

$110,661 $19,693

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's analysis of intangible assets and liabilities ac-
quired in connection with real estate properties acquired during
the year ended December 31, 2006 is preliminary.

All of the Company's owned properties are pledged as col-
lateral for its related long-term financings of those assets, with
the exception of the Cott Corporation property in Reading,
Pennsylvania, which was not financed as of December 31, 2006.
The Company owns and finances each owned property through
a separate and distinct single purpose entity, or SPE, with each
property and the related lease or leases on the property generally
representing the sole assets of the SPE and the sole collateral
available to the Company's lender in the event the Company de-
faults on the debt that finances the property. Also see Note 13.

During the three months ended December 31, 2006, the Com-
pany completed the following real estate acquisitions:

NET RENTABLE

MONTH ACQUIRED  TENANT OR GUARANTOR & LOCATION PURCHASE PRICE LEASE EXPIRES SOUARE FEET

October Aetna Life Insurance Company $24,255 November 2016 122,605
1333 - 1385 Eost Show Avenue, Fresno, (A

October United States Government 16,350 September 2018 74,300
200 McCarty Avenue, Albany, NY

November T-Mobile USA, Inc. 16,195 January 2017 69,287
695 Grassmere Park, Nashville, TN

November Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. 28,530 December 2016 154,849
1320 N. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Dr., Milwaukee, WI

December Jehnson Contrels, Inc, 27,000 August 2016 307,275
6750 Bryan Dairy Road, Largo, FL

December AmeriCredit Corp. 43,000 August 2017 246,060
4001 Embarcadero Drive, Artington, TX

$155,330

6. Asset Held for Sale

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company acquired a
portfotio of three office properties from Allstate Insurance Com-
pany in a sale/leaseback transaction. The smallest of the three
buildings is an approximately 19,500 square foot office building
tocated in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. Because of the small size
of this property, management concluded, prior to completing
the acquisition, to resell the property promptly following its
acquisition. The Company entered into an agreement to sell the
property in January 2007, and expects the sale to close in March
2007. Any gain or loss on the sale of the property is expected to
be de minimis,

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company reported
the carrying value of the Allstate Pittsburgh property as asset
held for sale on the December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the revenues from the property
as income from discontinued operations on the Consolidated
Income Statements for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005. Revenue and net income for the Allstate
Pittsburgh property were $195 and $195, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2006, and $6 and $6, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2005.
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7. Securities Available for Sale and Structuring
Fees Receivable

Securities available for sale at December 31, 2006 and at
December 31, 2005, consisted of the fotlowing:

DECEMBER 31

SCHEDULED MATURITY DATE 2006 2005
BACM 2006-4, Class H {rated BBB+) Face Amount Aug 2016 $8,000 $-
BSCMS 1999 CLF1, Class E (rated D) Face Amount Nov 2023 3,076 3,326
BSCMS 1999 CLF1, Class F (rated NR) Face Amount N/A - 2,494
CALFS 1997-CTL1, Class D (rated BB+) Face Amount Nov 2018 6,000 6,000
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class E {rated BBB+) Face Amount Jul 2022 9,526 9,526
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class G (rated BB+) Face Amount Feb 2023 9,526 9,526
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class H (rated B+) Face Amount Mar 2024 11,907 11,907
CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1, Class J (rated D) Face Amount (ct 2025 6,383 6,383
NLFC 1999-LTL-1, Class D (rated BBE) Face Amount Oct 2020 - 5,000
NLFC 1999-LTL-1, Class E (rated BB} Face Amount Feb 2022 11,081 11,081
NLFC 1999-LFL-1, Class X (10) (rated AAA} Cost Basis Jan 2024 7,587 8,434
WBCMT 2004-C15 180D (rated B+) Face Amount Nov 2009 15,000 15,000
WBCMT 2004-C15 180E (rated B) Face Amount Nov 2009 8,000 8,000
WBCMT 2006-C27, Class C (rated AA-) Face Amount Aug 2016 11,000 -
BACMS 2002-2, Class V-1 (7-Eleven, Inc.) (rated BBB) Face Amount Sep 2019 428 393
BACMS 2002-2, Class V-2 (Sterling Jewelers) (rated BBB-) Face Amount Jan 2021 655 602
CVS Corporatien (rated BBB+} Face Amount Jan 2028 19,603 20,000
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.82% Jan 2020 (rated BB+) Face Amount Jan 2020 8,980 -
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.9% May 2026 {rated BB+) Face Amount May 2026 23,395 -
Yahoo, Inc. (rated BBB-) Face Amount Aug 2026 31,953 31,990
Unearned discount (15,736) {21,901)
Cost basis 176,374 127,761
Net unrealized appreciation on securities held for sale 6,602 9,648
Total $183,066 $137,409

All Standard & Poor’s ratings in the above table are as of
December 31, 2006.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, the Company
recorded other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of two
CMBS bonds, each in the BSCMS trust {Class E and Class F). The
losses during the quarter reflect the following developments:
® The defaulted Winn-Dixie loan in the BSCMS trust was

liquidated during the fourth quarter 2006, resulting in a loss

to the trust of approximately $3,100, before the impact of
expected recoveries in the Winn-Dixie bankruptcy.
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® The trust’s claim for lost rents in the Winn-Dixie bankruptcy
was awarded, with the trust entitled to receive a total of
35,727 shares of Winn-Dixie common stock with a fair market
value of approximately $482 as of December 31, 2006.

In addition, Winn-Dixie emerged from bankruptcy in November
2006 and the trust’s exposure to the Winn-Dixie bankruptcy has
now been eliminated.

The net impact of these developments is expected te result in
a write-down of the face amount of the Class F bond by the trust
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to a de minimis amount (approximately $300). As a result,
during the quarter ended December 31, 2006, the Company
concluded to write-off its remaining carry value of $300 on its
Class F bond and to record a write-down of $367 on the carry
value of its Class E bond. Including the $240 loss on the Class
F bond recorded in the quarter ended September 30, 2006, the
Company recorded total losses on securities of $907 during the
year ended December 31, 2006. The 2006 losses are in addi-
tion to losses of $369 in 2005 and $247 in 2004 on the Class
F BSCMS investment. The Company’s remaining carry value of
$1,710 on the BSCMS Class E bond is approximately equal to
management’s estimate of the security’s market value.

The Company also recorded other-than-temporary declines in
the fair value of two classes of CMLBC 2001 CMLB-1 securities
during the year ended December 31, 2005, related to the Winn-
Dixie bankruptcy. In the third quarter of 2005, the Company
wrote off its entire investment in the CMLBC 2001 CMLB-1, Class
K securities ($1,092), and $910 of its carry value on the CMLBC
2001 CMLB-1, Class J securities. These losses resulted primarily
from the sale by the CMLBC trust of $22,400 of Winn-Dixie
certificates within the trust. The trust undertook these sales to
reduce its exposure to assets of Winn-Dixie,

Unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, included as a com-
ponent of accumulated other comprehensive income consisted of
the following:

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005

Unrealized gains on securities available for sale $7.582 310,002

Unrealized losses on securities available for sale (890) {354)

The unrealized losses on the Company’s securities are primarily
the result of market factors, rather than credit impairment, and
the Company believes the securities’ carrying values are fully
recoverable over their expected holding period.

AGGREGATE

AGGREGATE UNREALIZED  NUMBER OF

FAIR VALUE LOSS  SECURITIES

In unrealized loss position $44,224 5492 2
less than 12 months

In unrealized loss position 22,286 398 3

12 or more months
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The following table summarizes the Company's securities in
an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, a total of three available for sale
securities were in a continuous unrealized loss position for more
than 12 months. The securities consist of mortgage backed
securities with ratings ranging from B to BBB. These securities
have unrealized losses ranging from 0.5% to 2.3% of amortized
cost. The Company believes that none of the unrealized losses on
investment securities are other than temporary because substan-
tially all of the unreatized losses in the Company’s investment
portfolio relate to market interest rate changes on mortgage-
backed securities, which the Company has both the intent and
the ability to hold until maturity or until the fair vatue fully re-
covers. In addition, management considers the underlying credits
to be financially sound and believes the Company will receive all
contractual principal and interest related to these investments.

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the effec-
tive interest rate (yield to maturity on adjusted cost basis) on
secunities available for sale was approximately 7.6% and 8.2%,
respectively.

The following summarizes our sales of securities during the
years ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004,

2006 2005 2004
Proceeds from sale $7.93¢ 35,787 $55,868
Gain on sale 2,278 174 -

Structuring fees receivable of $3,253 and $3,862 at December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, were earned by
the Company in conjunction with the structuring and subsequent
sale of certain net lease loans. Such fees are payable to the
Company monthly without interest through March 2020 and,
accordingly, have been discounted based on imputed interest
rates estimated by management to approximate market. Structur-
ing fees receivable are shown at their amortized cost.
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8. Joint Venture Investments

In December 2006, the Company entered into an agreement
pursuant to which it committed to contribute up to $5,000 of
capital to a newly formed management company organized to
form and manage real estate investment funds offered and sold
to European investors, subject to the satisfaction of certain
terms and conditions by the principals of the management
company. The Company expects its contributions will comprise
less than 50% of the totat capital contributed to the manage-
ment company, and will entitle the Company to a 12% agreed
return on its investment. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
had deposited $385 toward its aggregate $5,000 commitment.

The Company also expects from time to time to source
properties for the management company’s investment funds. The
Company intends to retain an interest in any property sourced
to any investment fund.

9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
requires disclosure of fair value information about the Company
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet. For certain of the Compa-

ny's financial instruments, fair values are not readily available
since there are no active trading markets as characterized by
current exchanges between willing parties. Accordingly, the
Company derives or estimates fair values using various valuation
techniques, such as computing the present value of estimated
future cash flows using discount rates commensurate with the
risks involved. However, the determination of estimated cash
flows may be subjective and imprecise. Changes in assumptions
or estimation methodologies can have a material effect on these
estimated fair values. In that regard, the derived fair value
estimates may not be substantiated by comparison to indepen-
dent markets, and in many cases, may not be realized in
immediate settlement of the instrument. The fair values indicated
below are indicative of the interest rate and credit spread
environment as of December 31, 2006, and may not take into
consideration the effects of subsequent interest rate, credit spread
fluctuations, or changes in the ratings of the tenant obligors
under related leases.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other assets,
accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, and
dividends payable approximate their carmying vatues due to the
short maturities of these items.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the
Company's other financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 are as follows:

CARRYING AMOUNT

NOTIONAL AMOUNT

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE

12/31/2006  12/31/2005  12/31/2006  12/31/2005  12/31/2006  12/31/2005
Assets:
Martgage and other real estate loans held for investment $274,085 $298,377 §272,2711 $206,479 $277,014 $307,829
Securities available for sale 183,066 137,409 192,111 149,662 183,066 137,409
Structuring fees receivable 3,253 3,862 N/A N/A 3,253 3,862
Derivabive assets 2,333 1,082 127,529 82,852 2,333 1,082
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements and other short-term financing obligations 195,485 129,965 195,485 129,965 195,485 129,965
Mortgages on real estate investments 794,773 551,844 789,971 546,284 784,802 545,289
Collateralized debt obligations 268,190 268,156 268,500 268,500 258,557 262,955
Other long-term debt 30,930 30,930 30,930 30,930 31,958 30,849
Derivative liabilities 2,405 298 104,190 43,029 2,405 298
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The methodologies used and key assumptions made to estimate

fair values are as follows:

® Mortgage and other real estate loans held for investment.
The fair value of our fixed-rate loan portfolio is estimated
with a discounted cash flow analysis, utilizing scheduled cash
flows and discount rates estimated by management to
approximate those that a willing buyer and seller might use.

B Securities available for sale. The fair value of securities
available for sale is estimated by obtaining broker quota-
tions, where available, based upon reasonable market order
indications or a good faith estimate thereof. For securities
where market quotes are not readily obtainable, management
may also estimate values, and considers factors including the
credit characteristics and term of the underlying security,
market yields on securities with similar credit ratings, and
sales of similar securities, where available.

® Structuring fees receivable. The fair value of structuring
fees receivable is estimated with a discounted cash flow
analysis, utilized scheduled cash flows and discount rates
estimated by management to approximate those that a
willing buyer and selter might use.

® Repurchase agreements and other short-term financing
obligations. Management believes that the stated interest
rates (all of which are floating rate, based on short-term
interest rates) approximate market rates (when compared to
similar credit facilities with similar credit risk). As such, the
fair value of these obligations is estimated to be equal to the
outstanding principal amount.

B Mortgages on real estate investments and collateralized
debt obligations. The fair value of mortgages payable on
real estate investments and collateralized debt obligations
is estimated using a discounted cash flow anatysis, based
on management’s estimates of market interest rates. For
mortgages where the Company has an early prepayment right,
management also considers the prepayment amount to evalu-
ate the fair value.

B Qther long-term debt. The fair value of the Company’s other
long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash
flow analysis, based on management’s estimates of market
interest rates.

B Derivative assets and liabilities. The fair value of
the Company's derivative assets and liabilities is estimated
using current market quotes and third-party quotations,
where available.
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10. Other Assets

Other assets as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005
consisted of the following:

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005
Receivables and accrued interest $8,681 $6,515
Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,561 2,077
Reserve accounts 10,652 8,131
Escrow hetd with mortgage lender 812 9,507
Funds with CDO trustee pending distribution
or reinvestment 9,734 16,638
Amounts held by servicer 2,107 1,483
Derivative assets 2,333 1,082
Accrued rental income 15,069 6,708
Debt issuance costs, net 7,541 6.975
Other 2,953 1,362
Total $62,443 $60,478

11. Repurchase and Other Short-Term Financing
Agreements

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had a $250,000 repur-

chase agreement and a $100,000 real property acquisition facil-
ity in place for short-term liquidity requirements with Wachovia
Bank, N.A, and its affiliate. Each agreement has a 364-day term,

-was renewed in August 2006, and is scheduled to expire in

August 2007.

The Company's short-term borrowing arrangements are
secured by the assets financed and are fully recourse to its other
assets.

In anticipation of our next CDO issuance, in December 2006
Wachovia Bank agreed to temporarily expand the Company's
borrowing capacity under the repurchase agreement to $350,000.
This additional capacity is scheduled to expire on the earlier of
(i} March 31, 2007 and (ii) the closing of the Company’s next
CDO issuance.
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Amounts related to the Company's repurchase agreements as
of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, are as follows:

DEC 31, 2006 DEC 31, 2005
Collateral Carry Value

Loans $171,804 $116,881
Securities 82,037 43,785
Total $253,841 $160,666
Borrowings

Loans ' $133,076 $94,341
Securities 62,409 35,624
Total $195,485 $129,965

The Company pays interest on amounts borrowed under its repur-
chase agreement with Wachovia Bank at prevailing short-term
rates (30-day LIBOR) plus a pricing spread (determined based
upon the class and credit rating of the asset financed). Weighted
average interest rates on the Company's repurchase agreements
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
are as follows:

TEC 31, 2006 DEC 31, 2005
Wachovia-mortgage loan repurchase

agreements 6.03% 4.13%
Wachovia-CMBS repurchase agreements 5.79% 4.12%

As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the 30-day
LIBOR rate was 5.32% and 4.39%, respectively.

The Company is required to pay interest on its acquisition
line borrowings at prevailing short-term rates (30-day LIBOR)
plus a pricing spread (ranging from 95 to 225 basis points). As
of December 31, 2006, the Company had no borrowings under
the real property acquisition facility.

The Company is required to comply with the following financial
covenants under its short-term financing agreements: minimum
liquidity, minimum tangible net worth and maximum leverage.

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

12. Risk Management Transactions

The Company's objectives in using derivatives include adding
stability to interest expense and managing its exposure to inter-
est rate movements. The Company uses forward starting interest
rate swaps to hedge the variability of changes in the interest-
related cash outflows on forecasted future borrowings, As of
December 31, 2006, the Company was hedging its exposure to
such variability through October 2016. In accordance with SFAS
133, the interest rate swaps, to the extent that they have been
designated and qualify as part of a hedaing relationship, are
treated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes.

Interest rate swaps are agreements between two parties to
exchange, at particular intervals, payment streams catculated on
a specified notional amount. The interest rate swaps that the
Company has entered into are single currency interest rate swaps
and, as such, do not require the exchange of a notional amount.

Amounts related to open positions, as of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, are as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTIONAL NOTIONAL
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT  FAIR VALUE AMOUNT  FAIR VALUE
Interest rate swaps £231,719 $(72) $125,881 $784

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the Company had
hedged the following future borrowings:

DECEMEER 31

2006 2005
$231,719 $125,881

Future borrowings (principal amount})

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, derivatives with
a fair value of $2,405 and $298, respectively, were included in
accounts payabie, accrued expenses and other liabilities on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. At December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, derivatives with a fair value of $2,333
and $1,082, respectively, were included in other assets on the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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(Doltor amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Net realized gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
are included in other comprehensive income and will be reclassi-
fied and amortized as part of interest expense on the Company's
Consolidated Income Statement over the expected term of the
Company's related debt issuances. For the years ended December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the Company had net realized
gains and (losses) of $421 and ${11,206), respectively, related
to cash flow hedges. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, the Company reclassified $1,173 and $877,
respectively, from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
interest expense related to the underlying debt issuances.

Within the next twelve months, the Company estimates that
$1,239 of net losses currently held within Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income will be reclassified to earnings as ad-
ditional interest expense,
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The change in net unrealized gains and (losses) of $(737)
and $8,098 in the years ended December 31, 2006 and December
31, 2005, respectively, for derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges is separately disctosed in the Company's Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company had net income due to hedge ineffectiveness
of $413 and $159 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively. These amounts are included in
(gain) loss on derivatives on the Caonsolidated Income Statements.

Consistent with the cash flows of the related financing, the
Company classifies the cash flows from derivatives that are ac-
counted for as cash flow hedges as a financing activity on the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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13. Long-Term Debt

Our long-term debt consists of the following:
¥ mortgage notes on real estate investments;
" collateralized debt obligations; and

B debt related to trust preferred securities.

Mortgages Notes on Real Estate Investments

The Company has financed most of its owned real properties
with third party mortgage debt. The Company’s mortgage notes
payable are as follows:

OEC 31, 2006 DEC 31, 2005
EFFECTIVE .

FROPERTY LEVEL DEBT - FINED RATE FACE CARRY VALUE FACE CARRY VALUE COUPON RATE (1) MATURITY

Choice Hotels International, Inc. $31,653  $31,653  $32,199  $32,199 5.30% 5.34% May 2013

Silver Spring, MD

Omnicom Group, Inc. 13,575 13,575 13,575 13,575 5.24% 5.30% May 2013

Irving, TX

Capital One Financdial Corporation 20,925 20,925 20,925 20,925 5.24% 5.29% May 2013

Plano, TX

Aon Corporation 64,800 64,800 64,800 64,800 5.23% 5.75% Nov 2014

Glenview, IL

Cadbury Schweppes Holdings (US) 35,614 35,614 36,000 36,000 5.26% 5.34% Mar 2015

Whippany, NJ

ITT Industries, Inc. 41,700 41,700 41,700 41,700 5.33% 5.40% Jun 2015

Hemndon, VA

Lowes Companies, Inc. 42,125 42,125 42,125 42,125 5.10% 5.37%  Jul 2015

Aliso Viejo, (A

Abbott Laboratories 15,244 15,244 15,244 15,244 5.11% 5.16% Aug 2015

Waukegan, IL

United States Government (S5A) 5,391 5,391 5,391 5,391 5.23% 5.46%  Sep 2015

Austin, TX

United States Government {DEA) 11,280 11,280 11,280 11,280 5.23% 5.42% Sep 2015

Birmingham, AL

United States Government (FBI) 18,80G 18,800 18,800 18,800 5.23% 5.31% Sep 20615

Birmingham, AL

United States Government (NIH} 64,883 64,883 65,188 65,188 5.32% 5.56% Sep 2015

N. Bethesda, MD

Tiffany & Co. 58,400 58,400 58,400 58,400 5.33% 5.34%  QOct 2015

Parsippany. NJ

Farmers New World Life Insurance Company 30,200 30,200 30,200 30,200 5.69% 5.72% Jan 2016

Mercer Island, WA

Allstate Insurance Company 20,209 20,209 20,209 20,209 5.68% 5.71% Jan 2016

Charlotte, NC

Allstate Insurance Company : 21,516 21,516 21,516 21,516 5.68% 5.76% Jan 2016

Roancke, VA

Lontinwed >
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DEC 31, 2006 DEC 31, 2005
EFFECTIVE
PROPERTY LEVEL DEBT - FIXED RATE FACE CARRY VALUE FACE CARRY VALUE COUPON RATE (1) MATURITY
TIX Companies, Inc. $71,625  $71,625 $- $- 5.57% 5.59%  Mar 2016
Philadelphia, PA
United States Government (VA) 6,869 7,172 1,317 7,670 7.30% 6.41%  Apr 2016
Porice, PR
Pearson Plc. 16,025 16,025 - - 5.84% 5.95% May 2016
Lawrence, KS
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 14,794 14,794 - - 6.05%  6.11% Jul 2016
Levittown, PA
AMVESCAP PLC 43,700 43,700 - - 6.03% 6.08%  Jul 2016
Denver, (O
Walgreen Co. 1,919 2,059 2,046 2,208 7.65% 6.04% Oct 2016
Pennsauken, NJ
United States Government (FBI} 10,137 10,137 - - 5.50% 5.68% Nov 2016
Albany, KY
Aetna Life Insurance Company 16,043 16,043 - - 5.63% 5.68% Dec 2016
Fresno, CA
T-Mobile USA, Inc. 10,885 10,885 - 5.59% 5.69% Dec 2016
Nashville, TN
Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. 17,500 17,500 - - 5.55% 5.59% Dec 2016
Milwaukee, WI
Johnson Controls, Inc. 16,200 16,200 - - 5.48% 5.52% Jan 2017
Largo, FL
AmeriCredit Corp. 29,005 28,623 - - 5.28% 5.56% Sep 2017
Artington, TX
Walgreen Co. 3,190 3,391 3,304 3,625 7.20% 6.18%  Jul 2018
Portsmouth, VA
United States Government (EPA) 21,095 24,626 21,395 25,151 7.57% 5.74%  Oct 2022
Kansas City, KS
United States Government (0SHA) 14,669 15,678 14,670 15,738 6.28% 5.52% Jan 2024
Sandy, UT
Total $789,971 $794,773 $546,284 $551,844

(1) The effective rate is the Company’s approximate borrowing cost, including the effect of hedge gains or losses and other deferred financing costs associoted with the related

borrowing.

The mortgage notes are secured by the respective properties and
an assignment of the relevant leases on the properties. See Note
5 regarding the separate and distinct nature of the Company’s

SPEs. The Company's book value before accumulated depreciation

and amortization on owned properties encumbered with

mortgage debt aggregated $1,147,232 at December 31, 2006

and $776,676 at December 31, 2005.

Collateralized Debt Obligations

In March 2005, the Company completed its first collateralized
debt obligation, or CDO. The CDO was an entirely fixed rate
financing. The Company aggregated approximately $300,000

of assets into the pool, and created $285,000 face amount of
multi-class notes and $15,000 of preferred equity through the
CDO trust. The net amount of the debt the Company issued was
$268,130, inclusive of a $370 discount to face, as the Company
retained the three most junior note classes aggregating a face
amount of $16,500 and the full $15,000 of preferred equity.
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Each of the five note classes of the (DO was rated investment
grade. During the first five years of the COO term, the Company
expects to reinvest principal repayments on the underlying as-
sets into qualifying replacement collateral. The CDO notes have a
stated maturity in January 2040, but are expected to mature in
January 2015 when they become subject to an auction call pro-
cedure. The Company’s effective blended financing rate (inclusive
of original issue discount and debt issuance and hedge costs) on
its CDO is approximately 5.67%. The DO debt is non-recourse

to the Company but is secured by the assets in the pool. The
following table summarizes the assets in the Company's portfolio
posted as CDO collateral as of December 31, 2006.

CARRY VALUE
Long-Term Mortgage Loans $156,124
Corporate Credit Notes 11,468
CMBS and Other Real Estate Secunties 78,699
Total $246,291

The table does not include approximately $47,454 of intercom-
pany mortgage notes that are eliminated from the Company's
balance sheet in consolidation.

Trust Preferred Securities

On December 13, 2005, the Company's operating partnership,
Caplease, LP, completed the issuance and sale in a private place-
ment of $30,000 in aggregate principal amount of fixed/floating
rate preferred securities issued by the operating partnership’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Caplease Statutory Trust I. The trust
simultaneously issued 930 of its common securities to the oper-
ating partnership for a purchase price of $930, which constitutes
all of the issued and outstanding common securities of the trust.
The trust used the proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred
securities together with the proceeds from the sale of the
common securities to purchase $30,930 in aggregate principal
amount of unsecured fixed/floating rate junior subordinated
notes due January 30, 2036, issued by the operating partner-
ship, The junior subordinated notes, the common and the trust
preferred securities have substantially identical terms, requiring
quarterly interest payments calculated at a fixed interest rate
equal to 7.68% per annum through January 30, 2016, and sub-
sequently at a variable interest rate equal to London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus 2.60% per annum. The notes mature
on January 30, 2036, and may be redeemed, in whote or in part,
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at par, at the Company's option, beginning on January 30, 2011.
The preferred and common securities do not have a stated ma-
turity date; however, they are subject to mandatory redemption
upon the redemption or maturity of the notes.

The principal amount of the junior subordinated notes of
$30,930 is reported as other long-term debt on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheet beginning with December 31, 2005.
However, because the Company is not deemed to be the primary
beneficiary of the trust under FASB Interpretation Number 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, the Company’s invest-
ment in the trust is not eliminated from the Company’s financial
statements in consolidation. Instead, the Company records its
investment in the trust’s common shares of $930 as part of other
assets on the Company’s Consotidated Balance Sheet.

The Company incurred issuance costs associated with the
offering of $972. These costs are included as a component of
other assets on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, and
are being amortized into interest expense using the effective
yield method through the date the fixed interest period expires
{the expected maturity date of the trust preferred securities).
The Company's effective borrowing rate on the trust preferred
securities, inclusive of deferred issuance costs, is approximately
8.32% per annum.

The Company has entered into a parent guarantee agreement
for the purpose of guaranteeing the payment, after the expira-
tion of any grace or cure period, of any amounts required to be
paid by the operating partnership. The obligations of the Com-
pany under the parent guarantee agreement constitute unsecured
obligations of the Company and rank subordinate and junier to
all senior debt of the Company. The parent guarantee agreement
will terminate upon the full payment of the redemption price
for the trust preferred securities or full payment of the junior
subordinated notes upon liquidation of the trust.
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Scheduled principal amortization and balloon payments for
all long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are
as follows:

SCHEDULED BALLOON

AMORTIZATION PAYMENTS TOTAL
2007 $5,171 $- $5,1M11
2008 7,527 - 7,527
2009 9,255 - 9,255
2010 34,081 - 34,081
2011 24,713 - 24,713
Thereafter 133,236 879,911 1,013,147

$213,983 $879,911 51,093,894

14. Related Party Transactions

During March 2006, the Company participated in a recapitaliza-
tion of the debt and equity invested in an office building in
Wilmington, Delaware, teased to Hercules Incorporated. The
recapitalization was the final step of a multi-step transaction in
which the Company financed in part the purchase of the property
by a third party borrower. In the recapitalization, the Company
made a $78,000 first mortgage loan on the property {which it
sold in a gain-on-sale transaction at closing) and a $20,000
corporate credit note investment secured by the property, and its
$27,322 mezzanine {oan to and $8,695 preferred equity invest-
ment in the borrower, which financed in part the borrower’s
purchase of the property in 2005, was redeemed. One of CLF,
Incs Board members, Jeffrey Rogatz, also provided pari passu
preferred equity financing to the borrower of $250 that was
redeemed in connection with the recapitalization.

In February 2001, the Company originated a net lease loan on
a real property owned by a limited partnership in which certain
executive officers of the Company have an indirect ownership
interest. The loan was sold to Wachovia in February 2001, and
the limited partnership agreed to pay the Company an advisory
fee from the rent payable by the tenant at the real property in
the amount of approximately $66 a month until November 2010.
The Company recognized a gain on the sale of the mortgage loan
of $4,963. An affiliate of the limited partnership is also a party
to a management agreement with the tenant for the operation
of the property, and another affiliate of the limited partnership -
subleases a portion of the leased building from the tenant at a
nominal amount. No failure to perform under the management
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agreement or sublease entitles the tenant to any rent abatement
or termination under the lease, Interest income earned on the
structuring fee receivable totaled approximately $233, $273 and
$312, during the years ended December 31, 2006, December 31,
2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively, and is included in
interest income in the Consolidated Income Statements.

The chairman of CLF, Inc!s board of directors, Lewis S.
Ranieri, is the chairman and president, a director and majority
stockholder of Hyperion Funding II Corp., which is the sole
general partner of Hyperion Ventures II L.P., which is the sole
general partner of Hyperion Partners II L.P, (“HP"). On November
1, 2004, Caplease, LP entered into two contracts of sale with
HP. Under the terms of the two contracts, the Company acquired
HP's beneficial interest in two trusts. Each trust's sole asset is a
free-standing Walgreen’s retail stere, one located in Portsmouth,
Virginia, and the second located in Pennsauken, New Jersey.
Caplease, LP paid HP an aggregate purchase price of approxi-
mately $7,200 under the contracts, inclusive of the face amount
of.debt assumed of approximately $5,600. As reguired by the
Company's conflict of interest policy, this transaction was
approved by the Company's disinterested directors. The Company
recorded the mortgage loans assumed in this purchase transaction
at their respective fair values, totaling approximately $6,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company classi-
fied Wachovia Bank as a related party, because of its affiliate’s
approximately 26.7% ownership in Caplease, LP. Subsequent, to
the Company's initial public offering, this ownership was reduced
to less than five percent, and as such, the Company no longer
classifies Wachovia Bank as a related party.

Approximately $0 and $92 in notes payable were due from
employees as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved from time to time in litigation arising
in the ordinary course of business, The Company is not currently
involved in any matter which management believes will have a
material adverse effect on its business, results of operations or
financial condition.

As an owner of commercial real estate, the Company is
subject to potential environmental costs. At December 31, 2006,
the Company was not aware of any environmental concerns that
would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
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position or results of operations.

The Company is obligated under a letter of credit with
respect to one of its 1999 securitization transactions {BSCMS
1999-CLF1). The maximum potential amount of future required
payments under the letter of credit is $2,850. The letter of
credit expires on February 18, 2009. The trustee may draw the
letter of credit if there are realized losses on the mortgage
loans that would create a shortfall in the interest or principal
on any investment grade certificate. The letter of credit may be
withdrawn when the ratings of the investment grade certificates
are no longer dependent upon the credit support provided by
the letter of credit. During February 2005, one of the mortgage
loans in the securitization on a property leased to Winn-Dixie
defaulted, in connection with the bankruptcy of Winn-Dixie. This
loan was liquidated by the trust in the fourth quarter of 2006.
Management does not expect any draw on the letter of credit as
a result of this mortgage default, or otherwise, Letter of credit
fees included in interest expense were $102, $102 and $100 for
the years ended December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, respectively.

The Company had outstanding commitments to fund loans of
approximately $12,000 related to its credit agreement to support
YUM! Brands, Inc. franchise loans as of December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, advances of $5,715 had been made
against these commitments.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company was obligated under
non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office space and
copy machines. The future minimum lease payments under these
lease agreements at December 31, 2006 were:

2007 $738
2008 736
2000 734
2010 732
2011 753
Thereafter 1,317

§5,010

Included in general and administrative expense is rent expense
of approximately $642, $619 and $510 (net of sublease income
of $0, $5 and $60) for the years ended December 31, 2006,
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
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During October 2006, the Company acquired a real property
in Fresno, California leased to Aetna Life Insurance Company,
and agreed to fund expected improvements to the real property
of approximately $812. During November 2006, the Company
arranged tong-term financing on this property and it funded a
reserve account with its lender for the full amount of this obliga-
tion. The Company expects these funds will be disbursed in full
as improvements are completed. As of December 31, 2006, none
of these funds have been disbursed.

As discussed under Note 8 above, the Company has agreed to
contribute up to $5,000 of capital to a newly formed management
company organized to form and manage real estate investment
funds offered and sold to European investors, subject to the
satisfaction of certain terms and conditions by the principals of
the management company. As of December 31, 2006, the Compa-
ny had deposited $385 toward its aggregate $5,000 commitment.

16. Minority Interests

As of December 31, 2006, Caplease, LP had issued and outstand-
ing 263,157 common units of limited partnership to a minority
interest holder. All of these units were issued in connection with
the acquisition of a property purchased in June 2006 (see the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 for
mare detail). Beginning on June 13, 2008, the units of limited
partnership are redeemable by the holder, at its option, on the
basis of ane unit for either one share of CLF, Inc. common stock
or cash equal to the fair market value of a share of common
stock at the time of the redemption. The units of limited part-
nership do not have a liguidation preference.

Cash distributions by Caplease, LP will be paid in the fol-
lowing priority: first, to the minority interest holder until such
holder receives the amount it would have received if the holder’s
units of limited partnership interest were converted to an equal
number of shares of CLF, Inc. common stock, and then, to CLF,
Inc. Simultaneous with CLF, Inc.s common stock dividend on
July 17, 2006, October 16, 2006 and January 17, 2007 (see Note
17 below), the minority interest holder was paid a cash dividend
of $0.20 per limited partnership unit.

Net income has been allocated to the minority interest
holder en an “as converted” basis. In other words, the limited
partnership units are treated as converted to shares of CLF, Inc.
common stock, and the minority interest holder is allocated a
percentage of the Company’s net income based on its percent-
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age of as converted common shares outstanding. In addition, a
weighted average is used for units outstanding for less than a
full period,

17. Stockholders’ Equity

Stock Issuances

CLF, Inc’s authorized capital stock consists of 500,000,000
shares of common stock, $0.01 per share, and 100,000,000
shares of preferred stock, $0.01 per share. As of December 31,
2006, CLF, Inc. had issued and outstanding 34,091,829 shares of
common stock, and 1,400,000 shares of 8.125% Series A cumula-
tive redeemable preferred stock.

During May 2006, CLF, Inc. issued 5,747,000 shares of com-
mon stock in a public offering at a price to the public of $10.55
per share, for net proceeds of approximately $57,282,

In November and December 2006, CLF, Inc. issued an
aggregate of 160,900 shares of common stock in a pubtic offering
at an average price to the public of $11.91 per share, for net
proceeds of approximately $1,851.

In March 2004, CLF, Inc. issued 23,000,000 shares of com-
mon stock in an initial public offering at a price to the public of
$10.50 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $222,000.
Also in March 2004, in connection with CLF, Incs acquisition of
Caplease, LP, CLF, Inc. issued 3,968,800 shares of its common
stock to the former owners of Caplease, LP.

In November 2003, CLF, Inc. issued 139,134 shares of its
common stock to certain current and former employees of Ca-
please, LP.

Since CLF, Inc.'s initial public offering and through December
31, 2006, it has issued an aggregate of 1,075,995 shares of
common stock (net of forfeitures) to its directors, executive
officers and other employees pursuant to the Company's stock
incentive plan (see Note 18 below).

In October 2005, CLF, Inc. issued 1,400,000 shares of 8.125%
Series A cumulative redeemable preferred stock in a public
offering at a price to the public of $25.00 per share. The Com-
pany received net proceeds in the transaction {after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering
expenses) of approximately $33,657.

The Series A preferred stock ranks senior to CLF, Inc’s
common stock and junior to all of the Company's existing and
future indebtedness. Investors in the Series A preferred stock
are entitled to receive cumulative cash distributions at a rate
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of 8.125% per annum of the $25.00 liquidation preference per
share {equivalent to $2.03125 per annum per share). The annual
dividend rate will increase to 9.125% if the Series A preferred
stock is delisted from the New York Stock Exchange following a
change of control of CLF, Inc.

If CLF, Inc. liquidates, dissolves or wind ups its operations,
the Series A preferred stock holders will have the right to receive
$25.00 per share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends {whether
or not declared} to the date of payment, before any payment is
made to CLF, Inc’s common stock holders. The Series A preferred
stock does not have any stated maturity date and is not subject
to any sinking fund or mandatery redemption provisions. CLF,
Inc. may not redeem the Series A preferred stock prior to October
19, 2010, except in certain limited circumstances relating to the
ownership limitation necessary to preserve CLF, Inc’s qualifica-
tien as a REIT. On and after October 19, 2010, CLF, Inc, may
redeem the Series A preferred stock for cash at its option, in
whote or from time to time in part, at a redemption price of
$25.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (whether or
not declared) to the redemption date.

Holders of Series A preferred stock generally have no voting
rights. However, Series A preferred stock holders will have limited
voting rights if CLF, Inc. fails to pay dividends on the Sertes A
preferred stock for six or more quarterly periods (whether or not
consecutive), or if CLF, Inc. issues shares of capital stock senior
to the Series A preferred stock or makes changes to the terms of
the Series A preferred stock that would be materially adverse to
the rights of holders of Series A preferred stock.

The Series A preferred stock is not convertible into or
exchangeable for CLF, Inc’s common stock or any of the Compa-
ny's other securities or property.

Dividends

CLF, Inc. has paid cash dividends to its common stockholders each
quarter since the third quarter of 2004, and to its Series A pre-
ferred stockholders each quarter since the fourth quarter of 2005.
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The following table summarizes the dividend history on
shares of CLF, Inc. common stock for the periods indicated.

QUARTER RECORD PAYMENT DIVIDEND TOTAL

ENDED DATE DATE PER SHARE AMOUNT
3/31/2005  3/31/2005  4/15/2005 $0.18 $5,018
6/30/2005  6/30/2005  7/15/2005 0.18 5,016
9/30/2005  9/30/2005 10/17/2005 0.18 5,016
12/31/2005 12/30/2005  1/17/2006 0.20 5,574
3/31/2006  3/31/2006 471772006 0.20 5,636
6/30/2006  6/30/2006  7/17/2006 0.20 6,783
9/30/2006  9/29/2006 10/16/2006 0.20 6,785
12/31/2006 12/29/2006  1/16/2007 0.20 6,818

The following table summarizes the dividend history on shares of
CLF, Inc. Series A preferred stock for the periods indicated.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 {Revised 2004) -
Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R™), using the modified
prospective transition method. SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No.
123, which the Company adopted on January 1, 2003. Under
that transition method, compensation cost recognized on and
after January 1, 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of
January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accardance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and
(b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted
on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R,

Because the Company has historically valued compensation
cost for stock awards at fair value under SFAS No. 123, the adop-
tion of SFAS No. 123R had no impact on the Company’s income
from continuing operations, net income, earnings per share
{basic and diluted), cash flows from operations or cash flows

QUARTER RECORD FAYMENT DIVIDEND TOTAL 4 LRI
ENDED DATE DATE PER SHARE AMOUNT from ﬁnancmg activities.
The C h i i h nt dat
12/31/2005 12/30/2005 1/17/2006 $0.4852400 $679 The Company uses the closing stock price on the grant date
as its estimate of the fair value of the award.
3/31/2006  3/31/2006  4/17/2006 0.5078125 711 3 ..
6/30/2006  7/17/2006  0.5078125 m A summary of the Company's activity under the stock plan
2006 . . .
6/30/ 730/ during the year ended December 31, 2006, is presented below:
9/30/2006  9/29/2006 10/16/2006  0.5078125 M
12/31/2006 12/29/2006  1/16/2007  0.5078125 11 NUMBER OF SHARES
Stock Awards at January 1, 2006 760,546
Granted During the Year Ended December 31, 2006 332,450
18. Stock Based Compensation Forfeited During the Year Ended December 31, 2006 (11,001)
2006 Stock Awards at December 31, 2006 1,081,995

The Company adopted a stock incentive plan for its employees
and directors during March 2004 in connection with its initial
public offering. 2,323,000 shares of common stock are authorized
for issuance under the stock plan, inclusive of 1,250,000 shares
approved by the Company's stockholders at the Company's annual
stockholder meeting held on June 14, 2006. As of December 31,
2006, the Company had awarded 1,075,995 shares of common
stock under the stock plan, all in the form of stock awards to
executive officers, other employees and directors of the Company.
The Company has also agreed to award an employee 6,000 shares
of common stock under the stock plan if a service condition is
satisfied as of January 2, 2007. The service condition was satis-
fied and the shares were issued on January 2, 2007. The Company
has not awarded any options, stock appreciation rights or other
stock based compensation under the stock plan,
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(1) Shares ere scheduied to vest between March 2007 and Morch 2011, but will
generally be forfeited if the recipient either terminates his employment with

the Company or ceases to be o member of CLF, Incs Board of Directors ot any
time prior to the vesting date. Vesting of an aggregote of 133,500 shores is atso
subject to satisfaction of objective and subjective performance criteria, to be
determined by (LE Inc.'s Compensation Committee.

Includes 6,000 shares the Company has agreed to issue on Januery 2, 2007 if
an employee satisfies a service condition. Pursuant to SFAS 123R, the grant date
for these shares occurred in September 2006 when the Company agreed to issue
the shares. The service condition was satisfied and the shares were issued on
Jonuary 2, 2007.

(2,

~
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A summary of the status of unvested shares for years ended
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006, is presented below:

SHARES SHARES PRICED WEIGHTED
AWARDED UNDER SFAS  AVERAGE FAIR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following summarizes the expense the Company recorded
in its Consolidated Income Statement during the years ended
December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004,
for stock-based compensation:

DECEMBER 31

2006 2005 2004

UNDER PLAN 123 AND 123R VALUE
Nonvested at January 1, 2005 254,186 254,186 $10.50
Current period awards 383,500 259,056 10.98
Vested (135,319) {135,319} 10.60
Forfeited (6,720) {6,720) 10.80
Nonvested at December 31, 2005 495,647 371,203 10.83
Current period awards 332,450 243,450 11.07
Prior period awards N/A 62,222 10.66
Vested (228,983)  (228,983) 10.72
Forfeited (11,001) {11,001} 11.02
Nonvested at December 31, 2006 588,113 436,891 10.99

As the above table indicates, not all Company share awards have
been valued for purposes of SFAS 123R, as the Company's stock
awards include shares awarded with vesting dependant upon
satisfaction of performance criteria and with the performance
criteria on a portion of the shares to be determined in the
future. “Prior period awards” represent share awards made in a
prior period which have been valued for purposes of SFAS 123R
in the current period when the CLF, Inc. Compensation Commit-
tee determined the perfermance criteria.

As of December 31, 2006, $2,818 of deferred compensation
expense was included in the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheet as a component of additional paid in capital. This amount
s expecied to be charged to the Company's Consolidated Income
Statement over the remaining vesting period (through March
2011). As of December 31, 2006, the amount of deferred
compensation expense for awards of 62,222 shares made in 2005
and 89,000 shares made in 2006 has not yet been measured and
included as a component of additional paid in capital because
the grant date {as defined under SFAS 123R) has not yet occurred.

General and administrative expenses-stock

based compensation $2,621 $2,235 $3,825

On November 17, 2003, CLF, Inc. sold 139,134 shares of its com-
mon stock to certain current and former employees of Caplease,
LP for $0.10 per share. The Company recorded no compensation
expense in connection with the issuance of the 139,134 shares,
since the fair value of the stock on the date of sale was equal
to the $0.10 per share purchase price. Upon completion of CLF,
Inc’s initial public offering on March 24, 2004, the difference
between the public offering price per share of $10.50 and the
price at which these individuals purchased the shares was recog-
nized as a $1,447 expense (a component of General and admin-
istrative-stock based compensation expense) in the Company’s
Consolidated Income Statement.

19. Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of
a business enterprise during a period fram transactions and
other events and circumstances, excluding those resulting from
investments by and distributions to owners. For the Company's
purposes, comprehensive income represents net income, as
presented in the Company's Consolidated Income Statements,
adjusted for unrealized gains or losses on securities available
for sale, unrealized gains or losses on derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges, and realized gains and losses on derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges (net of amortization of those
realized gains and losses into interest expense). The Company’s
comprehensive income is summarized in the last column on the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.
SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, divides com-
prehensive income into “net income” and “other comprehensive
income.” Other comprehensive income is defined as revenues,
expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted
accounting principles are included in comprehensive income
but excluded from net income. Other comprehensive income is

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

89



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to consolidated financial statements

{Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

also summarized on the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (fourth column). The following
table summarizes the Company’s accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss) as reported on the Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.

DEC 31, 2006  DEC 31, 2005

Net unrealized gains on securities $6,692 $9,648
Net unrealized gains on derivatives 48 786
Net realized losses on derivatives {(11,000) {12,182)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(4,260} $(1,748)

20. Rental Income

The Company is the lessor to tenants under operating leases with
expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2026. The minimum rental
amounts due under the leases are generally subject to scheduled
fixed increases. The leases generally also require that the tenants
pay for or reimburse the Company for the occupancy and operat-
ing costs of the properties, or in certain cases reimburse the
Company for increases in certain operating costs and real estate
taxes above their base year costs. Approximate future minimum
rents to be received over the next five years and thereafter for
non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2006,
are as follows:

2007 $84,899
2008 85,909
2069 84,382
2010 82,555
2011 83,433
Thereafter 626,982

$1,048,160
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21, Concentration Risks

The Company relies on Wachovia Bank to provide the majority

of its cash for financing its portfelio investments, including
through short-term borrowing facilities to facilitate the
Company's portfolio origination and mortgage financings on its
owned real properties. Deterioration in the financial condition of
Wachovia Bank could have a negative impact on the Company’s
ability to continue to make asset investments. However, manage-
ment is confident that alternative funding sources could be
obtained with substantially similar terms. As of December 31,
2006, Wachovia carried an AA- rating from Standard & Poor's.

22. 401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Savings/Retirement Plan (the “401(k}
Plan”) in place to cover eligible employees of the Company. The
401{k) Plan permits eligible employees of the Company to defer
a portion of their annual compensation, subject to certain limi-
tations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The employee’s
elective deferrals are immediately vested and non-forfeitable
upon contribution to the 401(k) Plan. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004,
the Company made matching contributions of $197, $228 and
$241, respectively.
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23. Pro Forma Condensed Ceonsolidated Income
Statements (Unaudited)

The accompanying unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated
Income Statements are presented as if, at January 1, 2005, the
Company acquired all real properties purchased during 2006 and
2005. Earnings per share are presented using the weighted aver-
age shares outstanding during the relevant periods. In manage-
ment’s opinion, all adjustments necessary to reflect the effects
of the above transactions have been made.

The unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Income
Statements are not necessarily indicative of what the actual
results of operations would have been assuming the acquisition
transactions had occurred at January 1, 2005, nor do they
purport to represent the Company's future results of operations.

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS
ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2006 2005

Total revenues $142,773  $128,497

Income from continuing operations 8,759 8,492
Income per basic and diluted common share

from continuing operations 0.27 0.31

Net income allocable to common stockholders 6,110 7,937

Net income per basic and diluted common share 0.19 0.29

24, Segment Reporting

SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information, ("SFAS No. 131") establishes the manner in
which public businesses report information about operating
segments in annual and interim financial reports issued to
stockholders. SFAS No. 131 defines a segment as a component of
an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available and that is evaluated regularly to allocate resources
and assess performance. The Company conducts its business
through two segments: operating real estate (including its
investments in owned properties) and lending investments
(inctuding its loan investments as well as its investments in
securities). For segment reporting purposes, the Company does
not allocate interest income on short-term investments or
general and administrative expenses.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Selected results of operations for the years ended December
31, 2006 are as follows:

CORPORATE/  OPERATING LENDING

UNALLOCATED  REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total revenues $811 488,002 $35,966 $124,780
Total expenses and
minority interest 14,901 82,754 20,070 117,726
Income (loss) from
continuing operations (14,090) 5,248 15,896 7.054

Total assets 30,219 1,152,348 461,732 1,644,300

Selected results of operations for the years ended December 31,
2005 are as follows:

CORPORATE/  DPERATING LENDING

UNALLOCATED  REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total revenues $1,090  $44,352  $27.609  $73,052
Total expenses and
minority interest 12,493 39,254 16,181 67,928
Income {loss) from
continuing operations (11,402) 5,098 11,428 5,124
Total assets 48,007 797,945 440,536 1,286,488

Selected results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2004 are as follows:

CORPORATE /  OPERATING LENDING

UNALLOCATED  REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS TOTAL
Total revenues $603 36,356 $14,045 $21,004
Total expenses and
minority interest 11,869 4,206 3,569 19,644

Income (loss) from

continuing operations (11,266) 2,150 10,476 1,360

Total assets 31,454 247,325 302,923 581,702

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

]




92

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to consolidated financial statements

{Dollar omounts in theusands, except per shore amounts)

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

25. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth selected quarterly financial data
for the Company for 2006 and 2005.

NET INCOME (LOS55)
APPLICABLE TO

BASIC AND DILUTED
INCOME (1055) PER

REVENUE COMMON SHARES COMMON SHARE
2006
December 31 $35.230 $1,244 $0.04
September 30 30,947 776 0.02
June 30 30,255 744 0.02
March 31 28,348 1,641 0.06
2005
December 31 24,572 1,067 0.04
September 30 21,185 (273) {0.01)
June 30 15,388 1,554 0.06
March 31 11,908 2,222 0.08

The totals for the year may differ from the sum of the quarters as
a result of weighting and rounding.

26. Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation Number 46,

Consolidation of Varigble Interest Entities. FIN 46 was revised

by FIN 46(R) in December 2003 (as revised, “FIN 467). FIN 46

defines a variable interest entity ("VIE”) as an entity with one or

more of the following characteristics:

B the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the
entity to finance its activities without additional suberdinated
financial support from other parties;

¥ pquity holders either {a) lack direct or indirect ability to
make decisions about the entity, (b} are not cbligated to
absorb expected losses of the entity or (¢) do not have the
right to receive expected residual returns of the entity if they
occur; of

" equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate
to their economic interests, and the activities of the entity
involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor with a
disproportionately small voting interest.

CAPLEASE 2066 ANNUAL REPORT

If an entity is deemed to be a VIE, an enterpnise that absorbs
a m.ajority of the expected losses of the entity is considered the
primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE.

As part of the Company's developer loan program, the
Company funds loans to an entity that owns an undeveloped
property. These loans are used to finance pre-construction costs
related to the property, such as due diligence costs and land
acquisition contract deposits, rather than costs to build on the
property. The Company has funded two such loans as of December
31, 2006, with an aggregate unpaid principal amount of
approximately $1,148 as of that date. The Company has
determined that its borrowers are VIEs under FIN 46. Each loan
is secured, in part, by a personal guarantee by the borrowing
entity’s owner. The Company has concluded it is not the primary
beneficiary of the VIE (and, therefore, the Company has not
consolidated the VIE under FIN 46). The Company's maximum
exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with these VIEs is
the amount funded on the loans.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had invested $36,395
in an office building in Wilmington, Delaware, leased to Hercules
Incorporated, including a $27,700 mezzanine loan and a $8,695
preferred equity investment. As of December 31, 2005, the
Company determined that its borrower was a VIE under FIN 46,
but the Company did not consolidate the borrower because the
Company concluded it was not the primary beneficiary of the
VIE. During March 2006, the property was recapitalized and the
Company's mezzanine loan and preferred equity investment were
retired. The Company participated in the recapitalization by
making a first mortgage loan on the property (which was simul-
taneously resold in a gain on sale transaction) and a corporate
credit note investment secured by the property. Upon completion
of the recapitalization, the Company's aggregate investment in
the property was $20,000, and the Company concluded its
borrower was not a VIE under FIN 46.

During June 2006, the Company entered into a revolving
credit agreement with a third party borrower pursuant to which
the Company agreed to provide up to $12,000 to support the
borrower’s capital contributions to a joint venture that provides
franchise loans to franchisees of YUM! Brands, Inc. restaurant
concepts such as Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken and Pizza
Hut, The Company is generally required to make advances simul-
taneous with the borrower’s capital contributions to the joint
venture to fund the underlying franchise loans. As of December
31, 2006, the Company had advanced $5,715 under the agree-
ment. The Company has determined that the borrower is a VIE
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under FIN 46. The Company's advances are secured by a pledge
of the borrower's 50% membership interest in the joint venture
and a limited guaranty by one of the principals of the borrower.
The Company has determined it is not the primary beneficiary of
the VIE (and, therefore, the Company has not consolidated the
VIE under FIN 46). The Company’s maximum exposure to loss as
a result of this investment is the amount advanced under the
credit agreement.

Based an the provisions of FIN 46, the Company concluded
to consolidate at December 31, 2004 the Cadbury property in
Whippany, New Jersey that it acquired in January 2005, and to
consolidate at June 30, 2005 the U.S. Government/National
Institutes of Health {"NIH") property in North Bethesda,
Maryland that it acquired in September 2005. The Company did
s0 because it concluded based on an analysis of FIN 46 that the
purchase price deposit that it had funded into escrow under its
purchase and sale agreement ($2,000 in the case of Cadbury
and $4,000 in the case of NIH) made the Company the primary
beneficiary of the expected losses of the property owner. The
Company’s maximum exposure to loss as a result of its involve-
ment with these VIEs was the amount of its deposit. Creditors of
the VIEs have no recourse against the Company.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company recorded $48,000
of “Real estate investments consolidated under FIN 46" {repre-
senting the Company's purchase price for the Cadbury property)
on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company also recorded
$4,815 of “Mortgage on real estate investments consolidated
under FIN 46" (representing the liabilities of the property owner).
The Company also recorded the net balance of the assets and
liabilities consolidated as “Minority interest in real estate invest-
ments consolidated under FIN 46.”

At June 30, 2005, the Company recorded $81,500 of “Real
estate investments consolidated under FIN 46" (representing the
Company's purchase price for the NIH property) on its Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet. The Company also recorded $50,887 of
“Mortgage on real estate investments consolidated under FIN 46
(representing the liabilities of the property owner). The Company
also recorded the net balance of the assets and liabilities
consolidated as “Minority interest in real estate investments
consolidated under FIN 46.”

The Company’s Consolidated Income Statement for the year
ended December 31, 2005, includes total revenue of $3,460,
total expenses of $3,515, and minority interest in cansolidated
entities of ($55), associated with the NIH property prior to the
Company's acquisition of the property on September 9, 2005.

"
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27. Subsequent Events

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company completed two
real property acquisitions, for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $58,000. Each property is leased for a remaining
lease term of at least ten years to a single tenant with an
investment grade credit rating from Standard & Poor’s.

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

93



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

{amounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE I11
COST CAPITALIZED GROSS AMDUNT AT
SUBSEQUENT TO WHICH CARRIED AT CLOSE
INITIAL COST ACQUISITIOR OF PERIOD
BUILDING AND BUILDING AND BUILDING AND
DESCRIPTION ENCUMBRANCES LAND IMPROVEMENTS LAND  IMPROVEMENTS LAND  [MPROVEMENTS TOTAL
Abbott Laboratories $2.775  $1,025  $10,066 $- $- $1,025  $10,066  $11,091
Columbus, OH
Abbott Laboratories 17,570 2,500 15,430 - - 2.500 15,430 17,930
Waukegan, It
Aetna Life Insurance Company 20,416 3,000 19,462 - - 3,000 19,462 22,462
Fresno, CA
Allstate Insurance Company 24,477 7.100 14,594 - - 7,100 14,594 21,694
Charlotte, NC
Allstate Insurance Company 26,059 3,200 20,930 - - 3,200 20,930 24,130
Roanoke, VA
AmeriCredit Corp. 35,514 5,820 32,212 - - 5,820 32,212 38,032
Atlington, TX
AMVESCAP PLC 58,888 7,200 55,395 - - 7,200 55,395 62,595
Denver, (0
Aon Corporation 72,864 11,000 68,591 - 29 11,000 68,620 79,620
Glenview, IL
Baxter International, Inc. 6,661 1,200 9,181 - - 1,200 9,181 10,381
Bloomington, IN
Cadbury Schweppes Holdings (US) 39,028 6,300 38,994 - 1,217 6,300 40,211 46,511
Whippany, NJ
Capitat One Financial Corporation 23,489 6,670 13,816 - - 6,670 18,816 25,486
Plano, TX
Choice Hotels International, Inc. 31,653 5.500 36,806 - 57 5,500 36,863 42,363
Silver Spring, MD
Cott Corporation - 1,550 2,810 - - 1,550 2,810 4,360
Reading, PA
Crozer-Keystone Health System 4,104 - 5,015 - 864 - 5,879 5,879
Ridley, PA
CVS Corporation 8,943 6,300 7,801 - - 6,300 7.801 14,101
Randolph, MA
Farmers New World Life Insurance Company 32,968 24,000 10,035 - - 24,000 10,035 34,035
Mercer Island, WA
ITT Industries, Inc. 47,629 5,300 40,221 - 9,528 5,300 49,749 55,049
Herndon, VA
Johnson Controls, Inc. 23,152 4,600 18,168 - - 4,600 18,168 22,768
Largo, FL ]
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 16,484 4,000 15,789 - - 4,000 15,789 19,789
Levittown, PA
Lowes Companies, Inc. 45,395 26,600 20,829 - 2 26,600 20,831 47,431
Alisa Viejo, (A
Omnicom Group, Inc. 14,802 2,620 11,800 - - 2,620 11,800 14,420
Irving, TX
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIFE ON WHICH

{Continued) ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION IS
DESCRIPTION DEPRECIATION  DATE OF CONSTRUCTION DATE ACQUIRED COMPUTED
Abbott Laboratories $542 1980, renovated in 2003-2004 11/5/2004 40 years
Columbus, OH

Abbott Laboratories 538 2000 1 story office 1969, 2 story office 1984, 2 8/9/2005 40 years
Waukegan, IL story parking

Aetna Life Insurance Company 98 1997, interiar rengvated in 2000 10/159/2006 40 years
Fresno, CA

Allstate Insurance Company 376 1973, renovated in the 1990s 12/21/2005 40 years
Charlotte, NC

Allstate Insurance Company 539  1967/70, with an addition in 1981 12/21/2005 40 years
Roanoke, VA

AmeriCredit Corp. 9 1999 12/28/2006 40 years
Arlington, TX

AMVESCAP PLC 1,081 2001 3/23/2006 40 years
Denver, €O

Aon Corporation 4,061 1975, renovated in 1999 8/18/2004 40 years
Glenview, IL

Baxter International, Inc. 508 1996, renovation and warehouse addition in 2004 10/13/2004 40 years
Bloomington, IN

Cadbury Schweppes Holdings (US) 1,507 2005 1/6/2005 40 years
Whippany, NJ

Capital One Financial Corporation 717 1999 6/23/2005 40 years
Plano, TX

Choice Hotels International, Inc. 1,938  Building 10720 - 1981, 10750 - 1971, 10770 11/23/2004 40 years
Silver Spring, MD - 1986

Cott Corporation 30 1969, renovated in 1975, 1987 & 1997 7/28/2006 40 years
Reoding, PA

Crozer-Keystone Health System 326 1977, renovated in 2004 8/9/2004 40 years
Ridley, PA

CVS Corporation 440 1965, renovated in the 1980°s and 1993 9/29/2004 40 years
Randolph, MA

Farmers New World Life Insurance Company 258 1982 12/22/2005 40 years
Mercer Isiond, WA

ITT Industries, Inc, 1,678 1999, interior renovated in 2005-2006 5/23/2005 40 years
Herndon, VA )

Johnson Controls, Inc. 24 1963 & 2001 12/12/2006 40 years
Largo, FL

Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 217 2006 6/13/2006 40 years
Levittown, PA

Lowes Companies, Inc. 831 1965, renovated in 2004-2005 5/31/2005 40 years
Aliso Viejo, CA

Omnicom Group, Inc. 450 1998 6/23/2005 40 years

Irving, TX

Continved >
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

(amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE M1

{CONTINUED) !
COST CAPITALIZED GROSS AMOUNT AT
SUBSEQUENT TO WHICH CARRLED AT CLOSE
INITIAL COST ACQUISITION OF PERIOD i
BUILDING AND BUILDING AND BUILDING AND
DESCRIPTION ENCUMBRANCES LAND  IMPROVEMENTS LAND  IMPROVEMENTS LAND IHMPROVEMENTS TOTAL
Pearson Pic. $17,570 $1,140 $16,557 $- $- $1,140 $16,557 $17,697
Lawrence, K5
T-Mobile USA, Inc. 10,885 2,450 11,774 - - 2,450 11,774 14,224
Nashville, TN
Tiffany & Co. 62,475 7,400 62,150 - 47 7,400 62,197 69,597
Parsippany. NJ
Time Warner Entertainment Company 24,678 2,300 22,299 - - 2,300 22,299 24,599
L.P. Milwoukee, WI
TIX Companies, Inc. 80,698 6,100 79,734 - - 6,100 79,734 85,834
Philadelphia, PA
United States Government (DEA) 12,494 1,000 11,643 - 258 1,000 11,900 12,900 |
Birmingham, AL
United States Government (EPA) 24,626 250 29,476 - - 250 29,476 29,726
Kansas City, KS
United States Government (FBI) 14,401 3,000 12,794 - - 3,000 12,794 15,794
Albany, NY
United States Government (FBI) 20,697 2,200 20,171 - - 2,200 20171 22,371
Birmingham, AL
United States Government (NIH) 64,883 10,350 61,512 - . 10,350 61,512 71,862
N. Bethesda, MD
United States Government (0SHA) 15,680 1,750 18,484 - - 1,750 18,484 20,234
Sandy, UT
United States Government (SSA) 6,112 1,100 4,327 - 185 1,100 4,511 5,611
Austin, TX
United States Government {VA) 7,172 2,120 10,252 - - 2,120 10,252 12,372
Ponce, PR
Walgreen Co, 2,059 463 2,629 - - 463 2,629 3,092
Pennsauken, NJ
Walgreen Co. 3,390 618 3,562 - {1) 618 3,663 4,181
Portsmouth, VA
$925,691 $177,726  $B40,309 $- $12,186 $177,726  $852,495 31,030,221
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIFE QN WHICH

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION IS
DESCRIFTION DEPRECIATION  DATE OF CONSTRUCTION DATE ACOUIRED COMPUTED
] Pearson Plc. $298 1997 471272006 40 years
Lowrence, KS
T-Mobile USA, Inc. 38 2002 11/14/2006 40 years
Nashville, TN
Tiffany & Co. 1,957  Office & Warehouse - 1996- 1997, 9/28/2005 40 years
Parsippany, NJ Warehouse Mezzanine - 2000, Garage - 2001,
East Wing Office - 2002
Time Warner Entertainment Company 51 1903, renovated in-2001 11/28/2006 40 years
L.P. Milwaukee, WI
TIX Companies, Inc. 1,613 2001 3/10/2006 40 years
Philadelphia, PA
United States Government (DEA} 312 2005 8/11/2005 40 years
Birmingham, AL
United 5tates Government (EPA) 1,018 2003 8/11/2005 40 years
Kansas City, KS
United States Government (FBI) 59 1998 10/25/2006 40 years
Albany, NY
United States Government (FBI) 701 2005 8/11/2005 40 years
Birmingham, AL
United States Government (NIH) 2,016 1989 9/9/2005 40 years
N. Bethesdo, MO
United States Government {OSHA) 642 2004 8/11/2005 40 years
Saondy, UT
United States Government (S5A) 116 2005 B8/11/2005 40 years
Austin, TX
United States Government (VA) 555 2000 11/1/2004 40 years
Ponce, PR
Walgreen Co. 142 1996 11/1/2004 40 years
Pennsauken, NJ
Walgreen Co. 194 1998 11/1/2004 40 years
Portsmouth, VA
$25,881

CAPLEASE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

97



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

(emounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE III
(CONTINUED)

Real Estate
Balance-January 1, 2004 $-
Additions during the year:

Property acquisitions 182,131
Costs capitalized subsequent to acquisition - 174

Balance-December 31, 2004 $182,305
Property acquisitions . 508,597
Costs capitalized subsequent te acquisition 2,912

Balance-December 31, 2005 $693,814
Property acquisitions 324,221
Costs capitalized subsequent to acquisition 12,186

Balance-December 31, 2006 $1,030,221

Accumutated Depreciation
Balance-January 1, 2004 $-

Additions during the year:

Depreciation on property 1,281
Balance-December 31, 2004 $1,281
Additions during the year:

Depreciation on property 7,118
Balance-December 31, 2005 $8,399
Additions during the year:

Depreciation on property 17,482
Balance-December 31, 2006 $25,881
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Schedule of Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

{omounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 1V

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
OF LOANS
SUBJECT TO
FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINQUENT
INTEREST MATURITY PRIDR  AMOUNTOF  AMOUNTOF  PRINCIPAL
DESCRIPTION & LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS ~ MORTGAGES MORTGAGES(1) OR INTEREST
Long-Term Mortgage Loans
Autozone, Inc. 6.50% Nov 2022  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A $1,971 $1,971
Douglas and Voldosta, GA a level amount, over the life to maturity
Bank of America, N.A. 6.42% Dec 2026  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 3,469 3,469
Mt. Airy, MO a varying amount, aver the life to maturity
Best Buy Co., Inc. 6.40% Mar 2025  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 18,038 18,038
Chicage, IL a varying amount, over the life to maturity
City of Jasper, Texas 7.00% Nov 2024  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,673 1,624
Josper, TX a varying amount, over the tife to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.53% Jan 2026  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 2,255 2,317
Asheville, NC a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.99% Aug 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 3,097 3,097
Oak Ridge, NC a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.28% Jan 2026  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 2,353 2,312
Bangor, PA a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.46% Jan 2025  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,423 1,424
Athol, MA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 8.10% Jan 2023  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 2,434 2,600
Washington, OC a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 8.00% Jan 2021  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,284 1,402
Bluefield, WV a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 7.50% Jan 2021  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,603 1,564
Sunbury, PA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 8.26% Jan 2020  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,703 1,899
Southington, (T a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 8.26% Jan 2023  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,961 2,194
Willimantic, (T a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 8.26% Jan 2020  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 2,30 2,565
Stow, OH a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Vs Corporation 6.52% Jan 2030  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,355 1,355
Greenshoro, GA a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 5.98% Jan 2031  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 2,521 2,521
Shetby Twp., MI a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Harris Bankcorp, Inc. 6.81% Aug 2025 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 4,388 4,388
Chicago, It a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Home Depot USA, Inc. 6.62% Jan 2033  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 8,419 8,419
Tullytown, PA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Home Depot USA, Inc, 5.36% Jan 2031  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 8,384 8,384
Chelsea, MA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Kohls Corporation 6.69% May 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 47,517 47,517

Chicago, IL

a varying amount, over the life to maturity

Continued >
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

{amounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE IV

(CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
OF LOANS
SUBJECT T0
FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINQUENT
INTEREST  MATURITY PRIOR  AMOUNT OF  AMOUNT OF  PRINCIPAL
DESCRIPTION & LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS ~ MORTGAGES MORTGAGES(1) OR INTEREST
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.24% May 2020 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A $3.005 $3,063
Bensalem, PA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.50% Nov 2025  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 6,549 6,529
North Kingstown, RI a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Koninklijke Ahold, N.V. 7.50% Jan 2027  Principai and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 6,444 6,439
Tewksbury, MA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Koninktijke Ahold, N.V. 7.29% Apr 2024  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 6,503 6,215
Upper Darby Township, PA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Lowes Companies, Inc. 5.87% Sep 2031  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 27,829 27,829
Framingham, MA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Lowes Companies, Inc. 6.61% May 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 7,119 7,119
Matamoras, PA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
National City Bank 5.89% Dec 2024  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 3,005 3,084
Chicago, IL a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Natural Gas Pipeline Company 5.97% Jun 2007  Principal and Interest are payable N/A 4,202 4,202
of America semi-annually at a varying amount, over the
Lombard, IL life to maturity
Neiman Marcus Group, Inc. 6.06% Nov 2021  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 6,830 7,426
Las Vegas, NI a varying amount, over the life to maturity
United States Postal Service 7.05% Qct 2021  Principal and Interest are payable monthiy at  N/A 921 940
Scammon Bay, AK a level amount, over the life to maturity
University of Connecticut 6.34% Nov 2024  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 21,537 22,333
Health Center a varying amount, over the life to maturity
farmington, T
Walgreen Co. 6.26% Dec 2029  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 5,260 5,260
Rosemead, (A a level amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co. 6.80% Sep 2030  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 3,629 3,629
Nacogdoches, TX a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co. 6.10% Feb 2030  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 4,548 4,548
Montebello, (A a level amount, over the life to maturity
Walgraen Co. 6.46% Dec 2029  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 3,418 3,418
Datlas, TX a level amount, over the life to maturity
228948 231,094
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Schedule of Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

{amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 1V

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
OF LOANS
SUBJECT TO
FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINQUENT
INTEREST MATURITY PRIOR  AMOUNTOF  AMOUNT OF  PRINCIPAL
DESCRIPTION & LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS  MORTGAGES MORTGAGES(1) OR INTEREST
Corporate Credit Notes
Albertsons, LLC 6.50% Sep 2013  Principat and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A $327 $297
Los Angeles, CA a varying amount, over the Life to maturity
Albertsons, LLC 6.33% Dec 2013  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 359 355
Norwalk, CA a level amount, aver the life to maturity
Best Buy Co., Inc. 6.15% Nov 2012  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 509 485
Wichita Fails, TX a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Best Buy Co., Inc. 5.40% Jun 2013  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 1,323 1,270
Olathe, KS a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.12% Aug 2013  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A B44 627
Garwood, N1 a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.40% Oct 2012  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 566 547
Kennett Square, PA a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 5.85% May 2013  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 374 361
Commerce, MI a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 7.60% Dec 2011  Principal and Interest are payable monthty at  N/A 192 191
Knox, IN a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.12% Qct 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 274 268
Rutherford (otlege, NC a varying amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 5.54% Jan 2015  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 242 232
(temmons, NC a level amount, over the life to maturity
CVS Corporation 6.12% Oct 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 325 318
Rockinghom, NC a level amount, over the life to maturity
Federal Express Corporation 5.78% Mar 2015  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 317 310
Bellingham, WA a varying amount, over the life to maturity
FedEx Ground Package System, Inc. 5.90% Oct 2014  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 1,143 1,132
Reno, NV a varying amount, over the life to maturity
FedEx Ground Package System, Inc. 5.89% Feb 2015  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 2,350 2,323
McCook, IL a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Hercules Incorporated 9.32% May 2013  Pnincipal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 19,964 19,964
Wilmington, DE a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Lowes Companies, Inc, 5.28% 5ep 2015  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 1,070 1,048
N. Windham, ME a varying amount, over the life to maturity
PerkinElmer, Inc. 7.68% Jan 2012 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 567 555
Warwick, RI a level amount, over the life to maturity
PerkinElmer, Inc. 7.35% Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 419 416
Beltsville, MD a level amount, over the life to maturity
PerkinElmer, Inc. 7.35% Dec 2011  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 190 188
Daytona Beach, FL a level amount, over the life to maturity
PerkinElmer, Inc, 7.35% Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 177 174
Phelps, NY a level amount, over the life to maturity
Continued >
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

{amounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE IV
(CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
OF LOANS
SUBJECT TO
FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINQUENT
INTEREST  MATURITY PRIOR  AMOUNT OF  AMOUNT OF PRINCIPAL
DESCRIPTION & LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS  MORTGAGES MORTGAGES(1) OR INTEREST
Staples, Inc. 6.41% Sep 2012 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A $275 3262
Odessa, TX a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co. 6.20% Jan 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 405 403
Delray Beach, FL a level amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co, 5.50% Jun 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 678 638
Waterford, MI a level amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co. 6.10% Dec 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at ~ N/A 435 426
Riverside, CA a level amount, over the life to maturity
Walgreen Co. 5.49% May 2015 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at  N/A 687 690
Jefferson City, TN a tevel amount, over the life to maturity
$33,812  $33,480
Mezzanine and Other Investments
84th Avenue Development, LLC 10.00% Mar 2007 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at 2,395 498 408
Tinley Park, IL a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Eden Hylan Seaview LLC 10.00% Jul 2007  Principal and Interest are payable monthly at 1,322 650 650
Staten Island, NY a varying amount, over the life to maturity
Wemo Franchise Funding LLC 10.00% Feb 2007 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2,648 2,648
Various a varying amount, over the life to maturity
West End Mortgage Finance Fund I L.P.  10.00% Sep 2009 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 5,715 5,715

Various

a varying amount, over the life to maturity

3,117 9,511 9,511

Total

$3,717 $272,271 $274,085

(1) The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes is $274,085.
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Schedule of Mortgage and Other Real Estate Loans

{amounts in thousands)
December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 1V
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance-December 31, 2003
Additions during the year:
New mortgage loans

Mark to fair value

Fair value hedges allocated to unearned origination discounts and premiums

Deductions during the year:
Principal received
Loans sold
Balance-December 31, 2004
Additions during the year:
New mortgage loans
Securities reclassified to mortgage loans
Deductions during the year:
Principal received
Amortization of unearned discounts and premiums
Loans soid
Balance-December 31, 2005
Additions during the year:
New mortgage loans
Deductions during the year:
Principal received
Amortization of unearned discounts and premiums
Loans sold
Batance-December 31, 2006

$71,973

167,009
(343)
2,403

{8,521)
(24,628)
$207,893

115,852
6,932

(20,372)

(70)

(11,858)
$298,377

122,988

(69.196)

(84)

(78,000)
$274,085
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CHANGES & DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With
Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined under
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the $EC's rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our manage-
ment, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure,

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, we car-
ried out an evaluation, with the participation of management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective.

Changes in Internal Controls

There has been no change in our internal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2006, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internat control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting immediately precedes Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data, and is incorporated herein by reference.

9B. Qther Information

None.
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Part II1.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and
Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference
herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-
ment related to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.

Because our common stock is listed on the NYSE, Paul H.
McDowell, our chief executive officer, certified to the NYSE on
June 21, 2006, pursuant to Section 303A.12 of the NYSE's listing
standards, that he was not aware of any viclation by us of the
NYSE's corporate governance listing standards as of that date.
We also have filed as exhibits to this Annual Repert on Form
10-K the certifications of our chief executive officer and our
chief financial officer required by Sections 302 and 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference
herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-
ment related to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference
herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-
ment related to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference
herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-
ment related to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference
herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-
ment related to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.



EXHIBITS & FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Part IV.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement
Schedules

(a) and (c)
The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data
{(including financial statement schedules) are included in this
report under Item 8 of Part IT hereof,

See the exhibit index included herein for a list of exhibits to
this report.

(b) Exhibits

The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this annual
report on Form 10-K. Where so indicated, exhibits that were
previously filed are incorporated by reference.

EXHIBIT NO.  DESCRIPTION
3.1(1) Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the registrant
3.2(2) Articles Supplementary Establishing the Rights and Preferences of the 8.125% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Stock of the registrant
3.3(1) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant
4.1(1) Form of Certificate evidencing the Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the registrant
4.2(3) Junior Subordinated Indenture between Caplease, LP and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as trustee, dated
December 13, 2005
4.3(3) Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among Caplease, LP, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association, Chase Bank USA, National Association and the Administrative Trustees named therein, dated
Becember 13, 2005
10.1{4) Master Repurchase Agreement, dated September 22, 2004 between the registrant, Wacho via Bank, National Association,
Caplease, LP and Certain Special-Purpose Entity Subsidiaries thereof
10.2(5) Promissery Note {Note A), dated October 28, 2004, of CLF 1000 Milwaukee Avenue LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National
Association
10.3(6) Promissory Note, dated December 9, 2004, of the registrant in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
*10.4(7) Amended and Restated Capital Lease Funding, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (Effective June 14, 2006)
*10.5(8) Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement
*10.6(17} Form of Executive Officer Restricted Stock Agreement
10.7(9) Promissory Note, dated February 25, 2005, of CLF Parsippany LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
*10.8(10) Form of Employment Agreement between each of Paul H. McDowell, William R. Pollert, Shawn P, Seale and Robert C. Blanz,
and the registrant
10.9(11) Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated March 2, 2005, by and among Capital Property Associates Limited
Partnership, 6116 GP LLC, Capital Property Acceptance LLC, and Caplease, LP
10.10(11) Indenture, dated as of March 10, 2005, by and among Caplease CDQ 2005-1, Ltd., Caplease CDO 2005-1 Corp., Caplease
Investment Management, LLC and LaSalle Bank National Association
10.11(12) Second Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2005, by and between Caplease, LP and Aliso
Commons at Town Center, LLC
10.12(13) Sales Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2005, between Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. and Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
10.13(13) Sales Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2005, between Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation and Capital Lease

Funding, Inc.
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EXHIBIT NO.

DESCRIPTION

10.14(13)
10.15(14)
10.16(14)
10.17(15)
10.18(15)

10.19(15)
10.20(15)
10.21(15)
10.22(15)
10.23(15)
10.24(15)
10.25(15)

10.26(15)
10.27(15)

10.28(15)
10.29(15)
10.30{15)

10.31(3)

10.32(3)

10.33(16)
10.34(16)

*10.35(17)
*10.36(17)

*10.37(17)
*10.38
12.1

21.1

23.1

23.2

31.1

31.2

Amendment No. 1 to Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2005, by and between Caplease, LP, Capital
Lease Funding, Inc., Caplease Services Corp. and Wachovia Bank, National Association

$75,000,000 Revolving Loan Agreement, dated August 26, 2005, by and among Capital Lease Funding, Inc., Caplease
Services Corp., Caplease, LP and Wachovia Bank, National Association

$25,000,000 Revolving Loan Agreement, dated August 26, 2005, by and among Capital Lease Funding, Inc., Caplease
Services Corp., Caplease, LP and Wachovia Investment Holdings, LLC

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 18, 2005, by and between Justice Center, LLC and CLF DEA
Birmingham LLC

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 18, 2005, by and between Birmingham Field Office, LLC and CLF FBI
Birmingham LLC

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 18, 2005, by and between Utah Tech Center, LLC and Caplease, LP
Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 18, 2005, by and between Kansas EPA Laboratory, LLC and Caplease, LP
Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 18, 2005, by and between Austin 55A, LLC and Caplease, LP
Promissory Note, dated August 16, 2005, of CLF FBI Birmingham LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
Promissery Note, dated August 16, 2005, of CLF DEA Birmingham LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
Promissory Note, dated August 16, 2005, of CLF S5A Austin, LP in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association

Trust Indenture dated as of February 1, 2001 between Unified Government of Wyandotte County, Kansas (ity, Kansas, as
issuer, and Security Bank of Kansas City, as trustee

Lease dated as of February 1, 2001 between Unified Government of Wyandotte County, Kansas City, Kansas and Kansas EPA
Laboratory, LLC

Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2002 between Utah Tech Center, LLC, as issuer, and Security Bank of Kansas City,
as trustee

Promissory Note, dated as of September 9, 2005, of Caplease Credit LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 23, 2005 between Tiffany and Company and Caplease, LP

Promissory Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, of CLF Sylvan Way LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association
Parent Guarantee Agreement between Capital Lease Funding, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as
guarantee trustee, dated December 13, 2005

Purchase Agreement among Capital Lease Funding, Inc., Caplease, LP, Caplease Statutory Trust I and Merrill Lynch
International, dated December 13, 2005

Real Estate Sale Agreement between Caplease, LP and Allstate Insurance Company, dated November 22, 2065

Promissory Note, dated as of December 21, 2005, of CLF McCullough Drive Charlotte LLC and CLF Electric Road Roanoke
LLC in favor of LaSalle Bank National Association

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2007, between Paul Hughes and the registrant

Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreement dated as of March 24, 2004 between Robert C. Blanz and the registrant,
dated February 13, 2007

Summary of Compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and each of the Named Executive Officers for Fiscal 2007
Summary of Independent Director Compensation for Fiscal 2007

Computation of Ratio of Earnings te Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

.

(1

—

(2)
f2)
(4)
{5,
{5,
)
(8,
t3)

= 2

=

Denotes compensatory plans or arrangement or monagement contracts required to be fSled as exhibits to this Annual Report on Farm 10-K.

Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Amendment No, 4 to Registration Statement on Form 5-11 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 8,
2004 (File No. 333-110644).

Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s registration Stotement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 17, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 19, 2005,
Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchonge Lommissian on September 24, 2004,
Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 3, 2004.
Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 15, 2004.
Incorporoted by reference from the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission an April 17, 2006.
Incorporated by reference from the registront’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secunities and Exchange Commission on June 19, 2006.
Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities ond Exchange Commission en March 3, 2005.

(10} Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2005,
(11) Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Quorterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 16, 2005.
(12) Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 11, 2005.

(13) Incorporated by reference from the registront’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 17, 2005.

(14} Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 1, 2005.
(15} Incoiporated by reference from the registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2005.
(16} Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchonge Commission on March 16, 2006.

(17} Incorporated by reference from the registrant’s Current Repart on Form 8-X filed with the Securities end Exchange Commission on February 20, 2007,
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SIGNATURES

Part V

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CAPITAL LEASE FUNDING, INC.
Registrant

/s/Paul H. McDowell
Paul H. McDowell
Chief Executive Officer
March 7, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/Lewis 5. Ranieri
Lewis S. Ranieri
Chairman of the Board
March 7, 2007

/5/Shawn P. Seale

Shawn P. Seale

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)

March 7, 2007

/s/Stanley Kreitman
Stanley Kreitman
Director

March 7, 2007
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/s/Paul H. McDowell

Paul H. McDowell

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 7, 2007

/s/ John E. Warch

John E. Warch

Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)
March 7, 2007

/s/Jeffrey F. Rogatz
Jeffrey F. Rogatz
Director

March 7, 2007

/s/William R. Pollert
William R. Pollert
President and Director
March 7, 2007

/s/Michael £. Gagliordi
Michael E. Gagliardi
Director

March 7, 2007

/s/Howard A. Silver
Howard A. Silver
Director

March 7, 2007



CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

OFFICERS

HEADQUARTERS

Lewis Ranieri
Chairman
Hyperion Partners, L.P.

Paul McDowell
Chief Executive Officer
Capital Lease Funding, Inc.

William Pollert
President
{apital Lease Funding, Inc,

Mike Gagliardi @ ¥
Managing Director
HSBC-Halbis

Stanley Kreitman 2
Senior Advisary Board Member
Signature Bank

Jeff Rogatz @ 2%
President
Ridgeway Capital LLC

Howard Silver %
Chief Executive Officer
President

Equity Inns, Inc.

(1) Audit Committee

(2} Compensatien Committee
(3) Nominating and Corperate Governance

Paul McDowell
Chief Executive Officer

William Pollert
President

Shawn Seale
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Robert Blanz
Senior Vice President
Chief Tnvestment Officer

Paul Hughes
General Counsel
Corporate Secretary

Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
1065 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10018

tel: (212) 217-6300

fax: (212) 217-6301
www.caplease.com

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock
Transfer & Trust Co.
5¢ Maiden Lane
Plaza Level

New York, NY 10038
(866) 668-6550
www.amstock.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For help with questions
about the Company, and to
receive additional corporate
information, please contact:
Brad Cohen

Capital Lease Funding, Inc.
1065 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10018

tel: 212-217-6393







